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. Throughout this Review headline sales refers o gross revenue including the Group’s share of revenues from joint ventures Headline prafit refers to operating profit

before spetic items and includes the Group's share of operating profits from joint ventures and assoclates Speclfic mems are set out on page & A reconcillation between

headline profit and profit before tax is presented in the Chief Financial Officer's review on page 8

Undertying growth ts based on the comparison of 2015/16 results to 2014/15 results on a like for-like basts, i e after adjusting for the impact of derecognistng BBC AMERICA
results This differs from the separately disclased seven months of headline sales and profit recorded in 2014/15 due to the subsequent share of BBC AMERICA profit recorded
in both years and the impact of intragroup eliminations as content sales to BBC AMERICA are no longer being elumunated as an internal sale BBC AMERICA was consolidated in
the Group’s results up to 23 October 2014 Thereafter, and throughout 2015/156, the Group recognlsed its share of the net profits of BBC AMERICA within continuing operations

n the income statement
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Our business delivered solid growth In 2015/16 Headline sales were up 2 8%, or 6 7% on an underlying basis
Our performance enabled us to provide valuable returns well above £200m to the BBC, for a second

consecutive year

Highlights of the year

RETURNS TO THE BBC HEADLINE SALES HEADLINE PROFIT
£222.2m £1,029.4m  £133.8M
(2014/15 £226 5M) -1 9% (2014/15 £1,001 8m) +2 8% (2014/15 £138 6M)-3 5%
+17 8% INCREASE ON PRIOR YEAR +6 7% UNDERLYING GROWTH IN +4 0% UNDERLYING GROWTH IN
RETURNS ADJUSTED FOR DISPOSALS HEADLINE SALES HEADLINE PROFITS

PROCEEDS

Supporting the BBC to make world-class programmes

Our pnimary measure of financiat success 1s returns to the BBC At £222 2m, returns for 2015/16 were almost
in ine with the previous year, and were up 17 6% adjusted for disposals, a record Over the past five years,
returns have totalled almost £1bn — money that has supplemented the licence fee to keep audiences In the UK
informed, educated and entertained

HEADLINE SALES HEADLINE PROFIT
United Kingdom United Kingdom
£379.3m £62.4m

(2014/15 £361 8m) (2014/15 £52 7m)

North America North America
£277.9m £24 2m

(2014/15 £299 9m) {2014/15 £32 8m)
Australia and New Zealand Australia and New Zealand
£79 1m £19 2m

(2014/15 £81 9m) (2014/15 E16 3m}

Global Markets Global Markets
£305.7m £26 4m

(2014/15 £276 3m) (2014115 £32 2m)

Five-year returns to the BBC £m

£994.2m S ——————
RETURNS TO THE BBC OVER PREVIOUS FIVE YEARS 2013/14 . -
(2014/15 £953 9m) +4 1% 2012/13 '

2011/12
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Chairman’s statement

BBC Worldwide's reported retum for 2015/16 was £222 2m, a very strong performance This result meant BBC Worldwide contributed
the equivalent of £8 55 for every licence fee payer, or 13 0% of the BBC's spend on television content The two largest elements of this
return were investment in BBC commissions and dvidends, at £92 7m (2014/15 £94 4m) and £1055m (2014/15 £111 3m)
respectively

This financial retum to the Corporation ailows the BBC to commission with a level of ambition and production values that would simply
not be possible within the licence fee alone Prime examples of this dunng the year included The Hunt, narrated by S Dawvid
Attenborough, from Silverback Films, and BBC Production’s War and Peace, written by Andrew Davies Almost three-quarters of The
Hunt, watched by large audiences n the UK, was commercially funded via BBC Worldwide, including co-production deals with BBC
AMERICA, China's CCTV-9 and Germany's NDR For War and Peace, BBC Worldwide worked alongside pariner Lookout Point to
broker a major co-production partnership with The Weinstein Company A significant success with audiences and cntics alike, War and
Peace has since been sold fo 184 temtones, including Russia

These programme successes demonstrate the synergy between the public service BBC and BBC Worldwide The BBC has been
involved in commercial activity from the establishment of Radio Times in 1823 and while this activity has evalved over the intervering
decades, it remains both essential and highly complementary to the success of the Corporation

However, the benefits of BBC Worldwide are not imited 1o the BBC BBC Worldwide 1s a unique content partner and faciitator active
throughout the creative process from initial idea to eventual export, using both the BBC brand and distinctive British content to ight the
way for UK programmes in international markets This 1S one of several ways in which we fuifil our public purpose of ‘brninging the UK to
the world” This halo effect helps both the BBC and the independent sector, as well as the wnters, directors, acters and producers
whose work Is, in part, funded by overseas and secondary market demand for quality Bntish content

By helping put Bntish television onto a global stage, BBC Worldwide contnbutes to the reputation of Bntain as one of the world’s most
briliantly creative countnes In this vein, it was fantastic to see Sherlock The Abominable Bride receve globai 'big screen’ treatment in
January, with cinema screenings for fans in over 20 countries complementing the telewision broadcast, with 6000 screenings In Asia

alone

BBC Worldwide's vitahty and health will be a cntical ingredient in the BBC's success over the course of the next Charter penod With a
lower financial seftlement and increased responsibiities to fund, maxsmising our commercial revenue 1s imperative, not optional The
Board of the BBC 1s locking to BBC Worldwide to provide £1 2bn of returns over the first five years of the next Charter This represents
more than a 15% uplift on the previous five years, or almost 30% adjusted for dividends relating to disposals during that term

Fortunately, given these demands and its importance, BBC Worldwide i1s in solid shape Despite a challenging operating environment,
the BBC has high expectations for its future, which BBC Worldwide has the magination and ambition to realise With that in nund, |
would hke to thank Tim Davie and the staff of BBC Worldwide, whether in Sydney, Los Angeles, Johannesburg, Singapore, London or
elsewhere, for their hard work and dedication dunng the year

Tony Hall
Chairman, BBC Worldwide
and Durector-General, BBC
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What we do
WE PARTNER 2 WE COMMERCIALISE 3 We DELIVER RETURNS
e Creative development + Programme and format sales 10 THE BBC
Funding for BBC and independent « Channe! comnissions + Programme investment
productions = Formats and cnginal s Dividends
¢ Facilitating nternational content production s Other nghts payment
co-producten deals +« BBC branded services « Growing the brand across the globe
s Investmentin the UK production including websites + Building the reach of BBC
sector s Ancillanes and othar [P exploitation programmes
e Nurtunng talent s Marketing and sccial media TO RIGHTSHOLDERS
« Supporing new wnlers +« Royalties
« Building innovative partnerships + Profit share
« Secondary nghts acquisiton + Showcasing UK creatvity
Ethics

To ensure we fulfil our responsibilities as a leading corporate criizen, we are constantty looking at how to improve the way in which we
conduct businass

From an ethical trading perspective this mcludes working hand mn hand with our licensing and suppler partners to ensure all
manufacturers they work with meet the requirements of our ethical sourcing programme, prior to production of our consumer products

it 1s also vital that employees across BBC Worldwide understand the importance athical sourcing plays within our business this year
we introduced mandatory online traming for alt staff involved m the sourcing or licensing of our products

We also furthered our mvolvement with multi-stakehcider tnitiatives including the Ethical Trading Intiatve and SEDEX, the Suppher
Ethical Data Exchange, adding our voice to the wider debate around the challenges within thus field

Environment

In Apnl 2015, we completed the integration of our two London offices to a new HQ in the iconic Television Centre To minimise our
impact on the environment, our new HQ was refurbished to a SKA Gold standard and we have focused on ensunng the building is
operated in an environmentally fnendfy manner This has ncluded introducing measures such as separate waste streams for focd and
ensuring fitings and equipment such as lights and pnnters automatically enter low energy settings outside of core business hours
Environmental impacts have also been considered in ather offices including Sydney and New York

In the 2014/15 Annual Review we noted that we would begin implementing robust manitoring and improve data collection across ocur
global offices This ongoing commitment will enable us to identify opporturities for iImprovement

Wo also strengthened our working relationship with the other parts of the BBC, to ensure our environmental approaches are ahgned
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Chief Executive's review

It has heen another year of major change forthe mdustry
subscription video-on-demand (SVOD) companies are rapidly
expanding, content budgets are growing and only three of the
UK's top 20 independents are domestcally owned Overmight
ratings are n dechne, as time-shifting has become mainstream
Yet consumption of premium long-form content has never been
higher, while on a global basis pay-TV remains resilient

Results

All these dynamics are reflected in the year's results We are
pleased to show good growth at the top and bottom lines, with
underlying sales growth of 6 7%, well ahead of our industry's
growth rate Headline sales were £1,029 4m
(2014/15 £1,001 8m), up 2 8%, despite the inclusion of seven
menths’  full  ownership ofthe BBC AMERICA channel
in the previous year Headhne profit of £1338m
(2014/15 £138 6m) was dimiushed by the full year impact of
BBC AMERICA Remowving thus effect shows headhine profit
growth of 4 0% Full details of our regional results are set out
in the individual markets' operating reviews on pages 10-13 while
further analysis of our overall results can be found in the
Chief Financial Officer’s (CFO) review on pages 7-9

As the Dwector-General points out on the previous pages, this
performance enabled us to return £222 2m (2014/15 £226 Sm) to
the BBC This keeps our return above the £200m mark for a
second year running, and s a 17 8% year-on-year improvement
adjusted for disposal proceeds | know that everyone at BBC
Worldwide takes pnde in the matenal contnbution that our
activites make towards the BBC's ability to fulfil ts prormise to UK
audiences

Markst shifts

All this has been achieved in a time of rapid change, which has
presented opportunities, as well as fundamental threats, to our
business Hstoncally, BBC Worldwide's business model was
signuficantly reliant on DVD, with consumer products our second
largest profit segment unti four years ago Free to air and pay
broadcasters drove growth in content sales, while traditional
affilate distnbubon underpinned channels A shift to digral
distnbution and consumption has affected all these areas and
necessitated a continuing transformation of the company We
have absorbed a 38 5% decline in DVD revenue In |ust three
years, while supplementing our core sales customers with sales
to digital platforms We have committed substantal nvestment
inte our channels, re-branding the majonty, while rationalising
some, and parinening on others At the same time, we have
responded to supply-side changes - dnven both by the digial
revolution and by producer consolidation - by taking action to
secure content through major international co-productions and
closer indie relatonstnps This momentum also underpins our
confidence in the decisions we are taking about our investments
and strategic direction

Strategic progress
We made considerable further progress on the strategy first
announced in October 2013 That sirategy was to achieve three
things

« to increasa focus on premium, world - class content,

» to grow global brands, and

» to effect a gradual transformation to digital products and

services

Premium content

During the year we further strengthened both our content profile
and our supply base, as outlined on page 6 For a second year,
drama - a growth area for producers and broadcasters across the
world — made up around half our total investment a deliberate
rebalancing, as well as the result of continuing increased casts In
the content market We took delivery of new tittes from Barished
to War and Peace, Doclor Foster, Dickensian and Thiteen,
having Invested alongside BBC channels, as well as new
commissions from other Brnitish broadcasters including Maigret
and The Durrells Qurreturming titles were also in strong
form, with Doctor Who in s ninth senes, Death in Paradise and
Call the Midwife completing therr fifth and Sient Withess now at
senes 19 The strength and breadth of thts slate was wisible both
at trade markets, and in a sales performance that saw drama
make up 49% of all our programme licence revenue in the year

Highlights tn our second largest nvestment genre, natural history,
included Shark and Aftenborough and the Giant Dinosaur,
alongside landmark The Hunt Among our documentary dehvenes
was BBC Worldwide commussion Beckham For the Love of the
Game, which secured 4 1m viewers on BBC One In children's
we were pleased to see two new high potential titles — Go Jetters
and Mey Duggee — ratng very well both at home and
internationally, while BAFTA-winming Sarsh & Duck was
produced for a third series

We also continued our strategy of long-term partnerships with
high qualty UK independent production comparties This allows
us to secure content nghts, frequently for BBC commissions,
while supporting independents with access to our funding,
distnbution and expertise In our equity relatonships, some of
which first date back a decade, BBC Worldwide 1s a long-term,
stable sharsholder We can provide the financial and creative
partnership that allows small and medium sized indigs o expand,
while retaining both their Brtishness and the independence
that keeps the UK production scene so dynamic Our work with
independents returned some £118 1m (2014/15 £113 1m) to the
indie sector n the year Thus I1s one of several ways in which BBC
Wordwide performs an important role as a core part of the UK's
creative economy

The year saw us upgrade our offer and performance in content
sales We introduced a programme based around nsight,
customer relabon management and marketing at the end of the
previous year Its implementation and initial success in 2015/16
helped us to an impressive 18 4% growth in revenue from content
salas, a key benchmark of our compettiveness Digital sales
were particularly strong, reflecting new service launches from
both global and local SYOD operators, and we welcomed around
700 sales chents for a third year running at our main trade event,
BBC Worldwide Showcase Buillding on global hits such as
Dancing with the Stars and The Great Bake Off, we also brought
renewed attention to format development, acquisitton and sales,
resulting in more local versions of our hit Bntish shows than ever
before and good growth n format sales
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Chief Executive’s review (continued)

Global brands

Keeping our largest programme brands healthy and competitive
was also a focus in the year ABC's Dancing with the Stars, which
we produce n Los Angeles, performed very strongly in its 20th
and 21st senes in the year We also saw impressive international
performances from Doctor Who S9 Meanwhile, Top Gear
underwent an exciting re-casting, with established and new
prasenting talent secured for senes 23, which pramiered in May

We made rapid progress on plans to upgrade our linear channels,
resulting In a portfolio that fooked quite different at year end from
12 months earhier Having launched new scnpted brand BBC First
in Australa the previous year, we began to roli out two further
genre brands BBC Bnt in factual entertainment and BBC Earth in
prermium factual in the year Major launch markets for our new
channel brands included Poland, the Nordics, South Afnca and
Latin America We ended the year with 12 of our 33 intemational
channel feeds carrying the new genre brands, making BBC Earth
and BBC First availlable in at least 40 countnes and BBC Bnt in
61 Audience and affilate reaction has largely been positive, and
wa will continue to re-brand most of our other channels in the
year ahead Distnbution and revenue for the BBC World News
channel, for which we provide an affilate and advertising sales
sarvice globally, along with AMCN in the USA, also increased in
the year

Digital developments

Qur dwect to consumer focus extended beyond linear channels
Novamber saw the launch of BBC Store in the UK, which allows
viewers to buy and keep programmes they want to enjoy beyond
the 30 day hcence fee funded BBC iPlayer window Outstde the
UK, we spent the year working up plans and partnerships for over
the top services (OTT), namely a subscnption ‘best of British’
archive proposition that we wilk launch in the USA in 2016, and an
authenticated TV player to complement our existing channels in
Asia, which will also launch later this year in Singapore

BBC com, the intemational wetsite, for which BBC Worldwide
sells advertising and creates nternational feature sections,
continued to builld on the previous year's success, reaching an
average of 89 tm monthly unique browsers (2014/15 85 5m) and
generating 1 1bn page views Our six features sections also
achieved ongoing growth, attractng a monthly average of
11m unique browsers (2014/15 8 3m), up 38% year on year

Efficlencies

Agamnst the context of the market changes, particulary the
content costs outhned above, and the wider BBC efforis to reduce
operating costs across the Group, we worked particularly hard on
our operational cost base in the year In total we ended the ysar

with 176 fewer employees than 12 months previousty, a reduction
equivalent to some 9% of our workforce This resulted in in-year
savings of some £10 8m versus prior year, with an addibonal
£4 6m savings expected in the next financial year This has
enabted us 1o Invest to meet clients’ and audiences’ future needs,
while maintaining our financial performance in the face of very
real margin pressure While this involved some difficult decisions,
| believe we can nonetheless keep the company compettive and
appropnately investad in to achieve growth goals for the longer
term

Culture

I would like to thank BBC Worldwide's employees for approaching
this exercise with such professionalism Our overail company
engagement score of 70% remained well above the global market
norm of 55% We made good progress on adoptng a commoen
way of working and behaving in every one of our offices a
‘commitment’ developed out of feedback from employees, and
designed to ensure everyone I1s able to contnbute their very best
work here Building on those insights, we also introduced a global
employee awards scheme to racogmise exceptional effort and
achievement, as well as a new training curnculum Wae now have
a network of over 40 Team Worldwide ‘Champions’ across our
global offices, running very active interest communities from arts
to sports, and planning a range of activities to benefit employees
and our local communities alike

Before closing, | would bnefly like to pay tnbute to two CFOs for
their service duning the year Andrew Bott who, after more than a
decade with the company, and two years in this role, left in
January for a Group CFO role at FremantieMedia, and Suzanne
Burrows, who covered the role on an intenm basis over the busy
year-and period untl May, when we were Joined by permanent
CFO Tom Fussell Both deserve my personal thanks, as well as
those of the company's stakeholders

The year ahead

As a resull of all activity outhned here, we enter the new financial
year on the back of strong resulls, with positive prospects We
take confidence from the full-year effect of cost efficiencies and
strong financial discipline, and a content slate that mcludes a
fourth senes of Sherfock, Doctor Who companion piece Class,
88-GB, The Collection, the afi-new Top Gear, and Planet Earth If,
Sir David Attenborough's sequel to the globally successful natural
history programme We do, however, anticipate further market
change in the year ahead, with the nsing cost and accassibiity of
premium content a partcular concem We will nonetheless
continue to target further top line growth and another strong year
of returns

Tim Davie
Chief Executive, BBC Worldwide and Director, Globat
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A global content partner

A strong year in content

2015/16 saw us deltver another unnvalled content slate, with top-seliing tittes includmg Doctor Whoe S9, Orphan Black $3, The Hunt,
War and Peace and Sherfock The Abommable Bnde, with the last being sold to 216 terntones There were further format sales of Top
Gear and The Great Bake Off, while new format successes included You're Back i the Room

Against a backdrop of industry consolidation, new market entrants and the nsing cost of content, we remained committed to our
strategy of focusing our investment into premium content We invested £161 6m i content (2014/15 £180 5m), down on the previous
year due to the full year effect of the pan-disposal of BBC AMERICA, but with the underlying rate broadly consistent year on year

An integral part of the BBC

BBC content remains vitalty important to our business, with 55% of revenue generated from content made by BBC Production, now
BBC Studios In return, our funding underpins many programmes seen on screen by licence fee payers in 2015/16, we invested
£92 7m 1n BBC-commissioned content {2014/15 £94 4m) This supported programmes across the BBC's domestic channels, with
stand-out successes from BBC Production including Luther S4 and Thirteen

Other innovative ways of supporting BBC content-making ncluded investment in Naturai History Unit purchases of 4K cameras and
in the ncreased post-production costs of delivering in UHD+HDR, with Planet Earth /| being the first senes to benefit The pilot of
Getaway Car came out of a Top Gear spin-off development project jointly funded by BBC Worldwide and BBC Entertainment

With changes to BBC Production underway, we plan for BBC Studios to be a key strategic pariner, remaining central to
BBC Worldwide's content stratagy

Nurturing future tatent

Nurturing on and off screen talent 1s 2 core part of our business and helps to support UK creatwity In the year we furthered this
commitment through new development schemes The Paper to Pitch Fund aids the development of new formats, helping indies and
BBC Production brng thewr 1deas closer to commission and strengthening our pipeline The response has been overwhelming, with
several shows In davelopment We have also worked with our production partners to increase the opportunity for new writers to secure
commissions n the UK or internationally, with targeted support to fast-track development and strengthen our relationship with emerging
talent

Building creative partnerships

As well as working with the BBC's in-house producton arm, BBC Wordwide works with over 250 UK independent production
companies, who choose to partner with us This year, we deepened long-standing relationships with indies and forged new ones,
including equity stakes in Amazing Productions, Mighty Productions, Red Planet Pictures (Entertainment) and Greentird Media

We drove creative deal-making facilitating international co-productions such as The Hunt, bnnging on board dignal partners like
Amazon for Lookout Point and Artis Pictures Production's The Collection, secunng deails beyond the TV screen with Shanghal Media
Group for the Earth One Amazing Day (wit) feature film, and forming innovative pantnershups with new content-makers, such as
YouTubers Joe Sugg and Caspar Lee

Looking ahead

2016/17 prormises to be another stellar yaar of content. We continued to focus our investment on premium content, notably in high-end
drama, entertainment and natural history We have secured natural history landmark senes for the next five years and during the
course of 2015/16 committed to a large number of investments in programmes delivering in 2016/17 and beyond These included
Pianet Earth li, Top of the Lake 52, the Top Gear re-launch and Doctor Who spin-off Class

The market for Enghsh language drama has continued its raptd growth and the BBC has been a strong player in thus market, with
runaway giobal hits such as War and Peace We plan o keep around half of our content spend in drama in the coming year
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Chief Financial Officer’s review

BBC Worldwide's new CFO, Tom Fussell, joined the company in May However, given the tming of his amval, | am presenting this
year's financial review, having been intenm CFQ for the last quarter of the year and dunng the preparation of this set of accounts

1 Headline results

Headline sales Headline profit
£m 16/16 1415 1516 14/15
Reported resuit 10204 10018 1338 1388
BBC AMERICA impact’ - (367) - 99)
Underlying result 1,029 4 965 1 1338 128.7

" The overall impact differs from the separately disclosed seven months of headline sales and profit recorded in 2014715 due to the subsequent share of BBC AMERICA profit
recordad in both years and the Impact of intragroup eliminations as content sales to BBC AMERICA are no longer being elminated as an internal sale

Headline results
Headline sales of £1,029 4m (2014/15 £1,001 8Bm) were up 2 8%, a very good achievement in a changing market As the CEO review

points out on page 4, this was equivalent to underlying growth in headling sales of 6 7% as the sale of a 49 9% Interest in our US
channel, BBC AMERICA, in 2014 meant the prior year's results benefited from saven months of full ownership, contributing £53 7m to
headline sales (creating a year-on-year BBC AMERICA sales impact of £36 7im) The major growth drivers were healthy trading with
SVOD services in a number of terniories, continuing growth at our UK joint venture, UKTV, and a music licensing agreement While the
protiferation of SVOD services brought new opportunities to exploit our extensive catalogue, this growing revenue stream s also
currently concentrated in a handful of dominant partners, whose commissioning and acquisition strategies reman under developmant

Headline profit of £133 Bm (2014/15 £138 6m) was also up 4 0% (after adjusting far a £9 9m year-on-year BBC AMERICA impact)
despite 2 second year of investment in the transibion to new channel brands Margin erosion on content sales has continued in the year
following pronaunced increase m the costs of content These costs, as a proportion of content sales, have increased by almost 10% in
the past two years A headline profit margin of 13 0% (2014/15 13 8%) reflected this inflabonary pressure, i part but not wholly
mitigated through an active programme of efficiencies undertaken in the year

2015/16 saw a marginal benefit to revenue and a small profit downside from foreign exchange movements This was the net effect of a
number of currancy hedges and a weaker pound against our key currencies of the US doliar and the Euro, partrcularly in the key fast

quarter of the year

On a geographic basis, we delivered underying growth in headline sales n every one of our regions A decline in headiine sales on an
actual basis in North Amenca reflected the impact of BBC AMERICA descnbed above, and In Australia and New Zealand reflected the
waakerung of the Australian dollar dunng the year Headline profit, after agan adjusting for the impact of BBC AMERICA, was up n all
geographical segments, aside from Wastern Eurape, where the business was affected by investment in new channel launches, the
closure of a small number of channel feeds and its above-average exposure to Increased content costs UK profitatulity was boosted in
part by the aforementioned music hcensing agreement

2 Segmental results

Headline sales Headline profit
£m 15/16 1415 15/16 14115
United Kingdom 379 3 3618 624 527
North Amenca 2779 299 @ 242 329
Westem Europe 1680 160 1 210 270
Australia and New Zealand 791 819 192 163
Rest of World 1377 1162 54 52
Elirunations (12 6) {18 1) 16 45
Total 1,029 4 1,001 8 1338 138 6

While we manage our company by region, we are this year also providing our resuits by business area With these changes we beleve
our transparency to be at least in line with the best-in-class i our sector, as set out in table 3 below

3 Results by business area

Headline sales Headline profit
£m 15/16 14/15 15/16 14/15
Content Sales 3842 324 4 682 627
Branded Services 3357 3705 497 554
Production & Formats 1730 1630 1086 158
Consumer Products 1791 197 6 69 34
Elmmnations (42 6) (53 7) (16) 13
Total 1,029.4 1,001 8 1338 138 6

The business classifications hava been updated dunng the current yaar to better reflact the Board s operational view of the business The Board views the business based on
four business line segments Branded Servicas (includes prior year's channels business as well a3 Ad Sales and BBC store) Contert Sales includes Production and
Formats, and Consumer Products The previously reported Other business hines have baen realiocated across these four segments

7




BBC Worldwide Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2016

Chief Financial Officer’s review (continued)

In Content Sales, growth of 18 4% speaks to a stable business in free-to-air and pay-TV, as well as the SVOD growth mentioned
earher Headline sales in Branded Services (which includes our channels) increased 5 2% year on year, after adjusting for BBC
AMERICA Headiine profit was up 10 5% on the same basis Branded Services also includes the impact of a first full year of budd and
operating Investment in BBC Store In Production & Formats we delivered revenue growth of 6 1% Profitability was affected by a
greater proportion of our production income coming from lower margin scripted titles, some of which benefit from high end production
tax credits (captured as a tax benefit outside of pre-tax profit} Consumer Products, which includes DVD, remains a difficult category in
a market transittoning to digital product A revenue decline of 9 4% here reflects the downward trend in that market, which also
impacted profitability at the profit level this was offset by a music licensing agreement in the UK

Statutory results

One of the main differences between our headline results and the equivalent statutory measures relates to our invastments in
joint ventures and associales We include our share of joint venture revenue -- principally the results of UKTV - in headhline sales
We also include the pre-tax and pre-interest results of our joint ventures and associates in headline profit, rather than our share
of net profit, as included n the statutory measure We do this because we view thase mvastments as a fundamental part of our

ongoing activities

Headlne profit also excludes a number of non-statutory ‘specific items’ - pnncipally restructuring costs and other simiar
amounts customarily excluded from non - statutory measures — which heip to provide further clanty about cur underlying trading

performance
Our headline and statutory results are reconciled in table 4 befow.

4 Statutory results

1516 14115
Headhne profit 1338 13886
Share of interest and tax of joint ventures and associates (10 6} (94)
Pension deficit reduction payment {3 4) (8 1)
Other specific items (13 4) (4 8)
Gains on disposals 15 1159
Other gains and losses (4 6) (57)
Net finance expense {2 8) (27)
Profit before tax 100 5 223 8

Spacific items
Specific items are not defined under {FRS and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other companies Specific

items are matenal tems which are highighted by vitue of ther size or importance in order to enable a full understanding of our
performance

The presentation of these items i1s consistent with previous years

Specific items are noted in table 4 and netted to a total of £13 4m (2014/15 £4 Bm) The most significant item - recrganisation costs of
£12 8m - reflects the company's efficiency programme carned out in the year Reorgamisation costs i the previous year mainly related
to the relocation of our head office in London

Corporate activity

Corporate activity in the year, in line with the content investment strategy set cut on page 6, focused on shareholdings i ndependent
production companies, four in the UK, as well as a majonty shareholding in the strategically important market of South Afnca We also
invested further m German production vehicle Tower Productions These investments help us to enhance our content pipeline in an
increasingly competitive market while also benefiting from a greater share of the success of hitles produced through these partnerships




BBC Worldwide Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2016

Chief Financial Officer’'s review (continued)

Employees
§ Average number of amployees

15/16 14/15
United Kingdom 460 438
North America 360 446
Western Europe 315 324
Australia and New Zealand 179 197
Rest of World 450 424
Total 1,764 1,829

Average headcount In the year was 1,764, down from 1,629 in 2014/15 The reduction In heads reflects the full year impact of
transfernng BBC AMERICA employees to AMC Networks (AMCN) in October 2014, as well as further reductons following the
efficiency programme undertaken in the year, offset by an increase for BEBC Advertising and BBC Store Employee numbers by region
are detasled in the table above

Tax
The majenty of our profits anse in the UK, where we are headquartered, and our main exposures to tax anse n the UK, the USA and

Australia The group does not adopt aggressive tax planning measures

Our fotal tax charge for the year was £14 9m (2014/15 £38 3m) gving an effective tax rate of 14 8% (2014/15 17 1%} The prior year
tax charge included £26 6m in respect of BBC AMERICA, including tax incurred on the proceeds of the sale The impact of this
disposal, coupled wrth the hgher rate of tax in the USA, largely explains the overall reduction in our effective tax rate

Our tax rate 15 lower than the standard UK corporate rate largely due to the inclusion of our post-tax joint venture and associate profits
in pre-tax income, as well as the production tax credits we receive on our UK-based production activity

Cash and net debt
Operating cash flow of £152 3m (2014/15 £191 Om) reflects mvestment in working capital, particularly for digital content sales, ofiset in
part by working capital released from production actwty and a reduction in tax paid due to lower taxable profits and timing of tax

payments

The previous year saw a cash inflow from the partial disposal of BBC AMERICA, we received the remaining deferred proceeds in the
year This allowed us again to supplement returns to our parent, albeit it to a lesser extent than last year

Notwithstanding the boost that this transaction gave us both this year and last, our total sharsholder retum of £222 2m (2014/15
£226 5m), as descnbed n the Chairman’s statement, 1s close to last years record These retums primarily capture our comporate
dividends and investment in BBC commissions, with the balance made up of brand licences and other smaller contributions to our

parent

Average net debt throughout the year was £77 8m (2014/15 £32 4m) and we ended the year with net debt of £122 1m (2014/15
£69 2m) Our debt facility with BBC Commercial Holdings Limited prowidas us with a maximum faciity of £202 2m, of which the final
£30 0m 15 conditional on an equivalent holding in cash

Looking forward

BBC Worldwide begins the new financial year with a strong slate and future pipeline of content, with over a thurd of our 33-strong
portfalio of owned and operated channels under new BBC brands, and well-advanced plans for direct-to-consumer digital products In a
number of key markets While we face market conditions that are changeable, with a relatively high degree of industry and consumer
turbulence, these attributes nonetheless mean that we are well-equipped to continue to serve existing and new clients, audiences and
partners with the premmm Bntish content on which our business has founded its success over many years

Suzanne Burrows
Interim Chuef Financial Officer, (January — May 2016) BBC Worldwide
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United Kingdom

Growth at a time of investment

Our United Kingdom business exists to extend audiences’ enjoyment of the BBC programmes they love Highlights this year included
the launch of BBC Store, a new refationship with YouTube stars Joe Sugg and Caspar Lee, and growth in content sales

We deliverad a year of sigruficant growth, with particulasrly strong performance from UKTV and content sales Headhne sales were up
4 8% to £379 3m (2014/15 £361 8m), while headline profit was up 18 4% at £62 4m (2014/15 £52 Tm)

A strong content pipeline saw our content sales business enjoy 8 5% year-on-year growth, with the continuation of agreements with
Amazon and a renewal with Netflix Our 50% ownership of UKTV, a joint venture with Scripps Networks Interacuve, Inc, remained a
core contributor to our portfolo UKTV reported revenue and profit growth in the 12 months to 31 December 2015 of 12 7% and 10 5%
respectively, made around £148m investment in content and related launches, while delivening recard share of commercial mpacts of
9 3%, with BBC programmes featunng tn an average 41% of UKTV’s schedule but accounting for 47% of all impacts

We expanded in digital, launching BBC Store, which enables UK audiences to buy, download and keep BBC programmes, from recent
hits such as Happy Valfley to TV favountes ike Only Fools and Horses At year end the service offered audiences almost 8000 hours,

making it the largest coltection of BBC programmes avallable to own

Our focus on profitability, along with wider digial availability of titles through BBC Store, led us to close our retall website, BBC Shop

Investment in BBC Good Food resulted m bbegoodfood com recording a 22 0% year-on-year increase in unique browsers and an all-
time high of 20 5m n December alone, up 13 5% The magazine held on to the top spotin the Ccre Food magazine market We also

relaunched topgear com

Our DVD and download businesses enjoyed widespread distnbution thanks to a steady stream of BBC tuts including Peter Kay's Car
Share, War and Peace and Doctor Fostor We worked with YouTube stars Joe and Caspar to release their first DVD At launch, Joe &
Caspar Hit the Road achieved the biggest day one pre-orders for any title on Amazon co uk in 2015

The UK hcensing business continued to deliver globa! best in class partnerstups that enable fans to engage with our brands We
announced Fisher Pnce as the master toy hicensee for Go Jetfers and launched Doctor Who LEGO® sets, with Doctor Who also
teaturing alongside Hollywood movie properties in the Warner Bros Interactive Entertainment video game LEGO® DIMENSIONS

We extended our publishing deal with Penguin Random House, which became the global publisher and distnibutor of BBC Audio
content Meanwhile in March we completed the licensing agreement of our extensive Radio and Music rights catalogue

2015/16 was also a busy year for our Live Entertainment business The Docfor Who Festival attracted over 14,000 visitors over three
days in November We also announced a new partnership with events company SME to bnng Countryfile Live to audiences in August

2016

As we move in to 2016/17 we will continue to operate multiple routes to market, protect the profit in our physical revenue streams and
invest for growth in our digital businesses
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North America
Building global brands

Our largest business outside the UK, BBC Worldwide North Amenca operates in a hghly competitive media market An unparalleted
supply of Bntish programming ensured ongoing success in content sales, co-productions and strategic parinerships Our LA-based
studios ~— BEC Worldwide Productions and Adpacent Produchons — also remained strong, producing formats and onginats

2015/16 marked the first full year for BBC Worldwide North Amenca without BEC AMERICA consolidated into s financial results,
following the sale of a 49 9% stake to AMCN Headline sales and profit fell from £299 9m to £277 9m and £32 9m to £24 2m, manly
due to reduced ownership in BBC AMERICA Howaver, once adjusting for the derecognition of BBC AMERICA, headline sales saw
underlying growth of 5 6% helped by strong sales in SVOD, resulting in 5 5% underlying profit growth

BBC AMERICA's success continued with increased awareness and viewer engagement In a year (n which two-thirds of US
entertainment networks posted declines, BBC AMERICA recorded its best year ever in total viewers Doctor Who S9, Orphan Black 83
and Top Gear 522 helped to more than double the network’s audience average

Drama helped dnive growth in the Adult 25-54 demographic with Broadchurch 52 and Luther 4, the latter delivening a 37% ncrease
from series three Qut of 121 returning dramas In the USA, 16 recorded Adult 25-54 audience growth on pnor senes, three of these

ared on BBC AMERICA

Luthers Idns Elba eamed Crtics’ Choice and Screen Actors Guild Awards, and Golden Globe® and NAACP Image Award
nominations, and Tatiana Maslany received her first Emmy® nomination for Orphan Black

BBC Worldwide Praductions’ it show Dancing with the Stars continued to delight audiences with two new senes for ABC, and retained
its position as a Top 10 most watched entertanment prograreme, wiuch has held for the past decade Meanwhile, Adjacent
Productions’ onginal senes for National Geographic Channel, Life Below Zero, was the channel's number one programme for a third

year

PBS and BBC AMERICA deals underpinned the US co-production strategy, resulting i projects hke Big Blue Lve with PBS and
Thirtean with BEBC AMERICA We also signed Vikings Unearthed and Undercover in the year with these partners

The Doctor Who brand continued to grow across North Amenca in 2016/16 A significant deal was signed towards year-end granting
Amazon exclusive US SVOD nghts for the senes, allowing us to maximise digital revenue and reach new audiences In Canada, a
new, exclusive multi-ptatform licensing agreement for Doclor Who was signed with Bell Media for its terrestnal channe! Space and
SVOD service, CraveTV™ These deals helped boost overall digital content sales, by over 60% year on year

In the USA and Canada, cinema events for BBC intellectual property have become a new revenue dnver, with Sherlock The
Abommable Bride selling over 180,000 tickets at the beginning of 2016

BBC com traffic grew by 7 4% ~ reaching almost 39m unigue browsers each month With a focus on immersive content and social
audience development, the feature sections were the site’s fastest growing areas, increasing 40 0% year-on-year to 7 2m unique
browsers Meanwhile, BEC Advertising welcomed a significant uplift in the second half of 2015/16, with 12 7% year-on-year growth,
largely dniven by features content, programmatic sales and video

In the year ahead, we plan to evolve the strategy further and capitalise an technology advances with the launch of a new OTT SVOD
sarvice tn the USA The service will support our ambition to grow our content offering and reach audiences looking for British
pragrammes, while complementing the programming on BBC AMERICA and with other partners
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Australia and New Zealand

Strong across all businesses

BBC Worldwide Australia and New Zealand welcomed another year of growth, attnbutable to a number of factors including strong
established partnerships, a proliferabon of new ventures and the continued quality and breadth of our channel and content sales

businesses

The Australia and New Zealand business strategy delivered well, with § 3% headline sales growth in local currency, continuing with the
growth achieved in 2014/15 Translated into sterking, headline sales were £79 1m (2014715 £81 9m) while profits increased to £19 2m
{2014/15 £16 3m)

in #s first full year BBC First sustained strong audiences, reaching over 3m viewers and attracting a broader audience for dramas
including Banished, the channel's first locally commissioned utle Aiwred in June 2015, the senes became the hughest rating title across
all plays on BBC First, with a senes audience average of 1 8m Throughout the year the channef's tentpole titles — Cail the Midwife,
War and Peace and The Night Manager — regularly appeared in the Top 10 rating ttles on the Foxtel platform

2015/16 was an exceptional year for CBeebies, which defivered a 100% ratings increase on last year, with notable tiles such as Hey
Duggee BBC UKTV delivered a 7 1% increase n audience share on the previous year in Australta, while in New Zealand it recorded
its highest share in over three years at 3 8% Our first full year on Fetch TV, and ther growth in subscnbers, also supported channel
growth far BBC First, BBC UKTV and BBC Knowledge in Australia The strength of the subscription television market, a full year of
BBC First and significant sponsorship growth across our channels resulted in our advertising revenue recording a 19 9% increase
yaar on year and 19 5% increase n profit

We continued to reap the benefits of cur new sales mode, rolled out in 2014, focusing on showcasing premium drama titles on BBC
Furst These included Doctor Foster, Wolf Hall, The Honourable Woman and popular retuming senes Call the Midwife and Death in
Paradise The new sales agreement enabled ABC to broadcast important titles in a second window with some first window
programmes too Nine secured The Hunt as a pre-sale title, while Ten acquired a package of popular natural history titles featuring
Shark and a range of Sir David Attenborough documentanes

tn our digital sales business, a new deal with Foxtel's streaming platform Presto saw 122 tities made available to their customers and
increased our offening in the digital arena to 17 platforms In a first for premium BBC drama distrnbution in Austrahia, Sherfock The
Aborminable Brnide premiered on SVOD senace Stan

TV format sates saw the 15th senes of Dancing with the Stars on Seven in Australia and the retum of the format in New Zealand after a
six-year break, alongside new productions of Rachel Khoo's Kitchen Notebook Melbourne for SBS and The Great Australian Bake Off
for Lifestyle FOOD 2016 wll see six new format commussions air, Including the hypnosis entertainment show You're Back in the Room
for Nine and TVNZ and a first senes of Coast and Mastermind for TVNZ, while Coast retums to The History Channel tater this year

Away from programming we extendad our live entertainment offerings to audiences, hosting Australia's first official Doctor Who Festival
and a three-day event for YouTube stars Joa Suggs and Caspar Lee, with tickets to the duo's show selling out wathin 20 minutes and
two further shows added We were also delighted to announce BBC Proms Austraha, which took place shorily after year end over four
days in Apnil, and marked the first ime the BBC Proms had been held outside the UK in this way In addition, wildlife presenter Steve
Backshall scld over 35,000 tickets across Austraia on his debut Deadly 60 tour

We did encounter some challenges within the year, most notably due to rapid changes in the online retail market These changes, and
the decline of the DVD market, led us to close BBC Shop Australia in March and withdraw from the consumer products wholesale

market

As we progress into the coming year our focus will remain on growing key business areas, iooking for new growth opportunities and
championing partnerships to ensure we reman on course to keep delivering against our strategy
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Global Markets

Growing international reach

It has been a record year for revenue in our Global Markets business Consisting pradominantly of the non-English speaking world,
Global Markets now generaies 30% of BBC Worldwide's total revenue

Global Markets regions, reported as Westem Europe and Rest of World - the latter consisting of CEMA (Central and Eastern Eurape,
Middle East and Afnca), Asia and Latin America — have seen headline sales grow on prior year, and cumulatively delivered headhne
sales of £305 7m (2014/15 £278 3m) The sales growth was drniven by strong content sales, the licensing of more UK formats than
ever before and the continued roll-out of our new genre brands BBC Bnt, BBC Earth and BBC First

Profit, down 18 0% to £26 4m (2014/15 £32 2m), has been depressed by investment in the new genre brands and the Increased cost
of confent

We reached new audiences by buillding and strengthening our channe! brands and finding new homes for our content We launched
four new channel feeds and relaunched seven, including South Africa where ail three brands were introduced, and Singapore, where
BBC Earth became the most watched factual pay-TV ¢hannel in December and January, just two months after launching Branded
blacks were secured across OTT and free-to-air platforms including all three genre brands on Watchever in Germany, BBC Earth on
TVN in Chile and BBC Fust on AXN Mystery in Japan We worked with a wide range of new digital entrants, both local and global,
while mamntaining ssles to traditional chents such as SVT in Sweden, where the premiere of War and Peace achieved an
unprecedentad 33 5% audience share Elsewhers, we engaged fans beyond TV with the roli-out of a CBeebies app in Latin and
Hispanic Amenca, and the theatncal release of Sherfock The Abomtnable Bnde, which topped box offices from Russia and South

Korea to Hong Kong and China

To capitaise on demand for lacal versions of our shows we strengthened our production and formats businesses Our French
production base achieved ancther successful year with five shows featunng in pnmetime including new commussions Afelier Deco (Fill
Your House for Free) and Hypnoss, Le Grand Jeu (You're Back in the Room) Qur Indian production business increased the number of
shows on arr including a Hindi version of Torught's the Night for Star Plus and dally drama D Ko Aaj Phir Jeene Ki Tamanna Hat for
Doordashan National, the country's leading public service channel

We built our production footprnt by setting up BBC Worldwide Productions Nordics n Denmark and signing an exciusive preduction
agreement with Nordisk Film TV as well as purchasing a majonty stake in Rapid Blue n South Afnca In Germany we invested further
in Towar Productions, which produced a number of popular titles for the local market as well as co-developing onginal commission One
in a 1000 with German public service broadcaster ZDF These iniiatives will help us bnng more world-class formats to local viewers,
buiiding on our current successes In this area Series two of Top Gear China attracted over 300m views across digital platforms, local
versions of The Greal Bake Off proved popular in Brazil, South Africa and Romania, and Colomina’s RCN gave Dancing with the Stars

a 55-episode maiden run

Partnerships have also been significant In India we joined forces with Sony Corporation subsidiary Multi Screen Media on the
forthcoming channel Sony BBC Earth In China, we have gone from strength to strength, cementing partnership status with major
broadcast and digital networks, including working with Shanghai Media Group on the Sherfock theatnca! release and forthcoming big
screen event Earth One Amazing Day (wi) and the signing of a memorandum of understanding with Mango TV, the internet platform
of Hunan broadcasting system CCTV also becama one of the international co-production partners (alongside 8BC AMERICA and
NDR Naturfiim} on natural tustory landmark The Hunt — one of many examples of international money contrbuting to the funding of

premium Bnbsh televisien

As well as a new affillate deal with belN to launch CBeebies in the Middle East and North Africa, major affillate renewals were also
secured amid difficult market conditions This gives us a more settied channels environment, allowing us to concentrate on growing
reach and, In some markets, advertising sales and to target growth opportunities in digital in the year ahead

The strategic report, as set out on pages 4 roved by the Board on 13 June 2016 and signed on its behalf by

Tim Davie
Chief Executive, BBC Worldwide and Director, Global
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BBC Woridwide Executive Committee

Marcus Arthur President, UK, Eire, ANZ and BBC Advertising
Marcus moved into his current role in 2013 He is responsible for BBC Worldwide's businesses in the UK, Ewre, ANZ and for
BBC Advertising Marcus Joined BBC Worldwide in 1991 and has held roles including Manag:ng Director, BBC Magazines, and MD of
Brands, Consumers and New Ventures

Tim Davie Chief Executive, BBC Werdwide and Director, Global
Tim took up his current role in 2013 He is also Chairman of Comic Relief, a Trustee of the Tate and Vice-Chair of the RTS During his
11 years at the BBC, Tim has held the positions of Acting Direclor-General, Director of Audio & Music and Director of Marketing,
Communications & Audiences Prior to this, he worked at PepsiCo and Procter & Gambtle

Paul Dempsey President, Global Markets

Paul took up his current role in 2013 He 1s responsible for buillding BBC Worldwide's portfolio across predominantly non-English
speaking termitones, known collectively as Global Markets Paul joined BBC Worldwide in 1998 His previous roles include Interm CEQ
and MD Consumer Products

Charlotte Elston Director of Communications

Charlotte joined BBC Worldwide as Director of Communications in 2010 She oversees al! areas of communications globally including
external PR, internal communications, corporate affairs and events Charlotte has previously worked at Aegis Group plc, Pearson,
Brunswick and Edelman PR

Martyn Freeman General Counsel & Company Secretary

Martyn was appointed to his current role 1n 2011 He has responsibility for ail legal, business affairs, policy and regulatory matters and
from January 2015 became Company Secretary Previously, Martyn held a vanety of roles across the BBC, including Head of Business
Affarrs, Radio & Music, Factual & Learning and News

Kirstin Furber People Director

Kirstin is responstble for Human Resources across BBC Worldwide She was appointed to this position in 2013, having previously been
SVP HR Pror to joining BBC Worldwide, Kirstin held roles at Twentieth Century Fox, Discovery Channel, Ziff Dawis, Warner Bros and
Granada Media Group

Tom Fussell Chief Financial Officer

Tom began his role with BBC Worldwide 1In May 2016 He joined from Shine Group, where he was CFO for two years and successfully
completed the sale of Shine into a new joint venture, as part of s merger with Endemol Pnor to this Tom held positions at
HarperColins, Random House and the BBC Tom 1s a Fellow of the Institule of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales

David Gibbons Chief Operations Officer

David i1s responsible for dnving the operating modet of the company He s functionally accountable for Global Operations, Global
Business Services and oversight of our relatonship with the newly established BBC Technology division He joined BBC Worldwide in
2013 Pnor to this he held semor leadership positions in SEEK, GE Capital, Gap and Nike

Heien Jackson Chief Content Officer

Helen became Chief Content Officer tn 2013 She oversees the creative and commercial vision for BBC Worldwide's content strategy,
covering commissioning, development and acquisiion activity, channels’ curation and editonial standards Helen previously established

BBC Worldwide's Indie Unit
Jackie Lee-Joe Chief Marketing Officer

Jackie took up the position of CMO in November 2015, joining from Skype, where she was Global Drector for Audience, Entertainment
Marketing & Broadcast Media Jackie has over 20 years of marketing expenence in biue chip brands including Virgin Mobile, Carphone
Warehouse and Orange

David Moody Director of Strategy

David I1s responsible for all aspects of the company's direction and strategy David joined B8C Worldwde in 2004 He previously held
roles in BBC Ventures, The LEK Partnership, Singapore Telecom Intemational and United News & Media and co-founded Dataroam

Ann Sarmoff President, BBC Wortdwide North Amenca

Appointed to this position in 2015, Ann 1s responsible for driving growth and profit across the company’s diversified business divisions
tin the USA and Canada Ann was promoted to President from COO and prior to joining BBC Worldwide, she worked as President, Dow
Jones Ventures, and as Executive Vice President, Consumer Products and Business Development at Viacom
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Corporate governance report

At any tme n the year, there were six Directors of the company
Four Non-executive Directors Tony Hall (BBC Director-General)
as Chairman, Anne Bulford (Managing Diector, Finance &
Operations, BBC), Dharmash Mistry and Sir Howard Stnnger
There were also two executve Owrectors Tim Davie
(Chief Executive, BBC Worldwide and Director, Globa!)
and Andrew Bott (Chief Financial Officer, BBC Worldwide)

in November, Andrew Bott took the decision to leave BBC
Worldwide and stood down with immediate effect as a Director of
the company A search for a permanent Chief Financial Officer
(CFO} culminated in the appointment of Tom Fussell on 3 May
2016 as CFO and a Duector of the company Dunng the period
botween November 2015 and May 2016, Martyn Freeman
(General Counsel & Company Secretary, BBC Worldwide) was
temporanly appointed as a Direclor until January, when Suzanne
Burrows took up the Directorstup as interim CFO until 3 May

Principal respansibility for the day-to-day managemant of BBC
Worldwide rests with the BBC Worldwide Executive commiitee
(WEX), which 1s chared by the Chief Executive (CEO), Tim Davia
Further information about WEx may be found at
www bbcworldwide com

WExX delegates authonty to two principal groups the Content
Investment Group {CIG) and the Investment Review Group (IRG)

The pnmary funcion of CIG s to ensure that all content
investment decisions are taken in line with the approved financial
guidelines and our overall busingss strategy It is responsibie for
reviewing and executng our global content strategy and
recommends changes where necessary CIG also approves
investments for content distnbution and broadcast nghts as well
as momitoring our content pipeline in the context of performance
and strategic development Investments reviewed this year
included Class and Getaway Car CIG 1s chaired by the Controller
of Content Investment and s responsible for ali content
investment decisions between £500,000 and £2m For those in
excess of £2m, CIG reviews and recommends such investment
proposals to WEXx for approval

IRG 1s responsibls for reviewing and approving non-content
financial Investments, including proposats relating to independent
production company funding arrangements above £1m For
investments that are greater than £2m, IRG reviews and
recommends those investments to WEx for approval IRG s
chaired by the CFO

Commercial Criteria and Falr Trading Framework

The BBC's Royal Charter and Agreement requires all of the
BBC's commercial actvities to comiply with the four Commerctal
Cntena (4CC) As such, our activities must

« fit with the BBC's Public Purposes,
« not jeopardise the good reputation of the BBC or the value of

the BBC brand,

15

« extbit commercial efficiency, and

« comply with the BBC Trust's Fair Trading Palicy, the BBC's
Far Tradmg Guidelines and, in particular, avoid distorting the
market

The 4CC approvals framework 15 embedded within our
governance structure and ensures that key projects and
investments are subject to ngorous evaluaton, ensunng
compliance with each of the 4CCs pnor to the start of the service
or, whera ralevant, the completion of any equity transacton

The BBC's Fair Trading arrangements (which include the 4CC
approvals arrangements) have been accredited with the SO
9001 2008 gquahty standard and are subject fo scrutiny by
independent auditors commussicned by the BBC

Editonal standards

We are required to meet the standards set out in the BBC's
Editonal Guidelines and the Advertising and Sponsorship
Guidelnes for BBC Commercial Services We operate a
comprehensiva framework which sets out clear editonal
accountabiity for each business area and have a dedicated
Editonial Standards team providing training, support and advice
across the company

Privacy, infermation and content security

Consumers, talent, employees and parners trust us with ther
personal nformation and expect us to protect thew pnvacy
Our data protection and secunty programmes govern how we
collect, use and manage ther nformation from safeguarding
confidentiality and respecting their permissions and preferences,
to protecting and secunng their information Within the year, our
prvacy framework was audited by the BBC's Internal Audit
function and was found to be operating to satisfactory standards
of control

As a company that prides ourselves an the quality of the content
we commission and create, it 1s vital we protect marketing and
promotional assets, scripts and programmes from unauthonsed
release With this in mind, we have continued to develop our
content security framework as part of a wider project focused on
the secunty of our information assets

Our employees are an integrai part of protecting and respecting
information Over the last 12 months, further work has focused on
building a strong culture where our employees are abie to display
a good awareness of privacy and secunty risk We also revised
our Privacy and Information Secunty training module in line with
possible threats to the company, which we will rol-out to our key
content partners as part of a wider assurance inttiative in the new
financial year

A new European law, the General Data Protection Regulation
(GDPR), was finalised in Apri 2016, which will replace current
data protection laws it brings with it a range of enhanced
requiremsnts and substantially increased fines of up to 4% of
global tumover We will be reviewing and improving our
processes aver the next year to ensure we are comphant when
the GDPR comes into force in 2018
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Risk management

We are committed to supporting effective nsk management
practices to safeguard our people, reputaton, assets and
commercial performance These practices protect the reputation
of the BBC brand as we showcase it internationally through
branded services, content sales and other IP explaitation

Commercially, nsk management helps ensure stabilty of financial
returns to support the UK kcence fee Operationally, it ensures
continuity of operations and resilence agamnst unpredictable

events

Our approach to and assessment of reputational nsk i1s alrgned to
the 8BC's public purposes, values and editonal standards

Tim Davie, CEQO, along with WEx, has uluimate sign-off on
matters relating te nsk management A Risk Management and
Intemal Controls Commitiee compnsed of WEx members and
senior managers reviews and challenges our corporate nsk
register on a guarterly basis We ensure employees are aware of
the key nsk themes through communicating these via a number
of channels as detailed below

Risk themes

Strategic impacts

Mitigation

Brand, reputation and standards

Risk that audiences lose confidence in
the integnty of our business or our
content Risk we fal to represent the
values of the BBC to global audiences

Harm to our reputation,
our relationstup  with
audiences and to the
credibiity of the BBC
brand

Leadership and management behaviours that promote the
BBC wvalues embedded within our company's culture
Commitment to delivenng honest and open commurucations
Policy framework, intemal communications and HR processes
inform and demonstrate appropnate behaviours Inductions,
mandatory {raining and regular staff survey fo dnve
engagement

Indie and JV relationships

Risk we do not achieve the potental
from our indie, jomt venture (JV) and
associate  relationships,  principally
UKTV, BBC AMERICA and Immediate
Media

Under-delivenng
agatnst audience
expectations, and our
ambitons  for  the
relationship

Content and business expertise brought through representation
on indie and JV Boards Commitment that our objectives are
focused on creatvity and support content ambitions JV
formation 15 always backed by a detalled definiion of the JV
benefits, purpose, mechanics and governance, with appropriate
safeguards over editonal control The approvals framework,
encompassing BBC Public Service, ensure that potential deal
benefits to the UK licence fee payear are delivered

Market transformation and disruption
Risk that we do not adapt our content
and business strategy responsively
enough to meet audience pnorntes
and respond 1o disruptive competitors
In a consolidating market

Lower visibility for BBC
content internationally,
poor commercial
returns for indies and
for the UK lcence fee
payer

Strategy team supports the business and momitors market
changes Use expertse inherent in the business and in-depth
local knowledge of intermational markets in regions JV partners
bring insight and knowledge Intemal transformation projects to
anticipate market trends and ensure our sales strategy, sales
infrastructure, people skills and business relationships are n
the best place to respond to challenges

Content supply

Risk that ongoing acquisition and
consohdaton across the indie sector
restncts the addressable market for
nghts n pnionty genres Risk from BBC
Studios as it makes the transition to full
commercial operation

Volume,  affordability
and commercial appeal
of content at nsk Risk
to the brand and
channel strategies

Dedicated Content division with expartise in content acquisition
and relationship management Qutput deals with key indies and
investment stakes to increase our pipeline of creative output
Commitment to maximising indie retuns alongside the BBC
Store direct-to-consumer service and channels strategy

Channels and services

Risk that in-terntory we do not extract the
full value from our affihate relationships,
or the appropnate brand wisibiity or the
right premium vs frae-to-air channel mix
Risk thalt we do not achieve sufficient
scale in some regonal markets Risk to
launching new direct to consumer
service such as BBC Store and
forthcorming over the top offer in the
USA

Reduce our ability to
showcase BBC content
More  vulnerable to
disruptive digital
servicas Risk operating
with sub-scale regional
businesses

Expenenced ternational channels team with a proven track
record of leading negotiaions and managing successful
channel launches Ensure regions have extensive knowledge of
the affiliate landscape and the expertise to secure the nght
channel mx, platforms and relatonships Leadership
expenence and insight inte markets to ensure we attract the
nght partners, build effective reiationships and develop the best
propasitions in the context of global ambison and strategy
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Risk management (continued)

Risk themes

Strategic impacts

Mitigation

Information security
Risk that information security controls

are compromised and  systems
disrupted, data deleted or content
assets misappropnated

Damage to reputaton
Disclosed assets have
reduced edtonal or
commercial value
Disrupton to busmess
operatons  Loss of
data

New contant path defined for tugh-value content, including
dedicated infrastructure and a content handling team
Centrahsed global scluton for regional post-produchon
actviies New mformation secunty infrastructure capabilities,
additona! experise and resources, and a global network
convergence project in progress

Economic climate and trading
performance

Business performance 1s sensitive to UK
and nternational economic conditions,
especially in the USA and Australia, as
well as exchange rate movements

Adverse impact on cash
flows and repored
financial results

Business Is diversified across both regions and revenue
streams Central management of budgets and performance,
cash-flow forecasting and prudent debtor management Risk-
averse approach to foreign cumrency management

Regulatory and compiiance

Potential for non-compliance with UK
and ntermational laws, especially
regulatory changes and legislation with
extra-terntonal reach

Cvil or cnminal
challenge Financial
penaltes Reputational
damage

Rabust, enforced framework Including WEx sponsorship,
mandatory traimng programme, policies, guidelines, regular
reportng and specialist committees Oversight by BBC
Wordwide Board, WEx and Comphance Steenng Group
Central Business and Legal Affairs resources include specrahst
adwisers, regional expertise and local comphance champions
to support the framework

Business safety and
security
Risk of
infrastructure and
followming 2 major mnoident

global terronsm

continuity,

disruption  to  operations,
loss of revenue
Increase In

Potential  for  injury
or death Disruption to
business operations
Reputational damage

Secunty and safety management arrangements supported by
policy framework, communications, forums, guides, specialist
secunty and safety advice Offices and busmess operations
coverad by continuity ptans Intemational travel safety training
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Directors’ Report

Tha Directors present their report and the audiied consolidated financial staterments of BBC Wordwide Limited (the “Company™) and iis
subsidiary undertakings (together the "Group™ and the Group's interest in associated undertakings and jont ventures for the year
ended 31 March 2016

Principal activities of the Group

The trading activities of the Group focus on the acquisihon, development, exploitation, licensing and sale of intellectual property Rights
are acquired from BBC Public Service and from independent owners of intellectual property and are exploited through a number of
businessas, both wholly-owned and partly-owned through associates and jonl ventures, across multiple formats The business 1s
structured across seven geographical regions, these regions are grouped into four areas UK, North America, Austraha and New
Zealand and the rest of the world, principally non-Enghsh speaking markets, known collectively as Global Markets The two global
business areas, Content and Brands, set the strategic framework and parameters for actvities within the regions and keep a close
connection into BBC Worldwide's ultmate parent, the Bntish Broadcasting Corporation

Strategic Report

A review of business performance, including likely future developments, 1s included in the Strategic Report on pages 4 to 13 The
management of the business and the execution of the Group's strategy are subject to a number of isks The key business nsks and
uncertainttes affecting the Group are discussed on pages 16 to 17

Results and dividends
The consolidated profit for the year distnbutable to equity shareholders of the Company was £85 6m (2015 £185 5m)

Dividends of £105 5m (2015 £111 3m) were proposed and paid dunng the year and no further dvdends have been proposed by the
Directors post year end (2015 £nil)

Acquisitions and disposals

Dunng the financial year the Group acquired equity stakes in UK indspendent production companies Amazing Productions Limited,
Mighty Productions Limited and Red Planet Pictures (Entertainment) Lumited It also acquired a majonty stake in South Afncan
production company Rapid Blue (Pty) Limited Full details of the Group's acquisitions and disposals are included in the Chief Financial
Officer's Review on pages 7 to 9

Drirectors
The Directors who served dunng the year and until the date of this directors’ report were

Tony Hall (Chairman)

Tim Davie

Anne Bulford

Dharmash Mistry

Sir Howard Stringer

Andrew Bott (resigned on 9 November 2015}

Martyn Freeman (appointed 9 November 2015 and resigned on 29 January 2016)
Suzanne Burrows (appainted 29 January 2016 and resigned on 3 May 2016)
Tom Fussel! (appointed on 3 May 2016)

Golng concern

After malking enquines, the Directors have & reasonable expectation that the business has adequate resources to continue in
operationa) existence for the foreseeable future, and accordingly the going concern basis continues to be adopted th the preparation of
the accounts Further tnformation about the going concemn assumption 1s given in note 1b to the consolidated financial statements

Directors’ interests and Indemnities

No Director had any interest in the share capital of the Group at 1 Apnl 2015 or 31 March 2016 No nghts to subscnbe for shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other group company were granted to any of the Directors or ther immediate families, or exercised
by them, during the financial year Directors’ and Officers’ insurance cover was in place throughout the financial year as appropnate
Addihonally, an indemnity 1s in place for the Group's nominated Directors on the board of Australian entities and for BBC Worldwide
Limited Directors and Officers in respect of Branch operations in Australia The nominated Directors are held harmiess n relation to
legal claims against them in thew capacity as Directors and Officers, except in the event of fraud, dishonesty or witful default The
indemnity covers all habiity incurred by nominated Directors and Officers to the fullest extent permutted by Australian law and s
mtended to offer protection to the nomnated Directors and Officers in addition to the cover under the Group's Directors’ & Officers’

insurance policy
Disabled employees

The Group gives full consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons where the candidate’s particular aptitudes and
abilties are consistent with adequately meeting the requirements of the job  Opportunites are avalable to disabled employeas for
training, career development and promotion Where existing employees become disabled, it ts tha Group’s policy to provide continuing
employment wherever practicable in the same or an alternative position and to provide appropnate training to achievae thrs aim
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Employee involvement

The Company operates a framework for employee information and consullation which complies with the requirements of the
Information and Consultation of Employess Regulations 2004 Dunng the year, the policy of providing employees with informatien
about the Group has been continued through the BBC's intranet service, and employees have also been encouraged to present their
suggestions and views on the Group's performance through staff surveys Regular meetings are held between local management and
employees to allow a free flow of informatton and 1deas Employees participate  directly in the success of the business through
simphfied bonus arrangements

Statement as to disclosure of information to auditors

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directorg’ report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there 15 no
relevant audit information of which the Group's auditor is unaware and each Director has taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as a Diwector to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to estabiish that the Group's auditor 15 aware of

that mformation

Auditors
Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be desmed to ba reappointed and Emst & Young LLP will
therefore continue i office

By order of thefBpard,

%3

Martyn Freefnan Registered office.

Company Secretary Television Centre

13 June 2016 101 Wood Lane
London W12 7FA
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Report on Directors’ remuneration

Year ended 31 March 2016

We finalised our plans to simplfy our Reward offering this year Both Profit Share and Deferred Bonus plans are now closed and will
not be replaced Directors, senior managers and all other employees now have very simply structured pay packages, which comprise a
basic salary and a performance-related bonus that s at nsk if the required results are not achieved

Wherever possible, we use salary survey data to identify the pay range In the market for a specific role in a particular location As a
matter of policy we continue to pay at or below the market median in the UK and no more than 10% above the local market medtan
elsewhere In the year we tock the opportunity to regrade our rofes to better support career paths This work will form the foundations
of a globaf job grading structure that will ensure pay 15 correctly posiioned at all levels tn BBC Worldwide, which will be fully
implemented within the next financial year

The Sales Compensation Framework, developed with the aim of consistantly focusing our sales teams on delivenng the best possible
return to the BBC and our indie partners, was implemented in 2014/15, paying bonus to sales staff in proportion to targets achieved
We will continue to monitor the scheme, refining it as necessary, to ensure that it achieves maximum value for the BBC

Governance
There were no significant changes to remuneration governance arrangements in 2015/16, with decisions affecting members of the BBC

Worldwide Executive (WEx) team and company-wide reward being taken by the BBC Executive Remuneration Commuitee Salary
decisrons affecting other staff earning more than £125,000 (or focal equivalent) per year, and severance payments in excess of
£75.000, conbinue to require approval by the BBC Senior Management Remuneration Committee The BBC Worldwide Pay Committee,
compnsing the Chief Executive (CEQ), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and People Director, continues to review all significant pay
decisions

No imdmdual 18 responsible for setting his or her own remuneration

Full details of all the above governance matters can be found in the BBC Annual Report and Accounts

Executive Directors

This report summanses the remuneration of the CEQ and CFO of BBC Worldwide, who are the sole Executive Directors of
BBC Waorldwide

Tim Davie was CEO far the full year Andrew Bott was CFO from the start of the year untd he resigned from his post in January and as
a Director of BBC Worldwide from the start of the year untit November, following the submission of his resignation In the intenm Martyn
Freeman, General Counsel & Company Secretary, was appointed a Director of BBC Worldwide followed by Suzanne Burrows, who
was appointed a Direcior and intenm CFO on 29 January Further details on this are noted in Corporate Governance, page 15

Base salary

Tim Dawvie's annual base salary has remained unchanged since Apnl 2013 Andrew Bott's salary also remained unchanged, as did
Martyn Freeman's

Annual incentives

Annual Incentives are provided through the BBC Worldwide Annual Bonus Plan, in which all staff participate (other than those on sales
schemes)

The Plan 1s a smplte design, with a ‘Minimum Growth Hurdle' (a threshold level of performance), a Target Performance level (set to be
stretching bul, with substantal effort, achievable), at which Target Bonus i1s payable, and a Maxmum Bonus Performance level
{above which ne further bonus 1s payable), set significantly above Target

Target Bonus for the CEQ and the CFO 1s 50% of base pay earnings Bonus for all Executive Directors 1s wholly dependent on the
performance of BBC Worldwide as this 1s deemed to be the most appropnate indicater of thewr performance

Pansion

Executive Directors who joemed the BBC before 1 December 2010 are eligible to participate in the BBC Pension Scheme (the Scheme),
which provides for pension benefits on a defined benefit basis Executive Directors who joined the BBC on or after 1 December 2010
are eligible to join LifePlan, which 1s the BBC's defined contribution arrangement The BBC pays matching contnbutions to LifePlan for
employee contnbutions between 4% and 5% Employee contnbutions between 6% and 7% are matched plus an additional 1%
Employee contnbutions of 8% or more receive the maximum employer contnbution of 10% There s no maximum penstonable salary
for contributions to LifePlan

Executive Directors who decide not to join LifePlan or are not already an existing member of the Scheme are, subject to meeting the
relevant critena, automatically enrolled into the National Employment Savings Trust (NEST) The BBC and employees cuirently pay 1%
of quatifying eamings to NEST Indmviduals can choose to apt out of this
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Report on Directors’ remuneration {(continued)

Executive Directors’ pension arrangements may ba reviewad and amended in response 1o changes i legislaton or similar
developments

Features of the BBC's pension arrangements, including normal pensionable age, are provided in the table on page 23

Detarls of the BBC Pension Scheme are avaiable at www bbc co uk/mypension/ and detals of LdePlan can be found at
www friendslife co uk/microsite/bbe/

Components of reward

The following table summanses the current, key, fixed and vanable components of reward (excluding sales incentives} for executives
and employees

Element Purpose and link Performance Qperation
to strategy perlod

Basa salary Mantan a competttve  Not apphcable  Rewiewed annually, taking into account the industry in
package, at the agreed which BBC Worldwmde operates, location, indwidual
position for the pedormance and responsibiliies, and affordabity

relevant local market,
recegnising  individual
cantnbution and the
scope of the role

Reward from current incentive plans

Annual Incentives Reward achievement 1 year Bonus, calculated as a percentage of base pay
of short-term strategic eamings, 15 payable for achievement of headline profit
goals and profit targels and, other than for members of the BBC
growth Worldwide Executve (WEx), an agreed lovel of

personal performance The percentage varies by grade
(and, at lower levels, by country, in some cases)

A reduced bonus 1s payable for achievement below
Target, subject to reaching a threshold level of
performance below which no bonus 15 payable, with
addibonal bonus avallable for achievement above
Target For members of the Executive, honus 1s
between 20% and 70% of base pay eamings, with the
top of that range payable at a level of profit considered
to be achievable only in excephtional circumstances

The levels of profit performance attracting threshold,
target and maxmum bonus are set by the BBC
Executive Remuneration Committee

Benefits

Pensions Pensions are offered n -~ Ongoing Pensions are offered in accordance with the all
ne with normal market employee pension arrangements
practice
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Report on Directors’ remuneration {(continued)

Element Purpose and I[ink Performance Operation
to strategy perlod
Life assurance Lfe assurance 18 Ongoing 4 x salary for those who join the pension plan
offered in line with 2 x salary for those who do not
normal market
practice
Private healthcare Puavate healthcare 15 Ongoing Family cover for senior executives
offered in lne with Single cover for other eligible employees

normal market practice
at middle management
level and above

Car allowance With effect from 1 Apnl  ~ Those who were already In receipt of a car allowance
2014, BBC Woridwide have retained it The car allowance 1s £6,300 per year
removed the car
allowance benefit for
all new Executive
Directors and senior
managers, to ahgn with
arrangements for all
BBC employees

CEO earnings for the last five years £000s

31 var 2016 [ s

31 mar 2015 [T s+

31 mar 204 (|G <

31 var 2013 || | 1334
31 mar2012 ([ | 926

®Base Pay

# Lang-term incentives
Short-term ncentives
w Benefits
Pension

John Smith was CEQ from the start of this five-year penod until 31 Dacember 2012
Tim Dawvie has been CEQ since 1 April 2013
Figures do not include compansation for loss of office
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‘Now' National Employment
Scheme '‘Old’ Benefits Benefits CAB 2006 CAB 2011 LifePlan Savings Trust (NEST)
Defined Defined Defined Defined Defined Defined Contrlibution (Auto]
Benefit Benefit Benefit Benefit Contribution Enrolmeant Arrangement)
30
30 September 31 October 1January  Open to all eligible Opento
Dato closed 1996 2006 No;gTober 2012 employees all eligible employees
th ;cgfqul 167%
]
acerual e 60 accrual [ BBC will contribute
60" accrual accrual Aﬁ:‘u:t:?hm Adjusted it | a maxamum of 10%
nflaon e with CPI of salary if BBC will contnibute 1% of
employee qualifying earnings
Career Career | contnbutes 8% with
Salary Finafl Final average average lower sliding scale
pensionable  pensionable  revalued revalued
eamings eamings
";:“" pensionable 60 50 85 85 NiA N/A
Date of joming Mimimum Eamings
Earnings ca rocfora 1 June  Cappedat Cappedat  Cappedat Uncaoped £5,668p a
Be cap yarcorped. €121,000  £141,000  £138000 PP Maximum Eamings
PP £41,450pa
otherwise
Penslonable salary
growth before the Limited at 1%  bLimided at Limited at No N/A NIA
learnings cap pa 1%pa 1% pa restrichion
fls applled
Employee contribution
(% of pensionable 7 5% 75% 4% 6% %;Tnin:niwffzse 1% of quanfying eamings
atary) °
Employmaent contracts

Employment contracts of Executive Directors recently employed by BBC Worldwide in the UK have a maximum notice period of six
months Contracts are subject to earliar termination for cause M the UK, If termination anses through redundancy, Executive Directors
are entitled fo one month's pay for each year of continuing service, up to a maximum of 24 months’ base pay (or 12 months’ base pay
for Executive Directors employed on or after 1 January 2013) This 1s subject to a cap of £150,000 in total

Qutside interests

Where there 1s no potental for conflict of interest, and with the prior agreement of the Chair of BBC Worldwide, Executive Directors
may hold one paid external directorship Remuneration which anses from directorships may be retained by the Director This policy 1s
to encourage the take-up of external Non-executive appointments as part of the Executive Director’s development as well as bnnging

broader business skills to BBC Worldwide

Durning the year, no Executive Directors held paid external directorships

Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors of BBC Wordwide dunng the year were Tony Hall (BBC Director-General), Anne Bulford {Managing
Director, Finance & Operations, BBC), Dharmash Mistry and Sir Howard Stringer, none of whom recerved any remuneration in respect

of their duties in this capacity
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Report on Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Remuneration earned in the year ended 31 March 2016

Total Total Total 2014- Total
2015/16 2015/16 15 201415
{excluding {including (including {excluding

Penslon- Pgnslon- Penslon- Pension-  Penslon-
Related Related Related Ralated Rolated

Feelbase Car Annual Taxable Single Single Single Single Single
£'000 pay allowances bonus beanefits Flgure) Figure Figure} Filgure) Figure}
Executive Directors
Tim Davie' 400 - 224 2 626 38 664 640 603
Andrew Bott’ 177 - - 1 178 18 196 488 466
Martyn Freeman’ 46 1 26 1 74 - 74 - -
Suzanne Burrows® 30 1 17 - 48 4 52 - -
653 2 267 4 926 60 986 1,129 1,089
Non-executive Directors
Tony Hall® - - - - - - - - -
Anne Bulford® - - - - - - - - -
Dharmash Mistry® - - - - - - - - -
Sir Howard Stringer® - - - - - - - - -
Total 653 2 267 4 926 60 286 1,129 1,069

" The BBC introduced a salary sacnfice arrangement on 1 June 2008 for Oild and New Benefits members who jomned the Pension Scheme before 1
November 2006 and for all Career Average Beneft members From that date, terms and conditions of employment were changed for those employees
opting for the salary sacrfice arangement and, as a result, empioyee pension contributions made via the salary sacrifice have been treated as
employer contributions, with a corresponding reduction in salary Tim Davie's base satary has not been adjusted to reflect the impact of the salary
sacnfice His total salary sacnfice was £8,640 (2013/14 £8,532)

2 Andrew Bott was a Director of BBC Warldwide until 9 November 2015 Andrew Bott's salary reflects the time he was a Director of the company

2 Martyn Freeman |oined the BBC in 1994 and was a Director of BBC Worldwide from 9 November 2015 unt! 29 January 2016

4 Suzanne Bumows joined the BBC i 2009 and was a Director of BBC Worldwide from 29 January 2016 until 3 May 2016

¥ Non-executive Directors did not receive remuneration n relation to thew duties for BBC Worldwide

Defined benefit entittements

Define:

benefi

Accrued Accrued contribution

Age as at pension pension {via sala

Pension figures are all in £ 31 Mar 16 Section 31 Mar16 01 Apr 156 sacrifice
Tin Davie’ 48 CAB 2011 9,961 7,530 8,640
Martyn Freeman? 51 Old benefits 68,533 67,627 3.570
Suzanne Burrows’ 48 CAB 2006 13,001 12,713 946

"Tim Davie joined the BBC in 2005 and was appomnted CEQ of BBC Worldwide on 1 Apnl 2013 Tim became an active member of the CAB 2011
section as of 1 January 2012 and retains a deferred pension in the New Benefits section for service up to that date The accrued pensions shown refate

to CAB 2011 only but include the pertod before he was appamted as a Director
? Martyn Freeman joned the BBC in 1994 and served on the Board of BBC Worldwide from 9 November 2015 to 29 January 2016 The accrued

penstons shown include the period before he was appointed as a Director
* Syzanne Burrows joined the BBC in 2009 and became a Director of BBC Worldwide on 29 January 2016 The acerued pensions shown include the

period before she was appointed as a Director
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the Group and parent Company financial statements In accordance with applicable
law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law they have elected to prepare the Group
financial statements in accordance with International IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applhicable law and have elected to prepare the Company
financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfled that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and parent Company and of thess profit or loss for that penod In preparing each of the Group and parent Company financial
statements, the Directors are required to

« select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

« for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with {FRSs as adopted by the EU,

« for the parent Company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explamned in the financial statements, and

- prepare the financiat statements on the going concern basis untess it is Nappropriate (o presume that the Group and the Company will continue
in busmness

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequale accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent Company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent Company and enable them to ensure that its financlal statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reascnably open to them to safeguard the assets
of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other (regulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financtal information included on the Company's website
Legislation m the UK goverming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legistation in other junsdictions |
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Independent auditor's report to the members of BBC Worldwide Limited

We have audied the financial statements of BBC Worldwide Liminted for the year ended 31 March 2016 which compnse the Consolidated income
statement, Consohdated statement of comprehensive income, Consolidated balance sheet, Consohdated cash flow statement and Consolidated
statement of changes in equity the related notes 1 to 37, the Company balance sheet and the related notes a to s The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statemenis 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union The financial reporting framewoerk that has been applied in the preparation of the Company financial statements 1s
appllcable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounttng Practice), including FRS 101 "Reduced
Disclosure Framework”

This report 15 made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 18 of the Compamies Act 2008  Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company s members thase malters we are required to state to them tn an auditor's report and
for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume responsiblisty to anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a bedy, for our audit work for this report, or for the opimons we have formed

Respectlve responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on pages 25, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the |
financal statements and for being satlsfied that they give a true and falr view Qur responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financiaf |
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} Those standards require us to comply with

the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the flnancial statements

An audi involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disciosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or eror This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropnate to the group's and the parent company s circumstances and have been consistently appled and adequately disclosed the
reasonableness of sigmficant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overa!l presentation of the financial statements In additton, we
read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financlal statements and
to identify any information that 1s apparently matenally incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course
of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent matertal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Oplimon on financial statements

In our opinion

« the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Company's affars as at 31 March 2016 and of the Group's
profit for the year then ended,

+ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as applied in

+ the Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdem Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework® and

+ the financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the infarmation given in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Repost for the financial year for which the financat statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you If, 1n cur opiion

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recewed from branches nat
visited by us or

+ the Company financtal statements are not i agreement with the accounting records and returmns, or

» certain disciosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

+  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Eww’ed& Ymug Lef

Richard Wilsan (Senior statutory a
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

13 June 2016
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2016
Ongeing
businesaes st Ongoing asc
total businessss ARERICA Tolal
019 ;s m1% ms
Hots- £m L] m tm
HeadlIne salas including Joint ventures 2 10204 948 1 537 10018
Less Share of revenue of joml ventures (174 0} (150 5) - {150 5)
Revenuo 8554 7976 837 8513
Total operating costs 3 (790 8) {728 5) 423 (770 8)
Share of resulis of joint ventures and associates 418 358 - 358
COparating profit 106 4 1049 114 116 3
Analysed as
Head!ine profit 2 1338 1272 114 1386
Share of interest and tax of jont ventures and associates 4 {10 6) (94) - (9 4}
Pensron deficit reduction payment 4 (3 4} 8 1) - {8 1}
Other specific items 4 (13 4) {4 8) . (4 8Y
106 4 1049 14 1163
Gains on disposals 28 15 - 1159 1158
Other gaing and losses 8 (4 6} =n - 57)
Finance income g 09 o8 - 08
Finance expense ) (37) (3 5) - {35)
Profit boefore tax 1006 866 1273 2238
|Profit before tax excluding gains and losses on disposals 990 96 5 114 107 9 |
Tax charge for the year 10 (14 9) {11 7) (26 8) (38 3)
Profit ﬁm the year iifElEu!aEle to the equity shareholder 5 856 848 1007 1858
Aflnbutable to
Equity shareholders of the parent company 856 848 1007 1855
Non-controlling interests - - - -
Profit for the year 856 B48 1007 18556
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2016
Ongoing
and gaing asg
total busineises AMERTCA Totnl
1018 2018 s 2013
£m Em Em im
Profit for the year 856 848 1007 1855
Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Recyeling of translation raserves on disposal of business - - 61 61
Exchange differences on transiation of foreign operations 72 164 28 192
Revaluation of avatable-for-sale financial assets 29 . . -
Net losses on cash flow hedges (12 5) (109) - {109)
Tax on cash flow hadges taken directly to other comprehensive mcome 25 23 - 23
Othor comprehensive income for the year 01 78 89 167
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to equity shareholder of the parent
857 92 6 109 8 2022

company

* BEBC AMERICA 2015 compnises the results of New Video Channel America LLC ("NVCA") up to the date of disposal, iegether with the Group's gain on
disposal (see note 28) Whilst the transaction did not mest the cnteria of a discontinued operation under IFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held for Safe and
Discontinued Oparations it was considered to be of sufficient importance as to justiy the presentation of a separate column for BEC AMERICA in order to

prowvide a better understanding of the profit and other comprehensive income

Post-disposai results are ncluded within Share of results of joint ventures and associates in the Ongoing business columns
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Consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 March 2016

2016 018
Nots m Em
Non-current assets
Goodwili 12 342 334
Distribution nghts 13 2103 2028
Other mtangible assets 14 355 279
Property, plant and equipment 15 297 286
Interests in joint ventures and associates 16 171 8 148 8
Investments 17 165 131
Trade and other receivables 19 565 271
Deferred tax assets 10 65 42
Derivative financial assets 24 01 29

5611 488 8
Current assets

Programme rights and other inventories 18 529 67 3
Trade and other recelvables 19 3247 3401
Current tax recevable 186 208
Derivative financial assets 24 09 84
Cash and cash equivalents 458 66 6
Assets classified as held for sale 21 - 30

4429 506 0

Total assets 1,004 0 994 &
Curront llabilitles
Interest-beanng loans and borrowings 23 167 9 03
Trade and other payables 20 3996 405 2
Current tax habiibes 62 46
Provisions 22 19 53
Denvative financial habilites 24 140 102
5898 4256
Non-current liabliities
Interest-beanng loans and borrowings 23 - 1355
Trade and other payables 20 23 o8
Provisions 22 01 18
Denvative financial habiities 24 80 62
Deferred tax liabilities 10 197 192
301 163 6
Total liabilities 6197 589 2
Net assets 384 3 405 6
Equity
Share capital 25 02 02
Hedging reserve 26 {130) 30
Transtation reserve 26 193 121
Other reserves 26 13 -
Retained eamings 26 376 4 396 3
Equity attributable to shareholdor 3842 4056
Non-controlling interests 01 -
Total equity 384 3 405 6

These consolidated financia) statements of BBC Worldwide Limined, registered number 1420028, were approved by the Board of Directors ¢n 13
June 2016 and were signed on s behalf b

Tim Davie
Chief Executive Officer
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2016

2018 018
Note em £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 29 1610 2175
Tax paid 87) (26 5)
152 3 1910
Cash flows from Investing activitios
Interest receved 09 08
Dividends recerved from joint ventures and associates 16 268 265
Dmidends received from other investments 17 04 -
Purchases of distnbution nghts 13 {128 5) (145 9)
Purchases of other intangible assets 14 (14 5) (117
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 15 {6 5) (20 3)
Acguisition of subsidianes (net of cash acquired) 27 09 -
Disposal of operations net of cash disposed 28 3186 64 5
Acqulsition of interests in joint ventures and assoctatas 16 29 {3 6)
Acquisition of Investments {02) (54)
Amounts advanced to related parties (286) (0 1)
Repayment by related parties - 03
(96 8) {94 9)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (35 {3 3}
Drawdown of loans and borrowings 320 364
Equity dividends pawd 11 (1055) (111 3)
(77.0) (76 2)
Mot (decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents {21 3) 179
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 66 6 451
Foreign exchange translation gams 05 36
458 68 6

Cash and cash equivalonts at end of tho year

Cash and cash eguivalents 1s comprised entirely of cash at banks and on hand
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 March 2016

Sha Hadging Transkation Oihar Retsined  Mon-controling Tolad

capital Ieberve resrve g squity

Lm t_l:l £ Em £m £m (rn_
Balanca at 1 April 2014 02 13 {13 2) . 3221 - 314.7
Profit far the year - - - - 18556 - 1855
Recycling of translation reserves on disposal - - 61 - - - 61

Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges - {109) - - - - (109)
Tax on items taken dwectly to equity - 23 - - - - 23
Exchange dlfferences on translation of foreign operations - - 192 - - - 19 2
Total comprehensive income for the year - (8 6) 253 . 1855 - 2022

Dividends paid (note 11) - - - . (111 3) - {111 3)
Balance at 31 March 2015 g2 (30} 121 - 396 3 - 40586
Profut for the year - - - - 856 - 856
Revaluatton of available-for-sale financial assets (note 26) - - - 29 - - 209

Net gain/{loss) on cash flow hedges - {12 5) - - - - {12 5)
Tax on items taken directly to equity - 25 - - - - 25
Exchange differences on transtation of foreign operations - - 72 - - - 72
Total comprehensive Income for the year - (100) 72 28 856 - as7

Changes in non-controlling interests (notes 26 and 27) - - - (16) - 01 (15

Dividends paid {note 11) - - - - {105 5) - (105 5)
Balance at 31 March 2016 02 {13 0) 193 13 76 4 01 384 3
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. Principal accounting policies

BBC Worldwide Limited (the “Company™) 1s a company domiciled and mcorporated in the United Kingdom, and ils regisiered address 15 Television
Centre, 101 Wood Lane, London W12 7FA The consolidated financia! statements of the Company far the year ended 31 March 2016 comprise the
Company and its subsidiary undertakings (together the *Group™) and the Group's interest in jount ventures and associated undertakings

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that ts the currency of the pnmary economic environment In which the Group
operates Foreign aperations are included in accordance with the policies set out below

(a) Basis of preparation

The consohdated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union (the EU), the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the EU International Accounting Standards Regulations

The tinancial statements are pancipaliy prepared on the hrstoncal cost basis Areas where alternative bases of accountmg are apphed are identified in
the accounting policies below

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the BBC AMERICA column includas in the Income statement and the relevant notes comprises the results of
NVCA up to the date of disposal, together with the Group's gain on disposal {see note 23) Whilst the transaction did not meet the critena of a
discontinued operation under IFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Heid for Sale and Discontinued Operations 1t was considered to be of sufficient importance
to Justify the presentation of a separate column for BBC AMERICA, in order to provide a better understanding of the profit and other comprehensive
income for the year

(b) Going concern

The Board remains satisfied with the Group's funding and liquidity position The disclosures on page 18 in the Directors’ Report m respect of going
concem form part of the audited accounts

As at 31 March 2016, the man source of debt funding was an unsecured credit facility with BBC Commercial Holdings Limited (BBCCH) expwing in
September 2017 Further information in respect of this facility s included in note 23

On the basis of stress-tested forecasts, and having regard to available and anticipated financing facikties, the Board has concluded that the going
concem basis of preparation continues to be appropriate Further information in respeci of kquidity nsk Is included 1n note 34
(c) Basls of consolidation

! Subsidianas

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (and its
subswdianes) made up to 31 March each year Controlis achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
an investee entity 50 as to obtan benefits from Its actwitles |

The results of subsidianes acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated mcome statement from the effective date of |
acquisttion or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate Where necessary, adusiments are made to the financial statements of subsidianes

to bring the accounting policies used info ine with those of the Group All intra-group transactions, balances, imcome and expenses are elminated on

consolidaton

Non-controfiing interests in subsidianes are wdentrfied separately from the Group's equity therein The interests of nan-controlling shareholders are
initially measured at thew proportionate share of the farr value of the acquiree's identifiable net assets Subsequent to acguisition, the cafrying amount
of non-controlling interests s increased or decreased in proportion to the non-controliing interests' share of any subseguent changes m equity

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidianes that do not resullin a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactons The carrying amounts
of non-controlling snterests are adjusted to reflect any changes in thelr, and the Group's, relative interests in the subsichanes Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling mterests are adusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or receved i3 recognised directly in equity
and attnbuted to the Company's shareholder

When the Graup loses control of a subsidiary, the prefit or loss on disposal 18 calcutated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any retamned interest (net of dispasal costs), and (n) the prewvious canrying amount of the net assets
of the subsidiary (including attnbutable goodwil) and any non-controlling interests Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive inceme
refation to the subsidiary are reclassified to the income statement or transferred diectly to retaned eamings as appropnate The fair value of any
nterest retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control 15 lost 1s regarded as the cost on mitial recogiibion of an nvestment m a jont
venture or associate
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1 Principal accounting policies {continued)

(c) Basis of consolidation (continued)
it Jomnt ventures and assoclates

A Joint venture 1s a type of joint arrangement whereby the partles that have joint control have rights 1o the net assets of the jont venture Joint control
15 the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activiies require unanimous
consent of the parties shanng control An associate 1s an entity over which the Group has significant influence Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the nvestee, but 1s not control or joint control over those policies

The results, and assels and liabilities of joint ventures and associates are incorporated Into these financial statements using the equity method of
accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in which case it i1s accounted for in accordance with IFRS § Non-current Assets

Heid for Safe and Discontinued Operations

Under the equity method, investments in assoctates are carmed in the consolidated balance sheet at cost, adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group's share of the net assets of the jant venture or associate, less any imparrment in the valua of mdividual investments

Where the Group's share of iosses exceeds the mnterest in the jomnt venture or associate, including the carmying value of the investment and any long-
term interests, to nil, no further losses are recognised except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture or associate

Where a group entity transacts with a Joint venture or associate of the Group, unrealised profits and losses are elminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the relevant jont venture or associate

The Group accounts for its share of the results and net assets of #s joint ventures and associates using information as of 31 March with the exception
of Children’s Character Books Limited, Woodlands Books Limited, Educational Publishers LLP and JV Programmes LLC which have been included
using information from unaudited accounts drawn up to 31 December The impact of these non-coterminous year ends is not considered material

(d) Adoption of new and revised standards

At the beginning of the current penod, the Group adopted the following accounting pronouncements, none of which had a significant impact on its
results or financlal position

+  Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle (2013)
«  Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle (2013)
«  Amendments to IAS 19 (2013) Employee Benefits

At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the foliowing Standards and Interpretations which have not been appiied in these financral
statements were in 1ssue but not yet effective (and In some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU)

- Amendments resulting from Annuat Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle (2014) (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

«  Amendments to IAS 1 (2014) Presentation of Financial Statements (effectve for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

. Amendments to IAS 7 (2016) Statement of Cash Flows (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2017)

« Amendments to IAS 12 (2016) Income Taxes (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2017)

« Amendments to 1AS 16 (2014) Property, Plant and Equipment {effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2016}

«  Amendments to IAS 27 (2014) Separate Financial Statements (effective for penods commencing on or afer 1 January 2016)

« Amendments to IAS 28 (2014, 2015) tnvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January
2016)

+ Amendments to 1AS 38 (2014) Intangible Assets (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2016}

+  Amendments to IAS 39 (2013) Fmancial Instruments Recognition and Measurement (effective when IFRS 9 s applied, on or after 1 January
2018)

- Amendments ta IAS 41 (2014) Agncutture (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

«  Amendments to IFRS 7 (2011, 2013) Financial Instruments Disclosures (effective when IFRS 9 1s applied, on or afier 1 January 2018)

+ Amendments to IFRS 10 {2014) Consolidated Financial Statements (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2018)

+ Amendments to IFRS 11 (2014} Joint Arrangements (effective for penods commencing on or aiter 1 January 2016)

»  Amendments to IFRS 12 (2014) Disclosures of Interests tn Other Entities (effective for pencds commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

« IFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (effective for perlods commencing on or after 1 January 2018)

« IFRS 14 {2014) Reguiatory Deferral Accounts (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

« IFRS 15 (2014, 2015) Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2018)

. IFRS 16 (2016) Leases (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2019)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1. Principal accounting policies (continued)

{d) Adoption of new and revised standards (continued)

The Oirectors do not expect that the adoption of the standards listed above will have a matenal impact on the financial statements of the Group n
future penods, except for the below which are currently being evaluated

- IFRS 9 (2014) Financraf Instruments (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2018)
. IFRS 15 (2014, 2015) Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effectwe for penods commencing on of after 1 January 2018)
. {FRS 16 (2015) Leases (effectve for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2019)

Beyond the informataon above, it 18 not practicable to provide a reascnable estimate of the effect of these standards until a detaled review has been
completed

(e} Non-statutory financlal performance measures

The Group believes that 'Headline sales' and ‘Headline profit' are additional non-statutory measures of financial performance thal provide further
guidance to help understand the performance of the business on a comparable basis year on year

Headline sales include the Group's share of the revenues of its joint ventures, which are closely monitored by the Directors Headlne profit excludes
sigmificant tems affecting operating profit (termed "specific tems”) whichin the Directors' judgement enable a more complete understanding of the
Group's financial performance Specific items are identified separately by virtue of therr size, nature or incidence

Specific tems are not defined under IFRS and may not be comparable to similarly utied measures used by other companies ltems which have been
mghiighted for cansideration include the impairment of goodwill, the Group's share of the interest and tax of joint ventures and associates, and other
non-rautine items which help to facilitate a consisteni view of the Group's results

The Group also discloses profit before tax excluding gans and fosses on disposals This measure reflects the overall profitability of the groupon a
statutory basis, befora taking into account business disposals

() Business comblnations

Acquisitions of subsidianes and businesses are accounted for using the acquistion method The cost of each acquisition 1s measured at the
aggregate of the fair values (at the date of exchange) of assels given and habildies incumed or assumed i exchange for control of the acquiree
Acquisition related costs are recogmsed In the income statement as meurred

Where applicable, the consideration for the acquisition includes contingent consideration, measured at Its acquisiton-date fair value Subsequent
changes in the farr value of contingent consideration are recorded i the iIncome statement

Where a business combination 1s achieved In stages (1 @ where the Group acquires an entity which was previously a jont venture, associate or held-
for-sate nvestment) the Group remeasures its pre-existing mterest in the enbity to fair value at the acquisihon date (1 e the date the Group attains
control) The resulting gain or loss, f any 15 recogmsed in the mcome statement Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income 1n
respect of the entity, pnor to the acquisition date, are also reclassiied lo the income statement where requwed

The acquired entity's identifiable assets, abdiies and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recogmtion under IFRS 3 (2008) Business
Combinatrons are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except that assets {or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale are
measured 1n accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

{g) Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through sale rather than
continuing use, they are avaidable for mmedate sate in therr present condition and a sale s ughly probable Management must be committed to the
sale which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification

When the Group ts committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and habilities of that subsidiary are classified as
held for sale when the cntenia described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a nen-contralling interest in its former subsidiary

after the sale

Once classified as held for sale, non-cument assets and disposal groups are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell No amorbsation or depreciation is charged on non-current assets (including those in disposal groups) classified as held for sale
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
1. Principal accounting policies (continued}

h) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition (except pnor to 1 April 2007) 13 recognised as an asset at the date that contrel 15 acguired (the 'acquisition date’)
Goodwill 15 measured as the difference between (i) the consideration paid, the fair value of any mterest held n the acquiree pror to acquisition, and
any non-controfling interest in the acquiree, and {n) the fair value of the identifrable assets acquired and liabilibes assumed at the acquisibon date

Goodwill 1s not amortisad but 1s reviewed for impairment at least annually For the purpose of Impairment testing, goodwill ts allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combmation Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated
are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there 1s an indication that the umt may be imparred Testing for impatrment involves a
companson of the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit with its recoverable amount, being the higher of its value in use or far value less costs

to sell

Where impairment testing ndicates that the camying amount of a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the unit 1s wntten down to the
recoverable amount An impairment loss 1s allocated first to reduce the camying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the umit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit An impairment loss recognised for goodwill 1 not reversed n
a subsequent penod

On disposal of a submuidiary the attnbutable amount of goodwill 1s ncluded in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal

(I} Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recevable and represents amounts receivable for goods and services prowded
wn the normal course of business, net of discounts, retumns VAT and other sales-related taxes Revenue 15 recognised when the significant transfer of
nsks and rewards has occurred

The Group's main sources of revenue and its policies for the recognition of such revenue are summarised as follows

+ Licence fees are earned by the Group from programme content and programme formats  Once a contract has been signed, licence fees are
recognised on the later of the start of the licence period or when the associated programme is available for delivery

« Subscription fees from the broadcast of the Group's channels on pay television platforms, and from subscriptions to print and online publications
and services, are recognised as eamed pro rata over the subscnption penod

« Advertising revenue generated by channels operations and from websites are recognized on transmission or publication of the advertisement

» Production fees and partictpation royalties earned by the Group are recognised as earned Producton fees are recognised on delivery of the
programme or on a stage of completion basis, depending on the nature of the contract with the customer Royallies are recogmised on receipt or
on an accruals basis where sufficient rehable information Is availlable

« Revenua generated from the sale of physical and digitai products through our consumer products operations 15 recognised at the time of
delivery Revenue from the sale of goods Is slated net of deductions for actual and expected retums based on management judgement and
hustorical experience

()} Foreign currencles

The ndividual resuits and financial position of each group company are presented in the currency of the pnmary economic environment in which the
company operates (its functional currency) For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial posibon of each group
company are expressed in pounds sterling, which is the functionat currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the consclidated
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the apphcable functional currency of each entity of the Group at a monthly average exchange
rate Monetary assets and labihties denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling on that date Foreign
exchange differences which arise on translation are recognised in the income statement

For the purpose of presenting consofidated financial statements, the assets and fiabdities of the Group's foreign operations are translated at exchange
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date (the 'closing rate') income and expense items are transtated at the weighted average rates for the year
Exchange differences ansing on the retranslation of the opening net assets, and income and expense for the year to the closing rate are recognised
in other comprehensive iIncome and accumulated in equity (attributed to non-controling Interests as appropriate)

On the disposal of a fore:gn operation, the cumulative exchange differences in respect of that operation recognised in equity are reclassified to the
income statement and included in the calculation of the gamn or loss on sale

Goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and habllities of the foreign entty and
translated at the closing rate, as descnbed above
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1. Principal accounting policies (continued)

{k} Retiroment benefit costs
Contrbutions to defined contnbution pension schemes are charged lo the income statement as they falf due

Employees of the Group also parhcipate n defined benefit schemes operated by the Group's ultimate parent, the British Broadcasting Corporation
(the "BBC") The defined benefit schemes provide benefits based on pensionable pay The assets of the BBC's main pension scheme, the BBC
Pension Scheme, are held separately from those of the BEC Group

The BBC Pension Scheme is a Group wide scheme and there 15 no contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the net defined benefit cost to
scheme participants The contribution rates are set by the pension scheme trustees based on valuations which take a longer-term view of the assets
required to fund the scheme's liabilities Valuations of the scheme are performed by Towers Watson, consulting actuanes, with formal valuations

undertaken at least every three years  Therefore as required by 1AS 19 Employee Benefits BBC Worldwide accounts for the contributions payable to

the scheme for the year

(ty Taxation

Curent tax 1s based on taxable profit for the year, and 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the batance
sheet date Taxable profil differs from net profit as reported 1n the ncome statement because it excludes items of income or expenditure which are not
taxable or deductible or which are taxable or deductible 1n other years

Current tax assets and current ax liabiliies are offset If, and only if, there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off the recognised amounts, and the
entity intends elther to setlle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the hability simultaneously

Deferred tax 13 the tax expecled to be payable or recoverable in future periods and 1s recogrised using the balance sheel liabiity method This
method provides for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabities in the balance sheet and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit Temporary differences ansing from goodwill and the Initial recagnition of assets or iiatiiities that affact
nerther accounting profit nor taxable profit are not provided for

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary diiferences ansing on investments in subswdanes joint ventures and associates except
where the Group 1s able to controi the reversal of the temporary difference and 11 1s probable that the temporary difference wili nol reverse in the
foreseeable future

The carrying value of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to atlow all or part of the asset to be recovered

The amount of deferred tax provided i3 based on the manner m which tax is expected to anse and using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the batance sheet date Defened tax 15 charged or credited in the Income statement, except where d relates to items
recorded within other comprehensive income in which case the deferred tax 1s also recorded within other comprehensive income

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabllities are offset only whera there is a legally enforceable nght to set off curent tax assets against current tax
nabiities, and the deferred tax assets and the defefred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authorty on either

- the same taxable enbty, or
« different taxable entibes which ntend either to settfe current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the habiities

simultaneously, In each future penod in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabiihies or assets are expected to be settled or recovered

{m} Distribution rights

Distribution nghts represent nghts to programmes and associated InteHectual property acquired with the pnmary intention of expiaiting the nghts
commercially as part of the Group's long-term cperations

Distnbution nghts acquired by the Group are either purchased, generated internally or heensed following the payment of an advance on royalties
Whera the Group controls the respective assets and the nsks and rewards attached to them, rights are intlally recognised at acquisition cost or
production cost The carrying amount is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and provision for impatment

Amortisation of distribution nghts 1s charged to the mcome stalement 1o match the average revenue profile of the programme genre over its estimated
average marketable life The expected Iives of distnbution nghts range from one to ten years, with some alder assets for which the Group hoids rights
in perpetwity retaining a residual value In the case of royalty advances, amortisation (s charged as the advances are recouped

Where the canying value of any individual set of rights exceeds management's best estimate of future explotation revenues, a provision for
impaiment is recorded in the income statement immediately

For self-produced content, distnbution nghts exclude co-production costs borne by third parties These costs are deferred within current assets and
expensed upon recognition of the associated production income  Production income 1s recogrised in accordance with the Group's revenue
recognition policies
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1 Principat accounting policies (continued)

(n) Other intangible assets
i Acquired intangibles

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business acquisition are capitalised at fair vaiue at the date of acquisiion The fair value of such intangible
assets is valuad by reference to extermal market values or income-based methods Income-based methods estmate the fulure economic benefits to
be derived from ownership of the asset by identifying, quantifying and separauing cash flows attribuiable to the asset and capitalising thelr present
value Purchased Intangible assets acquired separately are capilalised at cost After imtial recogmition, ali intangible fixed assets are measured ai cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses

W Internally-generated intangible assets development expenditure

An Internally-generated intangible asset ansing from the Group’s development, ncluding software and website development, is recognised when the
asset 15 technucally and commercially feasible, sufficient resources exist to complete the development and it is probable that the asset will generate
future economic benefits Any expenditure on research or development activities that does not meet the aforementioned cnteria 1s recognised as an
expense in the period in which a1s incurred

it Amartisalion

Intangible assets with finte fives are amortised over their useful fives using the straight-line method Amortisation expense 1S recorded withun total
operating costs in the income statement The useful lives used for intangible assets are as follows

- Carrer agreements Unexpired term of agreement
= Software {inciuding internally-generated software} 1-5 years
+ Qther 3-B years

Useful lives are reviewed every year and adjustments are made, where apphcable, on a prospective basis

{0} Property, plant and equipment (“PPE")

Owned PPE s stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment lgsses, other than those items that are classified as
held for sale

Freenold land 1s not depreciated Deprecration 1s charged on other PPE so as to write off the cost of assets to their residual value, over their expected
useful lives, using the straight-ine method When an stem of PPE compnses major components having different useful economic (ives, the
components are accounted for as separate items of PPE Depreciation commences from the date when the asset 1s avalable for use

The useful lives for depreciation purposes for the pnncipal categones of assets are

~ Short leasehold buildings Unexpired lease term
+ Plant and machinery 3o 8 years
= Fixtures and fittings 3 to 10 years

Assets held under finances leases are treated as PPE and depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or ther useful economic life
The Group capitaiises borrowing costs with respect to amounts incurred during the construction of qualifying property, piant and equipment
(p) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwlll

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets (including distnbutton nghts) to determine
whether there Is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If such indication exists, an imparment loss is recognised in the
income statement for the amount by which an asset's camying amount exceeds Its recoverable amount Where an asset does not generate cash
flows that are independent of other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount s calculated as the higher of an asset's value in use and its far value less costs to sell Value in use 1s based on estimated
future cash flows discounted to thew present vaiue using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects curent market assessments of the time value of money
and the nsks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

Impairment losses recognised i respect of cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill ailocated o those urits,
and any balance to reduce the camying amount of other assets i the unit on a pro-rata basis An impairment lass 1s reversed if there has been a

change in the estimates used to delermine the recoverable amount Animpaiment Joss 1s reversed only to the exient that an asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, had no rmpairment loss been recognised
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{q) Programme rights and other mventories

Prograrmme rights in this context refers to programme nghts acquired for the prmary purpose of broadcasting through the regional channels
operations The carrying amount I1s stated at cost less accumulated amartisation and provision for impaiment The Group's estimate of the benefits
received from these rights Is determined to be most appropriately aligned with a straight-ine amortisation profile for the majonty of the programme
inveniory heid The cost Is recognised in the income statement on a straight-ine basis over the penod of the hcence, which Is usually three years

Programmes in the course of produchon represent the costs incurred by the Group on the creation of new content, which are ordinanly recovered
through co-production agreements or through contracts for the provision of production senices Some production costs are borne by the Group with a
view to exploiting the resulting content through licensing agreements, these are presented within Distribution nghts

Other inventories, comprising CDs, DVDs, raw materals and work m progress are stated at the lower of cost (detemmined on a siandard or average
cost basis) and net realisable value

{r} Financlal instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilies are recognised in the Consolidated balance shaet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
prowisions of the instrument

Financial assets and habikies are indially measured at farr vaiue less any directly attributable transachon costs, except for those financial assets
classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are iniially measured at far value

Financial assets are derecogrised from the balance sheet when the Group's contractual nghts to the cash flows expire or the Group transfers
substantially all the nsks and rewards of the financral asset Financlal iabilibes are derecognised from the Group's balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract 1g discharged, cancelied or expires

1 Classification and Measurement
Firancal assets and habilities are classified into the following categones specified by IAS 39 Fancial Instruments Recogmition and Measurement

- Loans and recevables - trade recevables, loans and other recevables with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market These are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment Interest income 1s recogrised by
applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recogmtion of interest would be immatenal

+  Avatable for sale financial assets - are either shares stated at fair value that are traded in an active market or for which a fair value can
otherwise be reliably measured, or stated at cost where an equily Instrument 1s not reliably measurable Gams and fosses ansing from changes
i fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income with the exception of impairment losses, Interest calculated using the effective
interest method and foretgn exchange gans and losses on monetary assets, which are recognised directly in the income statement

+ Held to maturity investments - the Group does ot currently carry any financial instruments classified as held to maturity Such instruments might
include bills of exchange and debentures with fixed or determinable payments and fixed matunty dates and would be measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest methed less any imparment

+  Financial assetsMiabilties at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") - assets and liabilities which are held for trading An asset or liability 1s
classified as hefd for trading f (i) 1t has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or (1) on initial
recognition it 1s a part of a portfolio of identified financial Instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattem of short-
term profit-taking, or (i} it 1s a derlvative that 1s not designated and effective as a hedging instrument Financial assets and habilities at FVTPL
are stated at fair value, with any gams and [osses ansing on remeasurement recognised in the mcome statement

«  Other financia! liabilities - financial liabilities, including trade payables and borrowings, which are not classified as financial habilines at FVTPL
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recogrused on an effective yield basis

it Effective nterast method

The effective interest method Is a method of catculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument or financial liability and of allacating interest income
or expense over the relavant pertod Tha effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estmated future cash flows over the expected hfe of

the instrument to the net carrying amaount on initial recogrition

m  Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets other than those held at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date Financial assets are
impaired where lhere 15 objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the inihal recogrition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected

For certain categaries of financial assets such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impared indmiduaily are, in addition,
assessed for impaiment on a collective basis Objective evidence of impairment of a portfobio of receivables could include the Group's past
expenence of collecting payments or an increase in the number of delayed payments

The carrying amount of a financial asset 1S reduced directly by any empairment loss, for all financial assets except trade recevables where the
carrying amount 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account When a trade receivable 1s considered uncollectible, d s written off agamnst the
allowance account Subsequent recovenes of amounts previously wntten off are credited against the allowance account Changes m the carrying
amount of the allgwance account are recognised in the Consolidated income statement
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{r) Financla! instruments {continued)
v Denvative financial instruments

The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange nsk, including foreign
exchange forward contracts and Interest rate swaps

Derwatives are Initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract 1s entered mto, and are subsequently remeasured to ther far value at
each subsequent batance sheet date Changes i farr value are recognised immediately in the Consokdated income statement, except where a
denvative 1s designated in an effective hedging relationship as descnbed below

A derivative with a positive fair value i1s recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative faw value is recognised as a financial
hablity Denvatives are presented as non-current assets or liabillties if the date of matunty of the instrument Is more than twelve months after the
balance sheet date Other denvatives are presented as cument assets or current liabilities

v Embedded Denwvatves

Denvatives which are embedded n other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate denvatives when thesr nsks and
characteristics are not closely related to thase of the host contracts, and the host contracts are not carned at far value Embedded derivatives are
camed In the Consolidated balance sheet at fair value from inception of the host contract Unrealised changes in fair value are recognised as gams or
losses within the Consolidated ncome statement during the period in which they anse

vi  Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain denvatives as cash flow hedges by documenting the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged tem
along with the risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking vanous hedge transactions Where the hedge 1s deemed to have been
effective the effective portion of any changes in the fair value of the denvatives that are designated in the hedge are recogmsed in other
comprehensive mcome  Any ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately in the Consolidated income statement

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to the Consolidated income statement in
the penods in which the hedged items are recognised in the Consolidated income statement! in the same ltne of the Ceonsolidated income statement
as the recognised hedged tem However when the forecast transaction that 1s hedged resuits i the recognstion of a non-financial asset or a non-
finaneial liabihty, the gains and losses previously accumulated in equity are transferred from equity and included n the iniial measurement of the cost
of the non-financial asset or nan-financial liability

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the Group de-designates the hedging relauonship, when the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated, or exercised, or when the relationship no longer qualfies for hedge accounting Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive
income upon discontinuation of hedge accounting is either recognised in the Consolidated Income staterment at the same time a3 the forecast
transaction affects profit or ioss, or 1s recognised in the Consolidated income statement immed|ately if the forecast transaction 18 no longer expected

to occur

{s) Provisions

A provision is recognised 1n the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation ansing from past events and it s
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to seit'e the obligation Provisions, other than those for deferred tax, that are payable
over a number of years are dlscounted to net present value at the balance sheet date using a discount rate appropriate to the particular provision

concemed

(t) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease are such that the lessee assumes substantially ail the nsks and rewards of
ownership All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assets held under finance leases are capitalised and deprectation is charged accordingly Such assets are initially recogmised al therr far value or, of
lower, at the present value of the mimmum lease payments at inception of the lease The corresponding habilty to the lessor s recorded as a finance
lease obligatbon Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reductions of the lease obligation so as to achreve a constant rate of
interest on the remaming balance of the llabilty

Lease income or expense ansing from operating leases is recorded m the Income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease with
any associated lease Incentives bemg recorded on a straight-ine basss over the lease term as a reduction in the rental income or expense
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(u) Critical accounting estimates and key Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain criical accounting assumptions, and requires management
to exercise its jJudgement and to make estimates in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies The areas Involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptons and estimates are significant to the consolidated financtal statements, are disclosed below

! Basis of consolidation

Judgement 1s required in determining whether certain entities in which the Group has an economic interest should be considered to be subsidianes
associates or joint ventures In such circumstances, the Group has assessed its abiity to control or influence those entities The Group controls an
tnvestee If, and only If, the Group has power over the investee (1 e existing nghts that gwve it the current ability to direct the relevant actvities of the
investee) exposure, ar rights, to variable returns from Its nvolvement with the investee, and the ability to use its pawer over the investee to affect its
returns, n these cases the investee 1s treated as a subsidiary Where such policies are reserved such that an ecanomic partner has the power to veto
key strategic financial and operating decisions, the entity 1s considered {o be a joint venture or associated undertaking

fi  Carrying value of goodwi!

The determination of whather goodwill 1 impalred requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating umits to which goodwii has been
affocated The value in use cakulahon requires the ently to estmate the future cash flows expected {o anse from the cash-generating unit and a
sultable discount rate that reflects cument market assessments of the nsks specific to the asset and the time value of money, in order to calculate
present value Further information about assumptions used t determining the carrying vaiue of goodwill can be found in note 12

fr  Revenue recognition

The timing of revanue recognition requires judgement, as does the amount to be recognised Tins may involve estimahing the fair value of
consideration before it is recelved In making these judgements, the Group considers the detailed cntena for the recogmition of revenue set out in
IAS 18 Revenua and, in paricular, whether the Group has transferred the significant nsks and rewards of the goods or services to the customer

w  Distnbubtion nghts and programme nghts

The assessment of the appropnate profile over which to recogrise the amortisation of distnbution nghts and programme nghts involves a certain
degree of judgement For distribution nghts, amortrsation 1s charged to the ncome statement to match the average revenue profiie of the programme
genre over its estimated average marketable Iife Programme nghts are amortised over the icence perlod

v Fair value of financial instruments

Certain financial instruments are carned on the balance sheet at fair value, with changes in fair value reflected in the income statement Fair values
are estimated by reference i part to published pnce quotatians and in part by using vaiuation techniques Further information about farr value
measurements is provided in note 34

wi Accounting treatment and vaiuation of NVCA as an associate

As descnibed it nate 28, in October 2014 the Group sold a 49 9% interest In its former subsidiary NVCA to AMC Networks Inc ("AMCN") Despite the
BBC Worldwide residual 50 1% shareholding in NVCA AMCN cbtained control over the key decision-making activies of NVCA NVCA was therefore
deconsohdated from the date of disposal and since that date, due to the significant influence retained by the Group, NVCA has been equity-
accounted for as an associate The carrying value initially ascnbed to NVCA as an associate was based on the Board's assessment of the far value
of NVCA at the date of disposal, taking into account the proceeds receved for the sale of the controling interest, the significant influence retamed by
the Group, and the retained nght to vanable returns from the investment n NVCA The camrying value of NVCA as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March
2018, including the Group's share of equity eamings arising since NVCA's reclassification as an associate, 15 a key judgement area for the Board o
ensure that there are no indicators of impairment in the value of NVCA which might require a write-down of the Group's investment
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2 Segment information

Whilst not required by IFRS 8 Operating Segmants to present segmental information, such information has been provided below as It is considered
meaningful to the users of the accounts

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activittes from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses The results
of all operating segments are reviewed regularly by the BBC Worldwide Board (the 'Board’) which has been identfied as the Group's chief operating
decision maker in accordance with IFRS 8

Management has determined the reportable segments based upon reports reviewed by the Board All segments reported meet the quantitative
thresholds required by IFRS 8 The reportable segments are

+  United Kingdom

«  North Amenca

+ Austrahia and New Zealand
+  Waestern Europe

*  Rest of Woild

Segment information as presented ts consistent wath the Group's intemal reporting to the Board

The Board assesses the performance of reportable segments based on Headline sates and Headline profit, as defined in note 1 Inter-segment sales are
conducted on an arm's length basis Specific items and net financing costs are not allocated to segments In pnor years, non-trading foreign exchange
gains and losses were nciuded within the segmental results however, for the year ended 31 March 2016, these movements have not been allocated and
have instead been included in the elminations column Prior year's resulls have not been restated as the effect of this was immatenal

Information regarding the assets and labities of reportable segments 1S not reported to the Board

Australie and

Unitad Kingdom Modth Americs Naw Zastand  Western Europe Rest of World Elminzbohs Totst
2016 &m Em Em £m £m &m [
Headline sales 3183 2779 791 168 0 1317 {12 6} 1,029 4
Share of revenue of joint ventures {168 6} {0 8) (D 5) {4 1) - - (174 0)
Rovenue 2107 27T 1 78 6 1639 1317 {12 6) 8564
Headline profit 624 242 18.2 210 34 18 1338
Specific items {27 4)
Operating profit 106 4
Gains on disposals 15
Other gains and losses (4 6)
Finance income 09
Finance expense (37)
Profit before tax 100 5

Atmtralis snd

United Kingdom Norih Amaerica Naw Zesiand  Western Europs Rast of Wortd Elminalions Totat
2018 £m Em Em em £m £m Em
Headiine sales 3618 2999 819 1601 116 2 {18 1) 1,001 8
Share of revenuse of joint ventures (148 9) {0 8) {0 8) - - - {150 5)
Revenue 2129 299.% 811 1601 116 2 18 1) 8513
Headline profit 527 329 163 270 52 45 1386
Spectlic tems (22 3)
Operating profit 1163
Gains on disposals 1159
Other gains and losses 57)
Finance income 08
Fmance expense (35)
Profit before tax 2238

The allocation of revenue to geographic segments is based upon the business region in which the sales are generated

inter-regional revenues are elminated upon consohdation and are reflacted in the 'Eiminations’ column above
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2 Segment information (continued)

Whilst, as noted above, the Board now manages the group by region cather than by business classification, the addiional data sel out below presents the
headlne sales by business classification, in arder to provide an understanding of the size of each of the major business nes  Inter-segment sales are
conducted on an arm's length basis Specific items, non-trading gains and losses, and nel financing costs are not allocated to segments

The business classdications reported beiow have been updated during the current year {o batter reflect the Board's operational view of the business The
Board viaws the business based on four business ine segments Branded services (includes prior year's Channels business, as wall as Ad sales and
BBC Store), Content sales (includes prior year's Sales and distnbution), Preduction and formats, and Consumer products The praviously reported Other
business ines have been reallocated across these four segments

Production snd Consumer
Branded tarvices Contard sxies formats produsia ERnination. Totz)
M (] [0 m L) (L] m
Headllno sales N57 384.2 1730 1791 (428) 1,029 4
Share of revenue of jomt ventures (164 7) 07) 41 (4 5) - (174 Q)
Ravonuo 1710 383.5 168 9 1746 [42 6) 855 4
Headline profit/{loss) 497 682 106 89 (16) 1338
Specific tems {27 4)
Operating profit 106 4
Gains and losses on disposals 5
QOther gains and losses (4 8)
Finance income 09
_Finance expense {(37)
Profit bofore tax 1005
Productian and ConmumeTr
Branded sarvices Comam saes tormais products ENminatione Total
2013 Im (] €m Em M &m
Headline sales 3T 6 244 1630 1976 {53 7) 1,001 8
Share of revenue of joint ventures {144 0) (0 7) - (5 8) - {150 5)
Ravenus 2265 3237 1630 1918 (837) 8513
Headiine profit 654 627 158 34 13 1396
Specific tems (22 3)
Operating profit 116.3
Gains and losses on disposals 1159
Other gains and lossas 57
Finance income o8
Finance expense {3 5)
2238

Profit before tax

Inter-segmant revenues are sliminated upon consolidation and are refiected in the ‘Elmmations’ colurnn above

The Group's geographical reportable segments reflect management reporting lines and do not solely correspond to the country or region after which they
are named The Group's revenue by country of destination was as folfows

Haadine Share of J¥ Hosdhng Share of JV
nien revenme Ruvenue e L Revenue
2018 e wis Faal ) F L 018
(1] £ Em im L £m
Unsted Kingdom 3691 (188 6) 2005 339 2 {145 1) 1941
United States of America 2679 {08) 2671 2785 (08) 2777
Austraha 691 (2 5) 6B 6 724 (086) 718
Rest of World 3233 41 3192 3117 (40 3077
1,029 4 (174 0) B56 4 10018 {150 6) 8513

The Group's non-current assets, other than financal instruments and deferred tax assets, located in the UK are £353 4m (2015 £304 4m) and located
outside of the UK are £201 1m (2015 £177 3m)

Further analysrs of the Group's revenues by product or service line is not provided as this information is not rouinely reported to the Board
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3 Total operating costs

Operating costs from continuing operations compnse the following categones of expense

Ongeey
businsssss and Omgoing

total busineuses BBC Amatica Total
o111 013 w3 018

Im (<] Eﬁ El
Cost of sales 5727 499 0 20 5280
Distnibution costs 708 789 46 B35
Admtnistration costs 147 3 150 6 87 159 3
Total operating costs 790 8 7286 423 T70 8

4, Specific items

Share of Interest and tax of Joint ventures and assoclates

The Group views s investments as beng a fundamental pan of its ongoing operations IFRS requires that the Group reports its share of the results of
Joint ventures and associates on an after-1ax, after-inierest basis The interest and tax charges bome by joint ventures and associates have been added
back within Headline profit as a specific tem, in order to present an aperating profit measure which more appropnately represents the way in which the

business I1s reviewed and assessed internally

Pension deficit reduction payment

As described in note 32, the Group accounts for contributions to the BBC Pension Scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme During the year
the Group incurred costs of £3 4m {2015 £8 1m) n relation to addiional tax-deductible cash payments to the BBC in connection with the BBC's deficit
reduclion plan As this payment 1s not reflactive of the ongoing service cost of active schema participants, management believes It Is appropriate to
present this cost as a specific tam Further payments are expected to be made in future years as described tn note 32

Othor spacific items

Ongoing Ongoing

bustorassa arxt sinstses and

total total

2018 oS

tm [

Reorganisation costs (128) (2 6)
Amounts witten back/(off) interests in joint ventures and associates oe (20)
Impairment of other nvestments {05) -
Transachon fees 07) {0 2)
{13.4) {4 8)

Reorganisation costs in both years are tax-deductible and settled in cash, and include redundancy business exit ang other restuctunng costs ansing as a
rasult of changes to the Group's orgamisation structure and, in the year ended 31 March 2015, costs associated with the relocation of the Group's head

office

Amounts written back to jont ventures and associates in the year ended 31 March 2016 relate to a reversal of an impaimment loss recognised in the prior
year Amounts wrilten off interests In joint ventures and assoctates m the prior year were denved from a comparison of thewr raspective book vatues with

discounted cash flow forecasts Such wnte-offs are non-cash and non-deductble for tax purposes
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5.  Profit for the year
Profit for the year is stated after charging/{crediting)
Ongolng
bustnasses and Onqeing
1otsd buainssses BEC Amarica Tolat
0te 013 018 w1
m Em &m _E
Rentals on operating leases and similar arrangements 99 137 04 141
Sub-lease rentals received on operating leases (0 6) {133} - (02)
Net foreign exchange lossesf{gains) 14 {0 5) - {05)
Government grants recenable 01) on - {01}
Deapreciation on property, plant and equipment (note 15) 60 78 02 BO
- - 09 09

imparment of property, plant and equipment (note 15)

Amortisation of intangible assets
Distribulion rights {note 13) 1210 1130 - 1130
internalty generated software assets (note 14) 56 34 - 34
QOther Inlangible assets (note 14) 19 10 - 10
Programme nghts and other inventones
Cost recognised as an expense
- programmes in the course of production 1090 830 05 835
- broadeast nghts and other nventones 485 488 1486 634
Write-downs recognised as an expense 91 38 06 44
Employae costs (note 7) 1399 1428 61 1489
Impairment loss recognised on trade recevables (note 19) 26 10 01 11
Reversal of impairment losses recognised on trade receivables (hote 19) {11 {2 8) - {2 8)

Amortisation of distribution nghts 1S recorded within cost of sales Amartisation of other infangible assets, including intemally generated software assets,
15 recorded within administrabion costs

6 Auditor's remuneration

Ongeing
bumlnessss and
iotsl businssass 08C Amarics Tolal
2018 1018 2018 2013
Em tm em Pm
Foos payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the Company's
04 04 01 05

annual accounts

Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and their associates for other
services to the Group

The audit of the Company’s subsidianes pursuant to legislation 02 02 - 02
Total audit fees 06 08 01 07
Tax services 01 02 - a2z
Other services 01 01 - 01
Total non-audit fees 02 03 - 03
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7. Empioyee numbers and costs

The average number of employees dunng the year was as follows

Ongoing
[T Cngoing

toisd busirms ey B8C Amarkea Toud

018 2014 w15 w8

urmbes "'—2- H\n!_h Number

United Kingdom 460 438 - 438
North America 360 360 86 446
Austraha and New Zealand 179 197 - 197
Western Europe 315 324 - 324
Rest of World 450 424 - 424
Total numbar of employeas 1,764 1,743 86 1,829

Within the averages above, 108 (2015 93) part-ime employees have been included at their full-ime equivalent of 73 (2015 66), including casual staff

The aggregate remuneration recognised in the Consohdated income statement in respect of these employess, including casual staff, comprised

Ongoing
banmlnesadrs end QOngoing
ot businssaas BBC America Totnl
288 018 ms 014
£m tm Im m
Salaries and wages 1153 1144 56 1200
Social secunly costs 110 104 03 107
QOther pension costs 138 18 0 02 182
1389 1428 61 148 9
in addition to the above redundancy costs tolalling £5 2m (2015 £1 3m) were incurred in the year
The remuneration of the Directors dunng the year was as follows
Ongeing ongamg
DinAlEa S e vl DUSITwra el and
toisl wilal
Foal ] wtE
fooo £eo0
Emocluments 927 1,040
Long-term iceniwe schemes - 29
927 1,069
The number of Directors to whom retirement benefits have accrued throughout the year under the following schemes 1s as follows
Ongoing Ongoing
tumineeses and businesnas and
[P otal
z0ta s
Numbar of Number o
Diregtora Diracions
Defined benefit schemes 3 1
1 1

Money purchase schemas

Further details of Directors’ remuneration are provided i the Report on Directors’ remuneration on pages 20 to 24 Further information regarding the

compensation earned by key management can be found in note 35
The Group contnbuted £14,000 (2015 £23,000) to money purchase schemes for its Directors in the year
The remuneration of the highest paxd Director dunng the year was £626,000 (2015 £603,000)
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8. Other gains and losses

Omgoing Ongoing
ol e hel Buslastaes Bnd !
(1] okl I
01 018
Em m
Change in farr value of derivative financiat instruments (34) (40) |
Increase in earn-out payments due in respect of prior acquisitions (12) (13) |
Reduchon in earn-out proceeds recevabie on pnior disposals - {04)
{4 8) 87}
9 Net financing costs
Orgoing Dngoig
busingsars and atimezean and
L tola)
s 018
&m Em
Interest raceivable 09 08
Finance Income 09 08
Interest payable on loan from parent undertaking 22 18
Interast payable on derivative financial instruments 08 12
Other Interest payable 08 G5
37 a5

Finance expsnse
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10 Taxation

Tax charge for the year
Onpalng
busitesses and Ongong
inted businesses 88C Amarica Teotat
w1 2018 018 018
Em £m £m --E'L
Current tax
UK corporation tax 47 - 57 57
Foreign tax 140 135 33 168
Adusiments in respect of prior years {3 5) (3 4) - (34)
152 101 80 19 1
Defarred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 03 09 176 185
Reduction 1n rate of UK comporation tax 02 01 - 01
Adjustments in respect of prior years {0 8) 06 - 06
{0 3} 16 17 6 192
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 149 17 266 B3

The UK corporation tax charge 1s net of a credit of £0 9m {2015 £7 8m)in respect of High-end telewision tax rehef
The tax charge for the year includes tax deductions of £3 4m (2015 E2 2m) In respect of specific items (note 4}

In addibon to the amount charged to the Consolidated income statement, a lax credit of £2 5m (2015 charge of £2 3m) has been recogrused in other
comprehensive INncome 1 respect of financial mstruments treated as cash flow hedges

Raconcihation of tax expense

The total tax charge for the year is lower (2015 Iawer) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 20% (2015 21%) The tax charge can be
reconciled to the profit per the Consclidated income statement as follows

Ongoing
butinasses snd ongoing
total businusses BBC America Total
2018 2018 meé 208
£m £m _‘t_ﬂ £m
Profit before tax 100 5 96 5 127 3 2238
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 20% (2015 21%) 201 203 287 470
Effects of
Disallowed expenditure 10 17 15 32
Non-taxable ncome (0 3) - {113) (13)
High-end television tax refief (0 9) (78) - {(78)
Tax differental on wholly-owned overseas eamings 54 63 97 160
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures and associates (63) 61) - 61
Reduction in rate of UK corporation tax 02 01 - 01
Adjustments in respect of previous years (4 3) (28) - (2 8)
14 9 17 26 6 383

Tax charge for the year
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10. Taxation {continued)

The amount of tax paid in the year s different from the tax charge, due mainly to the timings of payments UK corporation tax is payable m four
instalments, two of which are made after the end of the year in which the tax anses, 1 @ some of the tax included in the 2014/15 tax charge was paid
in 2015/16 The payments are based on the best estimate of the tax charge at the ume the payment 1s made The final tax iability is determined when
the tax return for the year 1s prepared and submitted to HMRC some time after the year end In addibon, the tax charge in the accounts s a best
eshimate at the ime the accounts are prepared The charge 1s then adjusted in later years to reflect the actual tax hability ansing from the submitted

tax returns

Factors affocting future tax expense
The UK comporation tax rate reduced from 21% to 20% on 1 Apnl 2015

On 26 Cctober 2015 The Summer Finance Bill 2015, which reduces the main rate of corporation 1ax to 19% from April 2017 and 18% from Apnt 2020
were substantively enacted As these reductions to the rate were substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, the deferred tax assets have been

calculated at 18% m line with when the company anticrpates temporary differences to unwind

The Chancellor announced his Budget 2016 on 16th March 2016 including the pubhcation of the Business Tax Road Map, which sets out a further
reduction in the man rate of corporation tax from 18% to 17% from 1 Apnl 2020 and measures relating to the OECD Base Erosion and Profit Shitting
Actions, These include (Imiting the utilisatlon of brought forward losses and interest deductions, to be effective from 1 Apni 2017 Whlst a full
analysis cannot be presently carned out until final legislabon is published, it 18 expected that these measures will have bmited impact on these cument
year financial statements

Deferred tax
The following are the major deferred tax lilabikties and assets recognised by the Group, and the movement thereon, duning the current and prior year

Flxed ssest
lemporary Finencial
J¥1 b Associsies Prograreme righte dilflarences Provimons insUruments Mher Toasd
Em Em Em £m Em Em £m
At 1 April 2014 13 (57) 36 41 {19) (01) 13
(Charged)/credited to the income statement (28 1) {0 8) (03} 15 o8 77 (19 2)
Credited to other comprehensive income - - . - 23 - 23
Foreign exchange translalicn gains and losses - 04 - 11 - {0 9} 06
At 31 March 2015 {26 8) (8 1) a3 67 12 67 (150}
Credited/(charged) to the income statement 131 - (0 6) (3 4) 01 (89) 03
Credited to other comprehensive income - - - - 25 - 25
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses 20) {0 2) {01) 03 - 10 {10)
At 31 March 2016 157) 63) 28 36 38 12 32y
Deferred tax 1s recorded in the balance sheet as follows
2018 2018
Em km
Deferred tax assets 65 42
Deferred tax habilities (19 7) 19 2)
Net deferred tax liabllity 132} 150)

Deferred tax assets in respect of {ax losses carned forward are recognised to the extent that the realisation of the refated tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable The Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets arising on capital losses totaling £145 2m (2015 £170 Om) These
assets have not been recogrused on the basis that there 1s insufficiant certainty that capital gains will arise against which the Group can utiise these
logses There 1s no time iimit for the ulilisation of those losses

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed eamings of subsidiaries for which deferred
tax habiittes have not been recognised was £0 2m (2015 £0 2m) No hiabiiity has been recogrused in respect of these differences because the Group
15 in a position to controt the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and those differences are not expected to reverse in the foreseeable

future

Temporary differences ansing in connection with the Group's interests in the undistributed retained eamings of associates and joint ventures are not
considered 1o be material in either year
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11. Dividends

2018 W16
Em £m_
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders In the period
Intenim dividends for the current year of £421 92 per share (2015 £445 36 per share) 1055 1113
1085 1113
12 Goodwill
2018 018
£m £
Cost and net book value
At beginning of the year 334 341
Additions 04 -
Foreign exchange transtation gains/{losses) 04 {0 7}
Carrying amount 342 334
Goodwill, aliocated by cash generating unit ("CGU"), 1s analysed as foliows
2018 2015
£m £m
Consumer distnbution 254 254
Australian Channels 84 80
South African Production 04 -
342 334

The Group tests googwill for impairment in the accounting penod It which a business combination takes place, and thereafter annually, or more
frequently If there are indications that goodwall might be impaired

The recoverable amounts of the CGU's are determined from vaiue In use calculations The key assumptions used for these caiculations are those
regarding discount rates and growth rates Management estmates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the nsks specific to each CGU

No goodwill impairment has been recognised to date

Consumaer distribution business

The goodwill in this CGU arose as a result of the acquisition of 2 entertain on 6 August 2009 The cash flow projections used n determiming value in
use are based on the current business plan approved by management, which covers a five year penod after which cash flows have been extrapolated
using an expected leng term growth rate of -6% (2015 -6%)

A discount rate of 14 9% (2015 11 7%) has been applied to the cash flows

Management is of the view that any reasonably possible change in key assumptions would not cause the carrying amount to exceed its recoverable
amount

Australian Channels business

The goodwill in this CGU arose as a result of the acquisition of UK TV on 1 July 2008 Cash flow projections used in the recoverable amount
calculabon are based on financial budgets approved by management covering a penod of five years (2015 five years) and a discount rate of 16 0%
(2015 11 9%) Cash flows beyond the forecast period have been extrapolated using an expected growth rate of 1 0% (2015 1 0%;)

The mamn assumption on which the forecast cash flows are based 1s license fee rates In forming its assumptions about license fee rates, the Group
has used a combination of long term trends and recenlly contracted terms

Management belteves that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the vatue in use of UK TV Is based would not result in
any impairment

South African Production businsss

The goodwill In this CGU arose as a result of the acquisiton of Rapid Blue (Pty) Ltd on 28 March 2016 (note 27) As the acquisition took place so
close to year end, no impairment review has been conducted
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13. Distribution rights
b 11 2048
_CE 2]
Cost
At 1 April 6220 474 6
Additions 1285 1459
Foreign exchange translaton gains 05 17
Fully amortised rights written off (28 (02}
At 31 March 748 2 6220
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 4192 3045
Charge for the year 1210 1130
Foregn exchange translation logses a5 19
Fully amortised nghts written off (2 8) {0 2)
At 31 March 8379 418 2
2103 2028

Net book value

Included within distribution nghts is self-funded content in the course of production totaliing E0 3m (2015 £5 3m)
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14, Other intangible assets

Carrinr

Agresmanta Softwars Qther Tolal
2018 171 Efh m___ £m
Cost
AL1 Apnl B5 44 1 07 533
Additions - 1456 - 145
Acquired through business combinations - - a5 05
Disposals - (17 4) - (17 4)
Foreign exchange transiation gans 03 - 01 04
At 31 March 88 412 13 513
Amortisation
At 1 Apni 35 214 05 254
Charge for the year 05 70 - 75
Disposals - (17 4) - (17 4}
Foreign exchange translabon losses 02 - 01 03
At 31 March 42 10 06 158
Net book value 46 a0 2 07 365

Carrier

AJresmants Software Other Tots!
2015 £in Ren [l Em
Cost
At 1 Apnl 92 46 1 orv 560
Additons - M7 - 17z
Disposals - {137) - (137)
Foreign exchange transiation losses (07) - - (G 7)
At 31 March 85 44 1 07 533
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 31 313 08 350
Charge for the year 06 38 - 44
Disposals - (137) - (137)
Foresgn exchange transfation gains (0 2} . (L] {03)
At 31 March 35 214 05 254

5.0 227 02 279

Net book valua

Other assets compnse of customer relationships and non-compete agreements

Of tolal software additions recognised during the year £12 5m (2015 £10 6m) related to mternally developed software
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15. Property, plant and equipment

Frashold  Shorl leasehold Plant and Fixlures Asswie undar

- 9 v and ftings construsiion Tout
010 [3.] Em £m 1 £m Ei
Cast
At 1 April 0z 245 370 125 - 742
Additions - 06 33 28 - 65
Acquired through business combinations - . g1 01 - 02
Disposals - (9 5) (15 0) {49) - (29 4)
Foreign exchange transfation gains - 03 04 03 - 10
At 31 March 02 159 258 108 - §25
Depreociation
At 1 Apnil - 124 229 103 - 456
Depreciaton charge for the year - 10 37 13 - 60
Disposals - 95 (15 0) (49} - (29 4)
Foreign exchange translation tosses - 03 02 01 - 06
At 31 March - 42 118 68 - 228
Net book valus 02 17 140 38 - 297

Freahold  Shori leasehokt Plant snd Fixiures Advets under
L 'l Y nnd fEtings conslraction Tolsl

2015 Em Em Em Em — ‘l
Cost
At 1 Apri 02 127 304 115 14 56 2
Additions - 122 68 13 - 203
Disposal of subsidiaries - (02) - - - @2
Other disposals - (0 4) (20) {04) - {28)
Transfers - - 14 - (14) -
Foreign exchange transtation gains 02 04 01 - 07
At 31 March 02 245 370 12.5 - 742
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl - 90 209 94 - 83
Depreciation charge for the yaar - 30 38 12 - 80
Impairment charge for the year - 09 - - - 09
Disposal of subsidianes - on - - - (G 1)
QOther disposals - {0 4) (2 0) 0 4) - (2 8)
Foraign exchange transiation losses - - 02 01 - 03
At 31 March . 124 229 103 - 456
Not book value 02 121 141 22 - 28 6

At 31 March 2016, the Group had contractual commitmants for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment totalling £mil (2015 £1 3m)
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16 Interests in joint ventures and associates

A st of the Group's significant interests in joint ventures and associates, including the name, country of incorporation and propertion of ownership

interest 1s given m note g to the Company financial statements

The movements In joint ventures and associates dunng the year were as follows

Jolnt ventunes Associsies Tota Joml venlures. AsROLIss Touml
2018 we 20 2016 2018 w0t
tm L] £m £m £m £m
At 1 Aprtt 06 t512 1518 07 121 128
Additions o6 23 29 1] 1229 1235
Disposals - {(30) (3 0} - - -
Loan converted to equity - 18 18 - 0B o8
Share of results 308 110 418 276 82 358
Adjustment to provision for unrealised profits (03) (03) (O 6} 11 (0 5) 06
Dividends receivable {19 6) (7T (26 6} {29 6) (24) {32 0)
Foreign exchange transiation gains - 31 31 02 121 123
Amounts written back/{off) - 06 06 - {20) {2 0)
At 31 March 121 1597 1718 +]] 1512 151.8
Joint ventures and assocrates are recorded in the balance sheet as follows
Jaint ventursx Associstes Total Joint ventures. Associates Taotal
208 2018 2018 2018 2018 m16
_E EL‘L Efn L €m Em
Interests In joint ventures and associates 121 1597 1718 06 148 2 148 8
Non-current assets held for sale (note 21) - - - - 30 30
121 1597 17t 8 086 1512 1518

Additions and the loan conversion relate to mvestments mn independent production companies

Interests in joint ventures

Interests 0 joint ventures in the current and prewvious years in¢luded the followng material operation

UKTV

BBC Worldwide has a major partnership dea! wath Scripps Networks Interactive ("Scnpps”) for the production, marketing and supply on a wholesaie
basis of free-to-air and subscnption channets in the UK The partnership operates through the joint venture company UKTV Media Holdings Limited

{"UKTV")

UKTY was the only matenal joint venture undertaking held by the Group in both the current and the prior year.
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16. Interests in joint ventures and associates {continued)

The following represents the Group's aggregate share of joint ventures during the year

UKTY Other Vs Totel UKTY Othar Vs Total
118 2018 208 018 2018 2018
th £m ﬂ Em £m o
Aggregation of 100% of each Joint venture
Non-current assets 68 01 69 56 03 59
Current assets 2200 54 2254 186 5 47 1912
Current habilities (137 9) (7 3} {145 2) (127 8) {4 9} 1327
Non-current habilities (54 1) - {54 1) {53 5) {11} (54 6)
Net assots 348 (18) 330 10 8 {10) 93
Group's share of net assets of joint ventures 173 01 174 63 03 56
Provision for unreahsed profit (53) - (5 3) {5 0) - {50)
Interests In Joint ventures at 31 March 120 01 121 03 03 [+]]
Revenue 3204 71 346 5 2880 120 3000
Expense (248 4) (17 6) {266 0) {216 4) (11 1) (227 5)
Interest payable (38) - (3 8) (37 - 37
Taxation (15 8) (0 1) {15 9) (14 1) o (14 2)
Profit from Joint ventures 614 (06} o8 38 08 546
Profit from joint ventures attnbutable to other parfies {30 7) 07 (30 ) (26 9) {0 4) (27 3)
Other adjustments - - - - 03 03
Group's share of profit from joint ventures 307 01 308 269 07 276

included within the UKTV balance sheet are cash and cash equivalents of £21 9m (2015 £13 5m), financial habihties of £130 8m (2016 £125 2m)
and non-current financial habilties of £54 1m (2015 £535m) Included withm UKTV's expense for the year 1s a depreciation charge of £2 3m (2015

£2 1m) and an amortisation charge of €118 3m (2015 £106 8m)
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Interests in associates

Interests In associates in the current and previous years included the following matenat operation

New Video Channel America, LLC (“NVCA")

As set out in Note 28, on 23 October 2014, the Group sold a 49 9% stake in NVCA, formerly a wholly-owned subsidiary of BBC Worldwide Americas
Inc , and retained an investment of 50 1% in NVCA Whilst the Group retains significant influence over NVCA, and has the nght to vanable returns, it
no longer has control, and hence the Group has deconsolidated NVCA from the date of the sale and accounts for its retained interest since that date

as an assoclate

The following represents the Group's share of associates held dunng the year

NVCA Other Totd NVCA Other Tetml
2018 e 2018 2018 2018 2018
Em Een Em Em Erm £m
Aggregation of 100% of each associate
Non-current assets 1359 44 1403 1332 61 1383
Current assets 69 2 405 1087 836 341 97 7
Current habilities {25 5) (258) (513) (26 9) {17 9) (44 B)
Non-current liabiities (6 0) (84) (14 4) {7 3) (8 1) {15 4)
Net assots 173 6 107 184 3 162 6 14 2 176 8
Group's share of net assets 870 35 905 815 40 855
Goodwill on acquisition 602 129 731 587 105 69 2
Prowision for unrealised profit (37) 02) (3 9) (3 5) - (3 5)
Interests in associates at 31 March 1435 162 159 7 1367 145 151 2
Revenue 1136 432 156 8 428 399 827
Result for the year 180 17 197 150 42 192
Group's share of results of associates 100 10 110 75 o7 82

The Group has board representation and participates in pohcy-making decisions affecting Educational Publishers LLP and Woodlands Books Limited
The Group has concluded that it exerts sigmnificant influence over these businesses despite holding less than 20% of the voting power Accordingly,

the Group has classified s interests in these entities as asscciates
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17 Investments

me 08
tm Lo
Avallable-for-sale Investments
Unquoted squities 75 44
Loans raeceivable carried at amortised cost
Loans to joint ventures and associates {note 35) 60 05
Loans to other entities 30 82
90 a7
Total investments 165 131
18 Programme rights and other inventories
= 1t 2015
Em fm
Programme nights for broadcast 347 314
Programmes in the course of production 60 178
Raw matenals and consumables 18 17
Format rights 01 -
Work in progress 03 14
Fiished goods and goods for resale 100 150
529 673
19. Trade and other receivables
W16 2018
L Lm
Current
Trade receivables 2005 1724
Prepayments 133 133
Royalty advances 70 103
Accrued mcome 718 856
Amounts owed by jont ventures and associates (note 35) 246 432
Other receivables 76 353
3247 340 1
Non-current
Trade receivables® 56 5 271
565 271
3812 367 2

* |n 2015, this balance was classified within current assets

The net carrying amounts of frade and other recelvables approximates to their farr vatue
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19. Trade and other receivables {continued)

Included in the Group's trade and other recenvables at 31 March 2016 are balances of £28 Om (2015 £21 7m) which are past due at the reporting date
but are not Impaired because the Group expects to recover these balances in full, and has histoncal analysis to support the recovery profile The aged

analysis of these balances 1s as follows

018 2018
[ Em
Up to 3 months 228 167 '
3 to & months 31 29
QOver 6 months 23 21
280 217

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the date credit
was initially granted up to the reporting date Trade recelvables are provided against based on estimated wrrecoverable amounts, detarmuined by
reference to past default expenence of the counterparty and an analysis of the counterparty's financial situation (see note 34)

Amounts charged to the imparment provision are written off when there Is no expectation of recovery Subsequent recovenies of amounts previcusly
written off are credited to the Income Staternent The impairment provision stands at £1 6m at 3t March 2016 (2015 £1 2m)

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts 15 set out below

2014 2018
Em £m
Balance at the beginring of the year 12 ie
Impairment losses recognised 26 11
Amounts written off (t1) 07)
Impairment losses reversed {11) {2 8)
18 12

56




BBC Worldwide Limited

Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2016

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

20. Trade and other payables

s 0
&m Ll
Current
Trade payables 406 44 4
Rights creditors 1500 106 0
Accruals 508 602
Deferred income 507 580
Amounts owed to ultimate parent undertaking 503 476
Amounts owed to fellow subsidiary undertakings 167 160
Amounts owed to joint ventures and associates {note 35) 42 34
Other payables including other tax and social security 36 3 699
353 6 405 2
Non-current
Trade and other payables 23 08
23 [}:]
401 9 406 0

Rights creditors comprise royalty payments owing 1o producers of and contributors to television programmes, OVDs and other media Other payables

include £4 Om reiating to centingent considerations {2015 £1 8m) (see nota 34)

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate to their fair value

21. Assets held for sale

As at 31 March 2015, following the Board's approval for disposal of the Temple Street assocsate, the investment was reclassified as an asset held for
sale at its carrying value of £3 Om The investment was sold dunng the year ending 31 March 2016 {see note 28)
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22. Provisions
Ooetous
Property relsisd conlracts Gther Totad
&m [1.] tm £m
At1 Apnl 43 20 09 72
Addihonal provision m the year 03 - 13 16
Utiksation of prawvision {21) {16) (0 8) (45)
Released {o the Consolidated income statement {2 0) {0 3) - (2 3)
At 31 March 2016 D& 01 14 20

Property-related provisions include onerous leases In respect of properties held under non-cancellable leases, when the expected benefits to be

derived by the Group from subletting those properties are lower than the unavoidable costs payable cver the remainng term of the respective leases,

together with provisions for dilapidations in respect of leasehold properies

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group from a contract are tower than the

unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract
Other provisions pnmanly comprise restructuring provisions

Provisions are analysed between current and non-current as follows

Foal ] 2018
Em £m
Current 18 53
Non-gurrent 01 19
20 72
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23. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

The Group's pnncipal sources of funding and the currencies in which funding 1s denominated are summarised as follows

Starfing Indian Rupss Yotal Starling indisn Rupes Tatal
2014 2018 2018 2ms 2015 015
Em £m Em E Em Em
Unsecured borrowings at amortised cost
L.oans from refated parties 167 6 - 167 6 1355 - 1355
Bank loans - 03 03 - 03 03
167 6 03 1679 1355 03 1358
Total borrowings
Amount due for seltlement within 12 months 1676 03 1679 - 03 03
Armount due for settlement after more than 12 months - - - 1355 - 1355
167 6 03 167 9 1355 03 1358

The Group's principal source of funding is a multi-currency loan facility of £202 2m (2015 £202 2m)with BBC Commarcial Holdings Limited (BBCCH)
its Intermedsate parent undertaking of which £30 Om (2015 £30 Om) 1s availabie only on condition that an equivalent cash balance 1s maintained As
at 31 March 20186, the facility expiry date was 30 September 2016, howaver, this has since then been extended untlt 30 September 2017 The facility

attracts tnterest based on BCCH's borrowing cost plus a margin of 1 0%

The Group also has a koan faciity in India of INR 220m (£2 3m) (2015 INR %20m (£1 am)), which includes a working capital facility of INR 120m
(£1 3m)} (2015 £1 3m) and an overdraft limit wathin this faciity of iNR 140m (£1 5m) (2015 INR 40m (£0 4m)) The loan facility has no expiration date
but can be calied upon for repayment at any trme and therefore has been classed as current The balance attracts interast of base rate pius a margin

In additlon, the Group has a multi-currency collactive net overdraft facility wath a limit of £2m and a base currency of GBP This attracis interest of 1%
above base rate if drawn down in GBP, and interast of the bank’s currency overdraft rate plus a 1% margin if drawn dawn in cther cutrencies As at

31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, the facility was unutiised

There are no charges over cash at bank or other financial assets in respact of bormowings or other ltabiibes (2015 none)
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24 Derivative financial instruments

Non-currend Currenl Current NHon-current
s anasts Eabiltties abillfties Total
018 lm Lo m L] Em_
Dorivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges
Forward foreign currency contracts 01 o7 {11 9) (50) (16 1)
Interest rate swaps - - ©1) - Q1)
01 0.7 {120) (50) {16 2)
Derivativas that are not in a formal hadge relationship
Forward foreign currency contracts - a1 {18) {08) (23)
Foreign currency swaps - 01 - . g1
Embedded denvativas - - (0 4) (22) (26}
- 02 20) {30) (4 8)
[X] 08 {14 0) (8.0) (210)
Hon-currant Current Current Mon-curmant
neels el [labllives Rabiities Tolah
2013 £m l_m £m £m E‘m_

Derivativas that are designated as cash flow hedges
Forward foreign currency contracts 27 75 (8 6) (47) {3 1)

Interest rate swaps - - - (0 6) {0 &)
27 76 (8 &) {6 3) 3an

Derlvativas that are not In a formal hedge relationship

Forward foreign currency contracts 01 08 (11} (08) (1 0)

Embedded denvatives 01 - {05) - (04)
02 09 (18) (09) (14)
29 84 {10 2) {6 2) {51}

Faw value movements on denvative fmancial instruments that are not in a formal hedge relatonship are recorded in the Consolidated income
statarment within other gains and losses

The total notional principat amount of the cutstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 31 March 2016 was £328 9m (2015 £356 6m) The
hedged forecast transactions denornated in foreign currency are expectad to occur at various dates in the future

The Group applles cash flow hedge accounting for trades taken oul in respect of its forecast forelgn currency transactions Hedge accounting is only
apphed where appropnate designation and documentation, and trades wath parties external to the Group, exist. Net losses (before tax) recogrised in
the hedging reserve on forward foreign exchange coniracts in cash flow hedge relationships at 31 March 2616 were £12 5m (2015 losses of £10 9m)
Future relevant amounts will be recogmsed In the income statement in the penod when the hedged forecast transaction affects the income statement
at varous dates over the next 48 months

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding Interast rate swap contracis at 31 March 2016 were £60 Om (2015 £60 Om) All outstanding interest
rate swaps mature by July 2016

The Group has reviewed contracts for embedded derivatives that are required to be separated from their host contracts Embedded dernvatives are
recognised at their fair value with subsequent changes to fair value recorded in the income statement
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25. Called up share capital

2018 w013
&m Em
Authorised
1,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 10 10
Issued, alloted, callod up and fully paid
02 02

250,000 ardinary shares of £1 each

The Company has one class of ordinary shares, which carry no nght to fixed income

26. Reserves

Hedgling reserve

The hedging reserve 1s used to record the effective portion of cumulative net changes in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments, related to
hedged transactions that have not yet occcurred (net of tax) During the current year, losses of £0 7m were removed from the hedging reserve and
debited to revenue in the mncome statement (2015 gains of £6 2m)

Transiation roserve

The translation reserva comprises all foreign exchange differences ansing since the transition to IFRS from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations, as well as from the translation of llabilies that hedge the Group's net investment m foreign subsidiaries Since 1 April 2008,
£3 5m of exchange losses on foreign currency borrowings have been offset n reserves agamst exchange gains on the related investment in overseas

subsichanes (2015 £4 Tm)

Other reserves

Other reserves indudes revaluation of avallable-for-sale financial assets of £2 9m (2015 £ml) and ta the farr value of the put option liablliles arising
on acquisition of new subsidiartes {note 27)

Rotained earnings

Al 31 March 2018, the cumulative goodwill written off to reserves on acquusiens prior to 1 April 1998 amounted to £14 2m This amount is unchanged
from the prior year, and remained In equity upon transition to IFRS as parmmitied by IFRS 1

27 Acquisitions

Rapid Blue

On 28 March 2016 the Group acquired 70% of the shares of Rapid Blue (Pty) Ltd ( Rapid Blue'), a production company based m South Afnica, for a
total consideration of £0 9m (net of cash acquired) The operations of Rapid Blue have been integrated in the CEMA business line, reported in the
Rest of the World reporting segmant The acquusitron has been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with IFRS 3,
Business Combinahons The full acquisition note has not been pressnted as the acquisiton is not considered to be matenal

As part of the acquisiion the Group holds a call option for the remaining 30% of the shares, and the non-controlling interest party holds a put option
The fair value of the axpected congideration for the remarning shares has been recogrused as a financial lability of E1 6m, through Other reserves
Untli optians are exercised or expire, the changas In the farr value of the expected consideration will ba recognised in the Consolidated income

statement
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28 Disposals

The following summarises the disposals of the Group for both the current and the prior year
Temple Street

On 25 Apnl 2015, the Group disposed of its interest in Temple Street Productions for cash consideration of £4 5m, resulting in a gain on disposal of
£15m Net assets at the date of disposal were £3 Om

BBC AMERICA

On 23 October 2014, BBC Worldwide sold a 48 9% siake in NVCA formerly a wholly-owned subsidiary of BBC Worldwide Amencas Inc , to AMC
Networks Inc ("AMCN?") in return for proceeds of $200m (£123 Om), with BBCW retaining an investment of 50 1% i NVCA The $200m proceeds
compnsed $160m in cash and $40m deferred consideration in the form of a six-maonth prorussory note, due by 23rd Apnl 2015 settled during the year
ended 31 March 2016

The disposal was a strategic move to take advantage of the greater negotiating power and sector knowledge of the larger US networks While the
Group retamned a 50 1% sharehelding in NVCA, AMCN gained control over the key decision-making activities Therefore, whilst the Group retained
significant nfluence over NVCA, and has the nght to variable returns, 1t no longer had control, and hence the Group deconsolidated NVCA from the
date of the sale and started to account for its retained interest as an associate

The net assets of NVCA at the date of disposal were

23 October 2014

im.
Property, plant and equpment 01
Programme nghts and other inventones 548
Trade and other recevables 220
Trade and other payables (157)
Cash and cash equivalents 01t
613
Net gain on disposal
£m
Consideration for disposal 1230
Farr value of associate recognised 1199
Net assets disposed of (613)
Farr value of retained labilities, and transaction costs, in respect of business disposal {59 86)
Cumulative currency translation losses {6 1)
Net gain 1158
Satisfied by
Cash and cash equivalents 984
Defarred consideration 24 8
1230
Net cash inflow arising on disposal
Consideration received n cash 984
Less Cash and cash equivalents disposed of 01)
Less Settlement of retained habilities and transaction costs in respect of business disposal {338)
645
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29. Notes to the cash flow statement
2018 w18
Operating profit 106 4 116 3

Adiustments for
Share of resuits of joint ventures and associates (mcluding movemants in provisions for unrealised profits) (4t 2) {36 4)

Depreciaton and imparment of property, plant and equipment 60 B0
Amaortisation and imparrment of intangible assets 1285 117 4
Impairment of tnvestments ©1) 21
Impairment loss recognised on trade and other receivables 286 11
Reversal of impawment losses recognised on trade and cther racelvables (t1) (2 8)
Net foreign exchange losses/{gains) 14 (0 5)
Decrease n provisions (52) -
Cash flows before movements in working capital 197 3 205 2
(ncrease in trade and other raceivables (43 1) (33 8)

Decrease/(Increase) in programme nghts and other inventories 162 (16 5)
{Decrease)/Increase n trade and other payables (94) 62 4
1610 2176

Cash enerated from operations
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30 Commitments and contingent liabilities

0. ol ]
Lm £&m
Capital commitments
Distnbution rights 98 5 960 !
Property, plant and equipment - 13
Intangible assets 31 63
1018 1038
QOther financial commitments
Programme nghts for broadcast . 15
Other commitments 281 292
28.1 07
1298 1343

Yotal unrecognised commitments

in addition to the above, the Group s share of commuitments for programme acquisttons and other commitments i respect of its UKTV jomnt venture
amount to £76 7m and £109 6m, respectivety (2015 £10 4m and £59 6m, respectively)

The Group has a number of contingent habibties ansing from hhgation and from the nights of its customers and suppliers to undertake routine audits
These anse from trading activities undertaken in the ordinary course of business BBC Worldwide makes specific provision for the best estimate of
any amounts which might be awarded as a result of these Prowision s only made to the extent that the Directors consider it probable that there will be
an outflow of economic benefits and the amount can be reliably estimated

The Group has given guarantees in refation to the BBC Commercial Holdings Limited revohang credit facility agreement (see nota 23) At 31 March
2016, total amounts drawn down under this faciity were £45 Om (2015 £35 0m) tn addition the Group has given guarantees n relation to a US
private placement in the name of BBC Commercial Holdings Limited which at year end was £177 9m (2015 £175 2m} At 31 March 2018, the total .

amount of this debt was £222 9m (2015 £210 2m)

The Group occasionalty enters into contracts wath other equity shareholders of its joint ventures and assoctates o purchase additional equity In some
cases these contracts place an obligation on the Group to acquue further shares at the option of the counterparty to the contract The Group has not

recorded a llabllity in respect of most of these contracts as the amounts payable in the event of exercise are based on a proxy for the market value of

those shares Amounts payable under such contracts are not expected to be matesnal fo the Group as a whole

31. Operating lease arrangements

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,
which fait due as follows

1 )

tﬂ ET—
Within one year 81 g0
In the second to fifth years inclusive 277 300
After five years 643 88 5
120 1 127 5

The majonty of operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its properties  The rent payable under leases 15 subject
to renegotiation at the vanous intervals specified in the leases Prior year's numbers have been adjusted for the effect of inflatlon
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32 Retirement benefits

The Group operates a number of its own defined contnbution pension schemes The assets of those schemes are held separately from those of the
Group 1n independently admimistered funds Pension costs, representing contributions payable by the Group during the year, were £5 7m (2015

£50m)

Many BBC Worldwide employees are members of the BBC Group's pension schemes These compnse the BBC Pension Scheme (a defined benefit
scheme which 18 now ctosed to new members), a small unfunded plan (the unfunded scheme, which Is closed to new members) and defined
contribution schemes (LifePlan and the Group Personal Pension Scheme)

The BBC Pension Scheme provides benefits on a defined benefit basis funded from assels held in separate trustee-administered funds and was the
main pension plan of the Group There are four sections to the BBC Pension Scheme Ol Benefits and New Benefits, which both provide benefits
based on final salary (subject to differing inflation caps), Career Average Benefits 2006 {CAB 2006) and Career Average Benefits 2011 (CAB 2011)
Although It cavers the majonty of current employees it 1s now closed to new entrants

BBC Worldwide fallowing the provisions within |AS 19 Employes Benefits for accounting in respect of Group schemes accounts for its participation
n the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme This 18 because there is no contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the net
defined benefit cost to scheme participants The pension cost for this scheme therefore represents contributions payable by the Group to the scheme
and the cosls amounted to £7 § mithion in the year (2015 £13 2 milion} No contnbutions were prepaid of accrued at 31 March 2016 (2015 Enil)

The following lliabiiities in respect of retirament benefits have been recorded in the financial statements of the BBC

Fodl ] Wt

£m £m
BBC Pension Scheme 10034 9407
Unfunded Scheme 73 75
Total 1,0107 948 2

The actuarial valuation for the BBC Pension Scheme was updated for IAS 19 purposes to 31 March 2016 by Willis Towers Walson, consulting
actuanes Additional disclosure about the scheme and its financial posstion under tAS 1918 presented below

Scheme financial position

w018 2018
&m fm

128214 127663
(13,824 8) (13,707 0)
(1,003 4) {940 7)

Scheme assets™”
Scheme liabimities
Deficit

- excluding funds relating to additional voluntary contnbutions (AVCs}
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32. Retirement benefits (continued)

Changas In the present value of plan liabllities

The table below illustrates the movement on the plan liabilities dunng the year The most significant vanables which affect this are the additional year
of pension benefits eamed, interest charged on existing habilines, any gains o losses relating to participants leaving the pension scheme, changes in

016 s

£m Em

At 1 Apnl 137070 12,1927
Current service cost 1854 1810
Past service cost (309) 11
Administration costs 77 84
Interest on pension plan kabiities 459 3 5331

(179 1) (317 4)

Experience (gains)/losses ansing on plan habihties
Changes in assumptions underlying plan liabiittes 1253 14994
Contnibutions by plan participants 09 08
Benefits paid and expenses (417 9) (392 1)

Liabilities extinguished on settlements (32 9) -
At 31 March 13,8248 13,7070

Changes In the fair value of plan assots

The table below illustrates the movement on the plan assets during the year The most significant variables which affect this are the additional year of
contnbutions made, changes in the value of the pension plan assets (Including the investment return) and benefits paid dunng the year

Employee contnbutions to the scheme are paid wia a salary sacnfice arrangement and have therefore been treated as employer contnbutions

2004 018
£m £m
At 1 Apni 12,7663 10,684 2
Expecled rate of return on plan assets 4294 47386
Actuanal gainsi(losses) on plan assets (146 5} 16725
Contnbutions by employer 2198 3274
09 08

Contnbutions by plan participants
(417 9 {392 2)

Benefits pald

Assets distnbuted on settlements (30 6) -
At 31 March 12,821 4 12,766 3
Plan Assets

The allocation of assets by the Trustees 1s govemed by a need to manage risk aganst the desire for high returns and any liquidity needs A high
percentage of agsets are held in equities which the Trustees expect will produce higher returns in the long term Far more information, including target
asset allocations, on the Scheme see hitp //www bbe co uk/mypension

T 218 2018 2018
Type of asset _fm % £m %
Equities - quoted 1,279 2 100 1,491 8 117
Equilies - unquoted 49 01 66 o1
Pooled vehicles - quoted 12229 95 1,228 8 g5
Pooled vehicles -~ unquoted 7670 60 84038 66
Repurchase agreements (1718 1) {13 4) (763 2) 6 0)
Dernvatives (33 5) (0 3) (54 6) (0 4)
Fixed interest bonds - public sector 6170 48 558 9 44
Fixed interest bonds - other 10787 84 1.0559 83
Index-linked bonds - public sector 49390 385 43775 343
Property — UK 8554 67 7431 58
Property - overseas 3917 31 4305 34
Alternatives® 30551 238 243940 195
Cash and other current assets 364 4 28 356 2 28
At 31 March 12,821 4 1000 12,766 3 1000
Actual returm on ponsion plan assets** 2829 16725

‘Alternatives include pnvate equity, debt and currency
**This constitutes realised gains from the receipt of investment Income (e g dividends and rent}, transactions where assets are sold and unrealised

far value changes
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32. Retirement benefits {continued)

Funding the Scheme

The 2013 actuanal valuation by Wilhis Towers Watson of the pension scheme showed a funding shortfall of £2,054m Consequently a recovery plan
was agreed between the BBC and the pension scheme Trustees which detads the coninbution amounts ta be paid by the BBC over a 12 year penod

commencing 2014
As described In note 4, addibonal contnibutions of £3 4m paid by the Group to the BBC in 2016 (2015 £8 1m) have been presented outside Headline
profit

The contnbutions to the scheme by members are mainly paid via a salary sacnfice arrangement

The next formal actuanal valuation 1s currently being performed as at 1 Apnl 2016

Projected
2017 0. 018
Contribution rates .Y % L.
Employer 167 167 145
Employee {Old and New Benefits) 75 75 75
Employee (Career Average Benefits 2006) 40 40 40
60 60 60

Employee {Career Average Benefits 2011)

On the basis of pension assumptions made, the BBC Group expects to make contributions to the scheme totafling £132 2 miilon in 2016/2017

Principal actuarial assumptions

The calculation of the scheme habilibes and pension charges, for [AS 19 purposes, requires a number of assumptions, both financial and
demographic, to be made

The principal financial assumptions used by the actuaries, at the balance sheet date were

016 206

% %
Rate of increase in gsalanes 10 10
Rate of increase in pension payments
Qid Benefits 30 29
New Benefits 28 27
Career Average Benefits (2008) 24 24
Career Average Benefits (2011) 19 18
Inflation assumption (RPH) 30 29
Inflation assumption (CPI) 20 19
Discount rate 34 34
The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme's liabiiies are set qut below
Impact on npact on
2014 Assumption used schema [abilites  scheme kabilies
Movement % Em
Discount rate 34% Decrease 0 1% 22 {204)
Dhscount rate 34% Increase 0 1% 16 221
Retadl price inflation rate 29% Decreasa 0 1% 17 231
Retail price inflation rate 29% Increase 0 1% 18 (237)
Mortality rates See below Decrease 0 1% 34 464
Martalty rates See below Increase 0 1% 38 (480)
Impact on impaci on
018 Assumplion used scharme labiities scheme Usbiifes
Bovement % Em
Discount rate 34% Decrease 0 1% 22 (308)
Discount rate 34% increase 0 1% 17 230
Retall pnce inflation rate 29% Decrease 0 1% 18 245
Retail price mnflation rate 29% increase 0 1% 18 (251)
Mortality rates See below Decrease 0 1% 35 477
Mortality rates See below Increase 0 1% 36 {494)
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The average Iife expectancy assumptions, for members after retirement at 60 years of age, are as follows

Principal demographic assumptions

Numbaer of years  Numbsr of yearc

Retinng today
Male 276 275
Female 00 299
Retinng in 20 years
Male 295 294
Female 320 319

The mortalty assumptions have been selected to reflect the charactenstics and expenence of the membership of the scheme and are based on those
used for the actuanal investigation which was carrted out for funding purposes as at 1 Aprit 2013 The standard 'S1' senes of tables, published by the
CMI, reflect recent research into mortality expenence in the UK A subset of these tables has been used for males and femates, with a multipler of
122% for males and 107% for fermales For the allowance for future improvements, the CMI 2012 core projection has been adapted with a long term
trend of 1 25% for both males and females
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33. Capital management

The capital structure of the Group consists of nat debt which mcludes the borrowings disclosed n note 23 after deducting cash and cash equivalents,
and equity attnbutable to equity holders of the parent, comprsing Issued capital, reserves and retained eamings as detaded in the Consolidated
statement of changes n equity

The activities of the BBC are informed by an agreement with the Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Spod, which also stipulates bosrowing
fimits, both relative and absolute This agreement currently mits the consolidated net debt of the BBC's commercial subsidianes to £350m The
Group's share of this limit 15 1n tum agreed with the Group's shareholder and nforms the level of borrowtngs avallable to the Group

The Group delivers long-term value to its uitmate parent, the BBC, through cash returned in the form of divmdends as a share of the Group’s profils,
acquisition of BBC-commussioned content or intellectual property, direct mvestment in BBC programming, production of onginaf content and growth in
the capitai value of the BBC's equity in the Group The dividend poiicy of the Group Is agreed with the BBC so as to achieve the optimum balance
between annual cash refurns and investing for growth m programming, intellectual property or other assets to build value over the long term

The BBC Trust's pnnciples require strict compliance with the four Commercial Cnteria fit with the BBC's pubhic purposes brand reputation and brand
values, commercial efficiency and fair trading policy The Group’s palicy in making nvesiment decisions is governed by the BBC Trust's prnciples
and commercial efficiency of the investment The commercial efficiency of an investment s determined on a case-by-case basis with respect to
financial metrics such as net present value, internal rate of return, payback penod and profit margin

As a diversified portfolio of businesses, the Group operates a framework for calculating investment discount rates that are tafored to different types of
investment This framewark applies appropnate risk premiums to the discount rate in order to ensure all nsks relating to the mvestment are taken into
account and that the required rate of retumn 1s commensurate with this level of nsk This in turn atlows the BBC and the Group to achieve the optimat
allocation of capital and balance its short term and long term return goals

34 Financial instruments and risk management

Financial risk managaement objectives

In the normal course of its activities, the Group 15 exposed to a vansty of financial nsks, including market nsk (mainly currency risk, interest rate nsk
and price nsk), credit nsk and hquidity risk BEC Worldwide takes a nek averse approach to cash and treasury management activities and seeks to
minimise the Group s exposure to volatility in the financial markets The Group uses denvative financtal Instruments to hedge certain nsk exposures in

accordance with its hedging poiicy

The Group's financial nsk management operattons and associated trade execution actvities are performed by BBC Group Treasury All treasury
activities are govemed within parameters defined formally in the policies agreed by the BBC Executive Board and BBC Worldwide Board In addibon,
treasury activities are routinely reported and are subject to review by management

The Group's financial Instruments other than those used for treasury risk management purposes prncipally comphise cash and cash equivalents, a
debt faciity provided by its parent, external borrowings and vanous tems such as trade receivables and payables that anse directly from its
operations The Group finances its operations from these financiak Instruments The Group does not undertake speculative treasury transactions

Currency risk

BBC Worldwide is exposed to foreign exchange risk ansing from varous currency exposures principally in relation to the US dellar, the Euro and the
Australian dollar The Group generates a surplus in most currencies in which it operates The Group's share of revenue from operations generated
outside the UK was 64 1% in 2016 versus 66 1% in 2015

Foreign exchange transaction nisk anses from recognised assets and habiities and forecast future commercial transactions that are denominated in a
currency that 1s not the transacting enbty’s functional currency Due to movements in exchange rates over time, the amount the Group expects to
receive or pay when it enters into a transaction may differ from the amount that it actually receives or pays when it settles the transaction A small
proportion of related operating expenses will also be denominated in these foreign currencies providing some fevet of offset to these revenue

exposures

The Group has implemented a hedging policy to mimimise volatility in its financial results The Group's policy 15 to hedge the majonty of its forecast
net foreign currency trading covenng a period of one year, and a proportion of forecast trading for a further year thereafter Forward cumency contracts
allow the Group to settle transactions at known exchange rates, and therefore to reduce uncertamty ansing from cumency nsk
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34. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Currency risk {continued)

The overall cost of a hedged transaction and the associated forward currency contract in the income statement 1s fixed However, where contracts
span financial years and hedge accounting 1s not applied the far value of the forward cumency contract gives nse to gainsflosses in each financial
year due to the timing difference between the recognition of such gamns/losses and the recogmition of the associated hedged transaction The
gains/losses seen are therefore a result of market conditons as opposed to vanances (n contract value

Some sales contracts also contain clauses whereby changes in currency rates outside of an agreed range impact on the contract pnce, in the majonty
of cases the value of the individua! contracts and other features within the contract mit the currency nsk exposure to a level that is not significant to
the Group Such clauses have been separated from the host contracts and recorded as embedded denvatves The mavement in far values in these
dervatives s recorded through the income statement Further detalls of the embedded denvatives are given in note 24

Foreign exchange translation nsk anses from the translation of overseas subsidianes’ Income statements and balance sheets into sterling This
translafion currency risk may be hedged by funding overseas mvestments with loans in the same functional cumency as the overseas investiment No
such net investment hedges were n place at 31 Marcn 2016 or 31 March 2015

The majonity of the forward foreign cusrency contracts entered into by the Group are designated as hedging instruments in effective cash flow hedges
Corresponding farr value movements have, accordingly been recorded within other comprehensive income For forward foreign currency contracts
not designated as hedging instruments, movements in fair value are recorded directly in the income statement within ‘other gains and losses'

The following table shows the profit/{loss) and equity impact on the Group's denvative financial instruments of a 10% weakening of GBP compared to
other foreign currency rates

il mis

£m E&
Forward foreign currency contracts (34 4) (36 1)
Embeﬁded denvatives (0 :1) 05
Total impact on derivatives {347} (35 8)
Impact oan incame statement (6 8) £9)
impact on other comprehensive income (27 9) (28 7)
Total iImpact on comprehensive income {34 7) (35 6)

The same movement in currency rates would result in an income statement gain of £2 5m (2015 £4 7m) n respect of the Group's interest-beanng
loans and barrowings and intragroup monetary assets and iabdittes not ehminated on consolidation

Interest rate risk

The Group's main exposure 1o Interest rate fluctuations arses on exlernal mterest beanng liabihities and loans from its parent undertakings BBC
Worldwide borrows at floating rates of interest creating an exposure to cashflow interest rate sk BBC Worldwide then use interest rate swaps, Caps
and coilars to generate the desired interest profile and to manage the Group's exposure 1o nterest rate fluctuatrons The Group uses interest rate
swaps to fix interest rates so that greater cerlainty about the level of future interest payments can be achieved Interest rate swaps, caps and collars
are taken out based on projected borrowing requwements, therefore differences will occur between the notional amount of swaps, caps and collars
and the actual bofrowing requirements

If Interest rates had been 1% tugher and all other vanables were held constant, the Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2016 would have
increased by £1 3m (2015 £0 9m) The incremental increase in profit 1s pnmanly attributable to the effect that such a change in interest rates would
have on the farr value of interest rate swaps, which fix all of the Group's external floating rate interest

Othar price risk
QOther pnce nsk Is any pnce change ather than those ansing from changes in currency or interest rates
Cradit risk

Credit nsk is the nsk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meetts contractual obligations
Credit nsk anses from cash and cash equivalents, denvative financial nstruments, available-for-sale financial assets and trade and other receivabies
Group treasury policies require that cash and cash equivalents and denvative financial instruments are held pnmanly with banks of A+ rating or better

The Group's credit nsk management policy in relation to trade receivables invelves regularly assessing the financial reliabiiity of customers, taking into
account several factors such as their financial position and historical performance The carrying amount of financial assets inctuded i the financial
statements represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit nsk in relation to these assets For 2018, one (2015 mil) customer compnsed 10 9%
of the Group’s total revenues This same customer compnsed 31 4% of the Group's trade receivables balance as at 31 March 2016 No other
customer accounted for 10% or more of the Group's revenue for 2016 or 2015

The Group's other classes of financial assets do not contain impaired assets and are not past due
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34. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk

Ligquidity nsk 1s the nsk that the Group will not be able ta meet its financial obligations as they fall due BBC Worldwide 1s subject to cellings imposed
on Its borrowings by BBG Group, which in turn is subject to inuts set by the Secretary of State as described in note 33 At 31 March 2016, the net
debt mit imposed by BBC Group on BBC Worldwide was £172 2m (2015 £1722m), with a grass debt imit of £202 2m (2015 £202 2m) subject to
an equivalent £30 Om (2015 £30 Om) cash balance being held These imits are subject to review going forward

tn order to comply with this ceiling together with the terms of any individual debt instruments BBC Worldwide manages its liquidity through a number
of measures, inciuding regular cash flow reporting, forecasting, hedging agaimst foreign exchange fluctuations and proactively managing working
capital

Maturlty analysis of financial habilities

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabiliies into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining penod to contractual matunty at the
balance sheet date The armounts disclosed n the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows and will therefore not reconcie to the amounts
disciosed in the balance sheet for borrowings, derivative financial instruments and trade and other payables

Cue In Due after
legs than Ous In Duein maore than
1year 1lo 2 yexrt 2to 3 years Aymavs Tota
2018 Em Em Em £ Em
Financial llabilities at falr valua through profit and loss
Denvative financral mstruments 136 58 - - 194
Embedded dervatives 04 06 . 16 26
Other creditors 20 06 - 29 55
Financial liabilitios measured at amortised cost
Bank loans 03 - - - 03
Loan from Intermediate parent undertaking 1692 - - - 169 2
Trade and other payahles 3472 . . - 347 2
Duein Due afer
less than Due i Dus in more than
1 ysar 1102 years 210 3 years Aynana Total
215 Ent £m £n £m tm
Financial liabiiities at fair value through profit and loss
Denvative financial nstruments 101 55 05 - 161
Embedded denvatives 05 - - - 05
Other creditors 11 10 - - 21
Financlal llabilities measurad at amortised cost
Bank loans 03 - - - 03
Laan from intermediate parent undertaking 20 136 4 - - 1384
3462 - - - 346 2

Trade and other payables
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34. Financial instruments and risk management {(continued)

Categorisation of financial assets and llabillties

Loans and Loans snd
Available-f | ] [ I3 Tola) 400 a0y D Teas
w18 Eg ) 2018 to18 018 018 s 218
£m tm Cm [ Em L im [ 2]
Asseots as per Balance Sheet
Dervative financial instruments - - 10 10 - - 112 1z
Embedded derivatives - - - - - - 01 (18]
Assets held for sale - - - - 30 - - 30
Unguoted equities 75 - - 75 44 - - 44
Loans recetvable - a0 - 90 - 87 - 87
Trade and other recevables . 3114 - 3114 - 3539 - 3539
Cash and cash equivalents - 458 - 458 - 66 6 - 656
75 366 2 10 3747 74 429 2 113 447 9
Cthar linanclal Othar financial
Habllties Darivelivey Tolal fabitnjes Devivatives Tota)
0 2018 1018 2098 1% w1s
m l: t= &m £m £m
Liabilities as per Balance Shaet
Denvative financial instruments - 194 194 - 159 159
Embedded denvatives - 26 26 - 05 05
Non-controlling interest 01 - o1 - - -
Bank loans 03 - 03 03 - 03
Loan from intermediate parent undenaking 167 6 . 1676 1365 - 1355
Trade and other payables 3512 - 3512 3480 - 3480
5192 20 8412 4838 164 500 2

Non-denvative financial assets consist of cash at bank, short-term investments, available-for-sale investments, trade recewvables, other receivables
and accrued income Non-derivative financial Habilities consist of borrowangs, trade payables, cther payables and accruals

The fair values of all non-dervative inancial Instruments approximate to the carrying valug in the Balance Sheet The following methods and

asumptions have been used o determine fair values

and 20, respectively)
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34. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Fair value hierarchy and vatuation techniques
The following table prowdes an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to Inttal recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels
1 to 2 based on the degree to which the fair value 1s cbservable

- Level 1 far value measurements are those denved from guoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and lrabilities,

« Level 2 fair value measurements are those denved from mputs other than quoted pnces included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly (L e as prices) or indirectly {1 @ denved from pnces), and
«  Level 3 [ar value measurements are those derived from valuation technigues thatinclude inputs for the asset or ability that are not based on

observable market data {unobservable inputs}

Laval 1 Lovel 2 Lavel 3 Total Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totsd
01e Eall 08 w8 316 2018 2018 2018
£m £m £m L] Em £m Em £m

Financlal assets at fair value through profit and loss

Dervative financlal instruments - 10 . 10 - 112 - 112

Embedded denvatives - - - - - . o1 01

Available-for-sale financial assets

Unguoted equiies - . 75 75 - - 44 44
- 10 78 3] - 112 45 157

Financial liabilitlas at fair value through profit and loss

Derivative financial mstruments - (19 4) - {19 4) - (159) - {159)

Embedded denvatives - - (26) (2 6) - - 05 05

Other payables - - {4 0) {4 0) - - {18) (18)
- {19 4) {6 6) {26 0) - {15 9) (2.3) {18 2)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financiai statements on a recurrning basis the Group determines whether transfers have accurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categonsation (based on the lowest level nput that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end of each reporting penod
The fair values of denvative financial tnstruments are calculated using quoted pnces Where such prices are not avallable, a discounted cash flow
analysis 1s performed using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the nstruments for non-optional denvatives, and option pnaing models for

optional denvatives Forexgn currency forward contracts are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves denved from quoted
interest rates matching the matunties of the contracls interest rate swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and

discounted based on the applicable yield curves denved from quole interest rates

Level 3 financial habilties recorded at far value and included within other payables relate to contingent consideration and written put ophions 1ssued to
non-cantrolling interests in the Group's subsidiares The fair value of such instruments 15 calculated based on the stnke price of the options and
management's best estimate of the date at which the options will be exercised Embedded denvatives are also assessed as a level 3 financral hability

Where the strike price of an option Is based on the fair value of the underlying business, this has been estimated based on forecasts of future cash
flows prepared by management

The change in fair value of Leve! 3 financial instruments (s reconciled as foliows

Financlal Azseis Financisl Totst 2018  Financial Assels Financial Totsi 2018
Uiakilitley Liablittes
Em £m £m E£m Im £m
Opening balance 45 (2 3) 22 44 {16} 28
{33) (32 0t {0 6) (05)

Change In farr value recorded in other gains and losses 01

Change in farr value recorded in reserves 29 . 29 - - .
Unwinding of discount recorded within finance expense - o1 ©on - [(UR ] (01)
Acquisitions . (16) {16} - - -
Settlements - o7 07 - - -
Closing balance 75 (6 6) 09 45 {23) 22

73




Annuat Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2016

BBC Worldwide Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

35 Related party transactions

Trading transactions

The related parly transactions of the Group have been presented In accordance with 1AS 24 Refated Party Disclosures  Related parties of 88C
Worldwide include its subsidiary, associated and joint venture undertakings, iis parent undertakings and fellow subsidianes, and key management
personnel of the Group and their close family members Transactions between the BBC and BBC Worldwide Group pension schemes are detailed in

note 32

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, whuch are related parties, have been eliminated on consohdation and are not disclosed I
this note Amounts owed by and to the BBC, the intermediate parent undertaking and fellow subsidiary undertakings within the BBC Group are

reported in notes 19 and 20 respectively

The following table ilustrates transactions with BBC Group entities dunng the year

018 2018
Em Em

Owidends pard (108 5) (111 3})

Interest costs (22} (18)
Acquisition of distribution nghts (610} (58 9)
Royaities and other programme related fees (19 5} (19 5}
Other expense {34 6) (42 6}
Pension top-up (34) 81}
Ad sales commission 169 171
Programme licence thcome 13 169
22 79

Olher lncome

(1958 (201 3)

Other income and expense Includes recharges of administrabive and other similar costs inctuding property recharges, and amounts payable in
accordance with service level agreements

The value of transactions conducted with jomt ventures and assoctates was as follows

Dividends Dividendy

Incams Expense receivable Incame Expense recelvable

2ne wie 2018 2018 2018 018

Nama of rlated party Relationship £m £m &m Em Em £m
UKTV Media Holdings Limited Joint Venture 500 - 188 47 9 - 287
Other joint ventures Joint Venture 07 {0 8) 08 a7 (0 8} 09
New Video Channel Amenca LLC Assaciate 207 92) 64 127 (3 6) 21
Other associates Associate 45 (54) 0B 25 (14 7) 03
759 (15 2) 266 63 8 (19 1) 320

All transachions with related parties anse m the normal course of business on an arm'’s length basis None of the balances are secured

The following amounts were outstanding at the balance sheet date

Recelvaciss Payablas Hat batance Raceivab'es Paysbles Net balance

2048 mE W01 015 2015 2015

_Nl_ma of relatad parly thllomhlz £m Em £m £m -Eﬂ —2“_
UKTV Media Holdings Limited Jont Venture 144 - 14 4 241 - 241
Other joint ventures Joint Ventuse 01 - 01 - - -
New Video Channel Amernca LLC Associate 94 {40) 54 174 33) 141
Other associates Associate 66 (02) 54 22 {0 1) 21
305 (42) 263 437 (3 4) 403

The recevables balance sncludes amounis loaned to joint ventures and associates disclosed in note 17

At 31 March 2016, the Group also had an outstanding balance of £1 0m (2015 £1 0m) payable to a joint venture of the Group's ultimate parent in
respect of group relief This balance s included within other payables
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35. Related party transactions (continued)

Remuneration of key management personnel

The Group considers key management personnel as defined under |AS 24 Related Party Disclosures 1o be Directors of the Group together with the
BBC Worldwide Executive Committee Total emoluments for key management personnel were

2048 2018

fm Em,
Shori-term employee benefits 52 56
Post-employment benefits 03 04
Other long-term benefils 01 02
56 62

The above figures for emoiuments include the remuneration of Directors (note 7)

36. Parent undertaking and controlling party
The Group's Immediate parent 1s BBC Ventures Group Limited, which is tn tym 100% owned by BBC Commercial Holdings Limited The ultimate

parent undertaking and controliing party 1s the Bntish Broadcasting Coerporation, which 13 incorporated in the United Kingdom by Royai Charter The
largest group In which the results of BBC Worldwide are consalidated is that headed by the BBC The consolidated accounts of the BBC may be

obtamned online at www bbc co uk/annualreport

37. Events after the balance sheet date

On 1 April 2016, the Group acqued an additional 47% of the shares of Baby Cow Productions Ltd ('Baby Cow'} a production company based i the
UK, for a total of E2 8m Pror to the transacton, the Group held a2 25% stake in the company, and as a resuit of this transaction the Group has gained
control of the acquiree The full acqursition note has not been presented as the acquisitan 1s not considered to be matenat

There were no other events subsequent to the balance sheet date details of which are required to be included in the financial staterments
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2018

s

Note £m £m
Profit for the year b 852 914
Iterns that can be reclassified to profit or foss
Avallable-for-sale financial assets

Profit/{losses) on re-measurement of available-for-sale financtal assets n 29
Recognition and transfer of cash fiow hedges n {12 5) (10 8)
Tax on cash flow hedges taken directly o other comprehensive ncome f 25 22
Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the year {T1) (8 8)
782 828

Total comprehansive income for the year
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2018 2018
Note £m £m
Fixed assets
Goodwill [ 138 138
Distribution rights d 206 2 1952
Other intangible assets e 308 234
Tangible fixed assels f 234 238
Investments g 127 1 1200
Trade and other recevables 1 328 89
4341 39451
Current assets
Programme rights and other stocks h 253 437
Trade and other receivables i 3580 3725
Cash at bank and in hand 137 1630
3970 579 2
Currant liabilities
Trade and other payables ] {492 4) {656 2)
Not currant liabiisties (9548) (77 0)
Tolal agsets less current {labillties 3387 3171
Trade and other payables ] (175 4) (141 7)
Provisions for liabilitles k {18) {6 3)
Net assets 1617 169 1
Capltal and reserves
Called up share capital m 02 02
Hedging Reserve n {130} (30)
Available-for-sale Reserve n 68 39
Retained Earmings 1677 1680
1617 169 1

Shareholder's funds

These financral statements of BBC Worldwide Limited, registered number 1420028, were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for issue
on 13 June 2016, and half by

Tim Davie
Chief Executive Officer
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Avallabls-for-sate

Note Share capital  Hedging reserve reserve Retainad Eamings Tota! Equity
Em £m €m Em £m
At 1 April 2014 a2 56 39 1879 197 8
Profit for the financial year b . - - 914 914
Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges n - (10 8) - - (10 8)
Tax on items taken directly to equity n . 22 - - 22
Total comprehensive income for the year - {8 &) - 814 B28 |
Dividends paid - - - (111 3) (111 3)
At 31 March 2015 02 {3 0) a9 168 0 1698 1
Profit for the financial year b - - - 852 852
Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges n - (12 5) - - (12 &5}
Tax on items taken directly to equity n - 25 - - 25
Revaluation of avalable-for-sale financial assets - - 29 - 29
Total comprahensive Income for the year - (100} 29 852 782
Equity dividends paid - - - {105 5) (105 5)
At 31 March 2018 02 {13 0) 68 1477 1418
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a. Principal accounting policies

Basts of accounting

The separate financia! statements of the Company are prepared m accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework (FRS 101) The financial statements are prepared under the wstoncal cost convenbon modified to include the revaluation of investment

properiies

The Company has transiticned to FRS 101 from previously extant UK Generally Accepted Accounting Prachce for alf periods presented A hst of the
FRS 101 exemptions adopted by the Company has been provided In note s, along with reconciliations of all matenal adjustments made retrospectively
as a result of the transition  The accounting pobicies which follow set out those polictes which apply n preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2016

Going concern

The financial statements are presented on a going concern basis and under the histoncal cost accounting convention Further mformaton about the
going concern assumptron is given m aote 1 (b) to the consolidated financial statements

tnvestmants

Fixed asset Investments in subsidianies, Joint venturas and associates are shown at cosl less any prowision for impairment

Forelgn currency

The Company s presentational and functional currency 1s sterling Transactions In foreign currencies ara translated nto sterling at a monthly average
exchange rate

Monetary assets and liabilies denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the balance sheet date at the rate of exchange ruling at

that date Surpluses and deflcits ansing from the translation of monetary assets and llabilties at these rates of exchange, together with exchange
differences ansing from trading, are inciuded In the profit and loss account

Distribution rights

Distnbution nghts represent rights to programmes and associated wnteltectual property acquired with the primary intention of exploiting the nghts
commercially as part of the Group's long-term operations Distribution rights are mitlally recogrused at acquisiion cost or production cost, when the
Group controls tha respective assets and the nsks and rewards attached to them The camying amount Is stated at cost less accumuiated
amortisation and provision for impairment

Amorlisation of distnbution nghts 1s charged to the ingome statement to match the average revenue profile of the programme genre over its estimated
average marketable life The expected lives of distribution nghts range from 1 to 10 years

Other Intangible assats

1 intemaliy-generated intangible assels development expenditure

An internally-generated intangible asset ansing from the Group's development, including software and website development, 13 recogmised when the
asset i3 technically and commercially feasible, sufficient resources exist to complete the development and it Is probabie that the asset will generate
future economic benefits Any expenditure on research or development activities that does not meet the aforementioned critena 13 recognised as an

expensg In the penod in wiich it is incurred

Intangible assets with finite ves are amortised over their useful lives using the straightine method Amortisation expense Is recorded withm total
operating costs In the income statement The useful lives used for intangible assets are as follows

- Software (including internally-generated software) 1-5 years

Useful Iives are reviewed every year and adjustments are made, where applicable, on a prospective basis

79




BBC Worldwide Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2016

Notes to the company financial statements {continued)

a Principal accounting policies (continued}

Tangible fixed assets
Tangsble fixed assets are stated at cost after any provision for impairment, less accumulated depreciation

Cost comprises the aggregate amount pad and the farr value of any ather consideration given to acquire the asset and includes costs direclly
atiributable to making the asset capable of operating as intended Borowing costs directly attnbutable (© assets under constructian and which meet
the recogmition cntena n IAS 23 are capitahsed as part of the cost of that asset

Depreciation is charged so as to wnte off the cost of assets to therr residual value, over their expected useful lives using the straight-line method
Depreciation commences from the date an asset s brought into service

The useful ves for depreciation purposes for the pnncipzl categores of assets are

»  Short leasehold bulldings Unexpired lease term
»  Piant and machinery 3 to B years
+  Fidures and fittings 3to 10 years

Leased asseots
Operating lease rentals payable are recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease The Company has no finance leases

Impalrment of fixed assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the camying amounts of is tangible and intangible assets (Including distnbution nghts) to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss if such indication exsts, an impairment loss 1s recognised in the
Income statement for the amount by which an asset s carrying amount exceeds Its recoverable amount Where an asset does not generate cash flows
that are independent of other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit ta which the asset belongs

Programme rights and stocks

Stocks, comprising of merchandising, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisatle value Programme nghts for broadcasting refer to the
programme nghts acquired for the future broadcast on one of the Company's talevision channels The carrylng amount 1s stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation, and after wnting off the costs of programme nghts that are considered irrecoverable

Financlal instruments

Financia! assets and habilities are initially recognised as erther financial assets/abiliies at far value through profit or loss, loans and recervables,
avallable for sale financial assets or held to matunty Investments and are measured at fair value less any directly attnbutable transaction costs, except
for those financial assets classified as at far value through profit orloss, which are initially measured at fair value Pohcies applied by the Company n
respect of financial mstruments are consistent with thase apphed by the Group, the Company has therefore adopted the FRS 101 paragraph 8{d)
disclosure exemphons as equivalent disclosures have been provided in the note 1 (r) to the Group financial statements

Provigions
A provision 1S recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation ansing from past events and itis

probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation Prowisions, other than deferred tax that are payable over a
number of years are discounted to net present value at the balance sheet date using a discounl rate appropriate to the particular provision concerned

Where the Company enters mto financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within its group. the Company
conslders these to be nsurance arrangements and accounts for them as such In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee conlract as a
contingent lability until such time as it becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee

Pansion costs
Contributions to defined contnbution pension schemes are charged to the income statarnent as they fall due

Employees of the Group also participate in defined benefit schemes operated by the Group s ulimate parent, the Briish Broadcasting Corporation
{the "BBC") The defined benefit schemes provide benefits based on pensicnable pay The assets of the BBC's main penslon scheme, the BBC
Pension Scheme, to which the majonty of employees beleng, are held separately from those of the BBC Group

The BBC Pension Scheme is a group-wide scheme and there is no contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the net defined benefit cost to
scheme participants The contnbution rates are set by the pension scheme trustees based on valuations which take a longer-term view of the assets
required to fund the scheme's habilitles Valuations of the scheme are performed by Towers Watson, consulting actuaries, with formal valuations
undertaken at least every three years Accordingly, the Company accounts for contnbutions payable lo the scheme as if the schemes were defined
contnibution schemes, as I8 required by IAS 19 Employee Benefits
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Taxation
Current tax assets and liabiibes are measuved at the amaunt expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authontles based on tax rates and
laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred iIncome tax 1s recognised on all temporary differences anising between the tax bases of assets and lialitias and therr carrymg amounts In the
financial statements with the following exceplions

« Where the temporary differance anses from the wutial recogrition of goodwilt or of an asset or igbility in a transachion that s not a business
combination that at the tme of the transaction affects nesther accounting nor taxable profit or loss,

s In respect of taxable temporary differences assoctated with investments in subsidianes, associates and joint ventures, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it 1s probably that the temporary differences will not reverse In the foreseeable future,
and

® Deferred income tax assets are recognised only o the extent that it 15 probably that taxable profit will be avaliable against which the deductible
temporary differences, camed forward tax credits or tax losses can be utiised

Deferrad income tax assets and labilities are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to appiy when the related asset (s
reahsed or hability 1s seltled, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets Is reviewed at sach balance sheet date

Dividends on shares prasented within shareholder's funds

Dividends unpaid at the balance sheet date are only recognised as a labiity at that date to the extent that they are appropniately authonsed and are
no tonger at the discretion of the Company Unpaid dividends that do not meet these cnterla are disclosed in the notes to the Company financial
statements

Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on the acquisibon of business trade and assets representing any excess of the far value of the considerations given over the fair
value of the identifiable assets and labdities acquired, is capltalised and reviewsd annually for impairment On transition to FRS 101, the Company
reversed previcus amortisation on Goodwll and recogrised this change for the penods 1 Apnl 2014 aonwards The Company has invoked the 'true and
far overnde' of paragraph 10(2) of Schedule 1 to the Regulations to avercome the conflict which the ‘mon amortisation’ of Goodwll has with paragraph
22 of Schedule 1 of the Regulattons The effect of this change has meant a reversal of £1 6m amortisation in the prior year

Critical accounting estimates and key management judgements

The preparation of financial statements in confimity with FRS101 requires the use of certain cntical accounting assumptions, and requires
management to exercise its judgement and to make estmates i the process of appiying the Company accounting policies The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumplions and estmates are significant to the financial statements are consistent with

those disclosed within note 1 (u) of the Group accounts
b. Profit for the year
As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has elected not to present its own profit and loss account for the year The

Company reported a profit for the financlal year ended 31 March 2016 of £105 2m (2015 £91 4m) A statement of comprehensive iIncome has been
Included 1n line with IFRS 1 to reflect the items of income and expense that are not recognised n profit or loss as required or permitted by FRS 101

The auditor's remuneration for audit and other services is disclosed in note 6 of the consolidated financial statements
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C. Goodwill

Cost and Net book value

As at 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 138
Goodwill arose 1n the year ended 31 March 2013 foilowing the hive-up of trade and assets from the Company's subsidiary, Bedder & Limited

d. Drstribution rights

Em
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2015 6181
Additions 1303
Fully amortised nghts wntten off 27)
At 31 March 2016 7457
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2015 4229
Charge for the year 1193
Fully amortised nghts wniten off (27)
At 31 March 2016 5395
Net book value at 31 March 2016 206 2
Net book value at 31 March 2015 1952
e Other intangible assets
Software
Em
Cost
At 1 April 2015 348
Additions 143
Drsposals (17 4)
At 31 March 2018 N7
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2015 114
Charge for the year 68
Disposals {17 4)
At 31 March 2016 09
Neot book value at 31 March 2016 o8
Net book vatue at 31 March 2015 234
f Tangible fixed assets
Shart leasehold
balldings  Plant & y Fixtures & Fittings Total
£m Em £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnil 2015 141 49 5 61 897
Additions 04 26 17} 38
Digposals {7 9) {14 3) {4 5) (26 7)
At 31 Mareh 2016 66 e 24 46 8
Dopreciation
At 1 Apnl 2015 77 24 58 459
Charge for the year 05 32 ¢5 42
Msposals (79) (14 3) {4 5) (26 7)
At 31 March 2016 03 212 1.3 234
Not book value at 31 March 2016 63 65 06 234
Net book value at 31 March 2015 64 171 03 238

The Company does not hold any assets under finance leases (2015 £mil)
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[+ ] Investments

2018 2015
Em £m

Subsidianes 95 108
Jont ventures 02 .
Agsociates 14 4 140
Other investments 16 6 131
127 1 1290

The Company has investments m the following subsidianes, jont ventures and associates which principally affected the profits or net assets of the Group

Country of mcorporation or Ownarship
Nots sstablishmant Prineipal sctivity imerest
Princlpal Subsidiary Undertakings
2 entertain Limited + Urited Kingcom Hotding company 100 0%
UK Programme Distnbution Limited * + United Kingdom Programme distributor 100 0%
Tonte Films and Television Limited * United Kingdam Content production 100 0%
Worldwide Channael Investmants Limitad - United Kingdom Holding company 100 0%
Rapid Blue + South Africa Programme distnibutor 100 0%
BEC Wortdwida Australia Holdings Pty Ltd + Austraiia Helging company 100 0%
BEC Worldwde Canade Limited + Canada Programme distributor 100 0%
BBC Worldwide France Sarl + France Programmre disiributor 100 0%
BBC Worldwide Germany GmbH + Germany Programmae distributor 100 0%
BBC Woridwide Japan Limitad + Japan Programme distributer 100 0%
BBC Worldwide Holdings B V + Netherlands Holding Company 100 0%
8BC Worldwds Americas Incorporated + USA Holding company 100 0%
Coumtry of
incorporation or Ownersh:p Country of incorporation Ownership
Nots  saublishment interest Nete  or establishment interast
Subsidlary undertakings
B8BC Woarldwide Invastments Ltd +  United Kingdom 100 0% BBC Worldwide Music Limited +  United Kingdom 100 0%
88C Earth MR (WWD) Lta + United Kingdom 100 0% BBC Worikdwide Produchons (Afnca) (Pty) Ltd Africa 100 0%
BBC Earth Productions (Life) Lid + United Kingdom 100 0% BBC Woridwde {Africa) (Pty) Ltd Afnica 100 0%
BBC Earth Productions Ltd +  United Kingdom 100 0% BBC Woridwice Austratia Pty Ltd Austraiia 100 0%
BBC Worldwide Productions {UK) Ltd +  United Kingdom 160 0% BBC Worldwide Australla Publishing Pty Lid Australia 100 0%
BBC Magazines Rights Ltd +  Unied Kingdom 100 0% Nine Productionsi Incorporated +  Canada 100 0%
BBC Magazine Holtings Ltd +  Urited Kingdom 100 0% Worldwide Channel Investments (Ontario) Ltd Canada 100 0%
BBC World Service Talevsision Lid +  United Kingdom 100 0% 2004370 Ontano Incorporated Canada 100 0%
besb Ventures Ltd +  United Kingdom 100 0% Worldmde K ge (Beijing) Busi Consu'twg Cpy Ltd China 100 0%
European Channel Management Ltd +  United Kingdom 100 0% BBC Woridwide Productions Nordics ApS +  Denmark 100 0%
BBC Worlkdwide Corporate Services Lid  +  Unlted Kingdom 100 0% Ersta Weitweit Medien GmbH +  Germany 100 0%
beebh Rights Ltd*" +  Unlted Kingdom 190 0% BBC Worldwide Media Prvate Ltd Indla 100 0%
European Channel Broadcastng Ltd +  Unlted Kingdom 100 0% BBC Worldwide Channeis Maxico SAde CV +  Maxico 100 0%
2 entertain Video Ltd Urnted Kingdom 100 0% BBC Worldwide Mexico S A de C V +  Mexco 100 0%
Demon Music Group Ltd United Kingdom 100 0% BBC Worlkdwide Polska + Poland 100 0%
DVDS2 Lid Urited Kingdom 100 0% BBC Workswide Channels {Singapore) Pls Ltd +  Singapore 100 0%
DVDS3 Ltd United Kingdom 1000% BBEC com US incorporated +  USA 100 0%
BBC Earth Productions (Girant Fllms) Ltd United Kingdom 100 0% BBC Worldwide Americas (401) k Plan Trusteas usa 100 0%
Earth Fim Productions Lid United Kingcom 100 0% Workiwide Americas Investments incorporated USA 100 0%
BBC Magazines Rights 3 Lid United Kingdom 100 0% Global Hybrnd Productions LLC Usa 100 0%
BBC Magazines Rights 5 Ltd Unitad Kingdom 100 0% Sun Never Sets Productions LLC USA 100 0%
2 Entertain Management Lid United Kingdom 100 0% Bad Woll Productions LLC Usa 100 0%
BBC Video Lid United Kingdom 100 0% Adjacent Productions LLC usa 100 0%
MCI Music Publishing Ltd United Kingdom 100 0% BBC Woridwide Realty Productions LLC UsA 100 0%
Crimson Productions Lid Unitegd Kingdom 100 0% DWTS Productions LLC USA 100 0%
F-Besgt Racords Lid Uruted Kingdom 100 0% Worldwide Compsetition Productions LLC usA 100 0%
Demon Records Lid United Kingdom 100 0% BRC Workiwde Intarmediadora de
Bedder & Linuted +  United Kingdom 100 0% Programadora Estangeira Ltd +  Brazl 100 0%
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g Investments (continued)
Courtry of
Incorporation or Ownership Country of g [+,
Noté  yyrablishment interest MNote  or estsblishment nterest
L
Joint Ventures Assoclates
New video Channel Amenca LLC usa 50 1%
UKTV Media Holdings Limited +  United Kingdom 500% Jasper Brogdeasting Incorporated Canada 50 0%
Sub-Zero Events Limited +  Umted Kingdom 50 0% Baby Cow Productions Limited +  United Kingdom 25 0%
Tower Productions GmbH + Germany 50 0% Buming Bright Productions Limited +  United Kingdom 25 0%
BBC Earth Froductions {Afnica) Ltd +  United Kingdom 100 0% Clerkenwel Flims Limited +  United Kingdom 25 0%
UKTV Media Limited United Kingdom 50 0% Skm Flim & TV Limited +  United Kingdom 25 0%
Knowledge-Wast Communications Inc Canada 50 0% Sprout Pictures (TV) Lirted +  United Kingdom 25 0%
JV Programs LLC USA 50 0% Children s Character Books Limited +  United Kingdom 25 0%
Educatonal Publishers LLP +  United Kingdom 150%
Investinents Woodlands Books Limited +  Uruted Kingdom 15 0%
Lookout Point Limited +  United Kingdom 35 0%
Vik, Inc + USA 18% Curve Media Limited +  United Kingdom 25 0%
Left Bank Plctures Limited +  United Kingdom 12 2% Next Radw Limited India 18 2%
NC Intemet Limited + United Kingdom 55% MSM- Worldwde Factual Media Privale Lid +  Inda 26 0%
Mashar Technologias +  United Kingdom 100% Amazng Produchons Limited +  United Kingdom 25 0%
Chffhanger Frims Limited +  United Kingdom 250%
Greendird Media Limited - United Kingdom 26 0%
Mighty Producticns Limited +  United Kingdom 250%
Red Pianet Pictures (Entertainment) Limited +  United Kingdom 25 0%
+ Held directly by BBC Waridwide Limited
M BBC Warldwide holds 32 7% of the Issued share capital but the non-coentrofing shareholders have no right 1o distributions
» BBC Worldwide holds 88 4% of 1ssued share capital but the non-controling shareholkders have no right to thstrnibutions

Listed below are subsidianes controlled by the Group, where the Diwrectors have taken the exemplion from having an audit of its financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2016 The exemption is taken 1n accordance with Compantes Act 2005 s479A

Subsidiary Reg No Subslidiary Reg No
Beddcer 6 Limited 05982502 B58C Magazines Rights 3 Lt 06185864
Worldwide Channel Investments L imited 03309240 BBC Magazines Rights 5 Ltg 068185843
BBC Workdwsde Investments Lid 02701369 2 Entertain Management Lid 05087003
BBC Earth MD {WWD) Ltd 07499958 BBC \ideo Ltd 04840886
BBC Earth Productions (Life) Ltd 05705188 Crimson Productions Ltd 02270191
8BC Magazines Rights Ltd 06186397 F-Beat Reccrds Ltd 01459034
BBC Word Service Televaision Lid 02592860 Demon Recoras Litd 01495331
beeb Ventures Ltd 04359440 BBC Worlawide Music Limited 02512074
European Channel Management Ltd 02848023
BBC Worldwide Corporate Services Ltd 07393413
beeb Rights Ltd** 04400579
European Channel Broadcasting Ltd 029648235
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g. Investments (continued)
Subsidiaries dvs i Otiver Invest Tota!
£m £m Em £m im
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2015 2101 - 158 148 2407
Addibons - 02 21 28 51
Fair value uphft - - . 29 29
Transter . . 18 (18) .
Disposals {12 3} - (3 6} (1 4) (17 3)
Al 31 March 2016 197 8 02 161 173 2314
Provisions for impairmeant
At 1 Apnl 2015 108 2 - 18 17 1117
Charge for the year - - 13 - 13
Disposals {6 3) - (14) {10) {(B7)
At 31 March 2016 1019 - 17 07 104 3
Net book value at 31 March 2018 959 02 14 4 166 1271
Net book value at 31 March 2015 1019 - 14 0 131 1200
h Programme rights and other stock
2018 2016
~Em km,
Programme rights for broadcasting 205 180
Programmes in the course of producton 43 212
Finshed goods for resale 05 45
253 437
i Trade and other receivables
2018 2018
£m Em,
Amounts falling due within one ysar
Trade recewvables o7 900
Prepayments and accrued income 520 443
Amounts owed by ulimate parent undertaking 21 01
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 178 4 1829
Amounts owed by joint ventures and assoctates 240 6
Dernwvative financtal instruments 09 84
Corporation fax recoverable 63 24
Other receivables 36 58
358 0 3725
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Trade recewvables 245 .
Derivative financial instruments o1 28
Deferred tax 82 61
328 89
330 8 3814
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| Trade and other payables
2016 015
£m Em

Amounts falling due within one year
Bank loans and overdraft 640 2407
Trade payables 348 369
Rights creditors 985 60 5
Accruals and deferred income 793 838
Amounts owed to vitmate parent undertaking 475 46 Q
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 1165 1301
Amounts owed to felow subsidiary undertakings B6 121
Amounts owed to joint ventures and associates 02 04
Derivative financiat instruments 146 102
Qther payables including other taxes and social security 286 355

492 4 656 2
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Loan owed to intermediate parent undertaking 167 6 1355
Other payables 05 -
Derivative financial instruments 73 62

176 4 1417

667.8 797 9

Details of bank loans and loans owed to the Company's intermediate parent undertaking are given in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements

k Provisions for hiabilities
Defatrad tax Onerous contracts Qther provisions Total
EQ £m £m _EE.
At 1 Apnil 2015 22 16 25 63
Provided during the year - - 12 12
Released in the year (20) (0 3) 07 {(30)
Utihsed in the year - 13 {16) {29)
At 31 March 2016 02 - 14 16

Provislons for anerous contracts are recogmsed when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the

unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract.

Other provisions pnmartly relate to reorganisation costs, property-related prowsions including enerous, non-cancellable leases where the expected
benefits to be derved by the Company from subletting thuse properties are lower than the unavoidable costs payabie over the remaining term of the

respective leases, and provisions for dilapidations in respect of leasehold properties

Further deferred contingent conslderation may be payable in connection with acquisitions made by
the hkehhood and magnitude of additional payments cannot be assessed with reasonable certainty

the Company No provtston has been made where

The Company and scme of its subsidianies operate a cash pocling arrangement All the cash batances within the pool belong to the lggal entity 1o
which they relate, although the Company has access to all funds and each cash pool participant is jointly and severally hable for any overdraft

balance
I Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s provided as follows

Fixed asset timing  Derlwative timing
differences differences Provisions Totat
£m £en £m £m
At 1 Apnt 2015 28 11 - g
Charged to profit and loss 05 27 09 41
At 31 March 2016 33 38 09 80
Deferved tax 1s recorded in the balance sheet as follows
2018 2018
£1m Em
Deferred tax assets 82 61
Defesred tax habihties (02) (2 2)
Net deferred tax asset 80 39
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m. Called up share capital
2016 2016
EE £m
Issued and fully pald
250,000 Orcinary shares of £1 each 02 02

The Company has one class of ordinary shares, which carry no nght to fixed income
n. Reserves
Available-for-sale Reserve

The available-for-sale reverse i1s used to record the fair value movement of the Company's Investments

Hedglng Reserves

The hedging reserve is used to record the effective portion of cumulative net changes in the farr vatue of cash flow hedging instruments, retated to
hedged transactions that have not yet occurred {net of tax) During the current year, gains of £10 Om were removed from the hedging reserves and

credited to revenue in the Income statements (2015 £8 6m)

o Commitments and contingent liabilities
Contracts placed for future capial expenditure not provided are as follows
2016 2018
£m £m
Capltal commitments
Tangible fixed assets 31 63
Distribution nghts 98 5 96 0
1016 1023
Other financial commitments
Programme nghts for broadcast - 15
Qther commitments 281 252
281 267
Total unrocognised commitmeants 1297 1290

In addition to the above, the Company’s share of commitments for programme acquisitions and other commitments n respect of itg UKTV jomt

venture amount to £76 7m and £109 6m, respectively (2015 £20 8m and £119 2m, respectively)

The Company has given guarantees in retation o the BBC Commercial Holdings Limited revolving credit facility agreement, see note 23 of the Group

accounts for further detail

p. Operating lease arrangements

At the batance sheet date, the Company had outstanding commitments for future mimmum lease payments under non-cancellable cperating leases,

which fall due as follows

2018 2015
Em £m
Within cne year 32 48
Beiween two and five years 123 143
After more than five years B0 6 524
Total 963 718

q. Related party transactions

The Group's consohidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 contain related party disclosures Consequently, the Company has
taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 101 (IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures) not to disclose transactions with other members of the BBC

Group The value of transactions conducted with non wholly-owned subsidianes and with other related parties was as follows

Income E [ f d tncome

2016 " 2018 2016 2018 " 2018 2016
Name of related party Relatlonship £m Em £m Em En £
UKTV Media Holdings Limited Jomnt Venture 500 - 168 479 - 287
New Video Channe! Amenca LLC Agsociate 176 - - 112 - -
Other associates Associate 36 (5 4) 04 08 14 2 01
Total 712 {54) 192 599 142 288
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q Related party transactions (continued)
The following amounts were outstanding with related parties at the balance sheet date
Receivables Payatitas Met balance Receivables Payable Nat bal

2016 018 2016 2015 2018 2018
Name of retated party Relationship tm £m £m £m Em Em
UKTV Media Holdings Limited Joint Venture 14 4 - 144 241 {0 3) 238
New Video Channel Amernica LLC Associate 89 - 89 128 - 128
Other associates Associate 07 (0 2) 05 18 0 1) 17
Total 240 (0.2} 228 387 0 4) 382

At 31 March 2018, the Company also had an outstanding balance of £1 3m {2015 £1 0m) payabie to a joint venture of the Company's utimate parent
in respect of group relief This balance 1s included within other payables

r. Post balance sheet events

On 1 Apnit 2016, the Company acquired an additional 47% of the shares of Baby Cow Preduclions Lid ('Baby Cow’), a comedy production company
based in the UK, for a total of £2 8n Pnor to the ransaction, the Company held a 25% stake 1n the company, and as a result of this transaction the
Group has gained control of the acquiree The full acquisition note has nat been presented as the acquisiton is not considered to be material

There were no other events subsequen ta the balance sheet date details of which are required to be included in the financial statements

s. Transition to FRS 101

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company prepared its financial siatements 1n accordance with previously extant
United Kingdom generally accepted accounting practice (UK GAAP) These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2016, are the first the
Company has prepared in accordance with FRS 101

Accordingly, the Company has prepared individual financial statements which comply wath FRS 101 applicable for penods beginning on or after 1 Apnl
2015 and the significant accounting policies meeting those requirements are descnbed in the relevant notes

in preparing these financials statements, the Company has started from an opening balance sheet as at 1 Apnl 2014, the Company's date of transition
to FRS 101, and made those changes in accounting policies and other restatements required for the first-time adoption of FRS 101 As such, this
nate explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restaling its balance sheet as at 1 Apnl 2014 prepared under previously extant UK
GAAP and its previousty published UK GAAP financial statemenits for the year ended 31 March 2015

On transition to FRS 104, the company has applied the requirements of paragraphs 6-33 of IFRS 1 *First tme adoption of Intemational Financiat
Reporting Standards®

IFRS 1 allows first-ime adopters certain exemptions from the general requirements to apply IFRSs as effective for March 2016 year ends
retrospectively The Company has taken advantage of the followmng exemptions

Per FRS 101 paragraph 7A, the Company has taken exemption from the requirement of paragraphs 6 and 21 of IFRS 1, to present an opening
statement of financial position at the date of transition

The Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101 on the premise that equivalent disclosures have been
included 1n the consolidated hnancial statements of the group

(a) The requirements of paragraphs 82, B64(d), B54(e) BB4(g). BE4(h}, B64(j) to B64(m) BE4(n)(n), BE4 (o}{n) B64(p), B64(q)(h) BE66 and B&7of
IFRS 3 Business Combinations, equivalent disclosures have been included in the consolidated financal statements of the Group,

(b} the requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures

(c) the requirements of paragraphs 91-99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

(d) the requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements' to present comparative information in respect of

{1) paragraph 78(a)(iv) of IAS 1

(i) paragraph 73{e} of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment,

{m) paragraph 118(e) of IAS 38 Intangible Assets,

(iv) paragraphs 76 and 79(d) of IAS 40 Investment Property, and

(v} paragraph 50 of I1AS 41 Agnculture

(e) the requirements of paragraphs 10(d), 10(f), 38{c) and 134-136 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements,

{f) the reguirements of tAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows,

(g) the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of 1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,

(h) the requirements of paragraph 17 of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures,

(1) the requirements in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactions entered into between two or more members of a
group, provided that any subsidiary which 1s a party {o the transaction 1s wholly owned by such a member, and

()) the requirements of paragraphs 134(d)-134(f) and 135(c)-135(e) of IAS 36 Imparment of Assels
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s Transition to FRS 101 (continued)
FRS 11
Reconciliation of Equity as at 1 April 2014 Notes UK GAAP Re classificatons FRS 101
Re measuraments
£m £m £m

Fixed assets
Goodwill 1 138 138
Distnbution nghts 164 2 164 2
Other intangible assets 2 . 114 114
Tanglble fixed assets 267 {11 4) 153
Investments 3 1216 39 1255
Trade and other receivables 78 78

334 1 39 33840
Current assets
Programme nghts and other stocks 323 323
Trade and other recelvables 3160 3160
Cash at bank and \n hand 535 53 5

4aD18 - 4018
Trade and other payabtes 4 (432 2) {0 8) {433 0)
Not current liabilities (304) (038) 31 2)
Total assets less current [iabllities 3037 31 306 8
Trade and other payables {101 5) (101 5)
Prowvisions for habilities 77} 7
Net assots 1945 3 197 6
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 02 02
Hedging Reserve 5 - 56 56
Available-for-sale reserve 3 39 39
Ratained Earnings 194 3 (64) 1879
Shareholder's funds 194 5 31 197 6

FRS 101
Reconcillation of Equity as at 31 March 2015 Notas UK GAAP Re-ciassifications FRS 101
Ra-measmements
£m £m £m

Fixed assats
Goodwill 1 122 16 138
Distnbution nghts 1952 - 1852
Other intangible assets 2 - 234 234
Tangible fixed assets 47 2 (23 4) 238
Investments 3 1251 39 1290
Trade and other receivables 89 - 89

3886 ;33 ki 78|
Currant assets
Programme nghts and other stocks 437 - 437
Trade and other receivables 3725 - 3725
Cash at bank and in hand 1630 - 163 0

5792 - 579 2
Trade and other payables 4 (655 5) {07) (658 2}
Net current liabilities (76 3) 07 (77 0)
Total assots less current liabllities 323 48 3171
Trade and other payables (141 7) . (141 7)
Provisions for llabilities (6 3) - (63)
Neot assets 164 3 48 169 1
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 62 - 02
Hedging Resarve 5 - (30) (30)
Available-for-sale resarve 3 - 38 39
Retaned Eamings 164 1 ig 168 0

164 3 48 1691

Shareholder's funds
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s Transition to FRS 101 {continued)

1 Goodwill
On transition to FRS 101, £1 6m amortisation on Goodwill has been reversed i the 14/15 financial year Goodwill has been assessed for
impairment in accordance with 1AS 28

Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of business trade and assets, representing any excess of the farr value of the considerations given over the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilties acquired, [s capitahsed and reviewed annually for impakiment The Company reversed previous
amortisation on Goodwill incurred since 1 Apnl 2014, and adopted this accounting practice for the periods 1 Aprit 2014 onwards The change in
basis is to comply with FRS 101 The Company has invoked the ‘true and tair overnde’ of paragraph 10(2) of Schedule 1 to the Regulations to
overcome the conflict which the 'non amortisation® of Goodwill has with paragraph 22 of Schedule 1 of the Regulations The effect of this change
has meant a reversal of £ 6m amorbsation in the pnor year

2 Other Intangible assets

Under IAS 38, software unless Integral to hardware, is recognised as an intangible asset Company software previously recognised under tangible
assels has been transferred to ‘Other ntangible assets’ on the balance sheet resulting in a £23 4m decraase In tangible assets at 31 March 2015
{£11 4m at 1 Apnl 2014)

3 Investment Revaluation
Under previous UK GAAP, the Company recognised it's 12 2% investment in Left Bank Pictures Limited at cost of £0 5m this has been remeasured
at far value per IFRS 39 and resulted in a £3 9m restrospective adjustment to the balance of the investment at 1 Apnl 2014

4 Employee Benefits
On transition to FRS 101, a holiday pay accrual has been accounted for of £0 7m at 31 March 2615 (E0 8m at 1 Apnil 2014)

$§ Hedging Reserve
On transitrion 1o FRS 101 under IAS 38, the fair value movements from forward contracts designated as heages has been accounted for under
'Hedging Reserve' This has meant a £3 Om charge to the Hedging Reserves at 31 March 2015 (£5 6m credit at 1 April 2014)

8 Other remeasurements
The effect of the other remeasurement differences on reported profit of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015 1s as follows

2018
tm
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2015 under UK GAAP 811
Goodwill (note 1) 16
Holday pay accrual {note 2) 00
Hedge Reserves (note 3) a7
Increase in reported profit for the year 103
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2015 uncer FRS 101 914
Items that can be reclassified to profit or loss.
Hedging Reserves
Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges (10 8)
Tax on cash flow hedges taken directly to other comprehensive income 22
Other comprehoensive (loss) for the year (8 8)
Total comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 March 2015 under FRS 101 82.8
———————]
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